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Financial Highlights

MBERE

Jo R s

RMB’000 2018 2017
AR T —E-NFE —ZF—L£F
Revenue EER 293,922 264,215
Cost of sales $HE KA (156,425) (136,902)
Gross profit EH 137,497 127,313
Selling & distribution costs HERDHERAX (113,360) (93,726)
Administrative expenses 1THEH (25,838) (27,866)
(Loss)/profit from operations EiE (18 F) 8 (820) 19,726
Taxation IR = ()
(Loss)/profit for the year attributable to owners ZX A & # B A JE1H 2 F A
of the Company (Ei8),/FHE (1,196) 19,227
Gross margin FE M =X 46.8% 48.2%
Net (loss)/profit ratio F(E18),/FI B % (0.4%) 7.3%
(Loss)/earnings per share (RMB cents) SR (EE) BN (AR
Basic HAK (0.0378) 0.6081
Diluted g (0.0378) 0.6080
Revenue by Product Category
WARERERND W
91.0% 88.2%

2.0%

(RMB’000)

2018

2017
—B—tfF

(ARET ) —E2-N\F
( Shampoo & hair-care products )

. SRR R . 267,398 233,067
Ski duct
%;g; prReRer 4,355 5197
Other household & personal care products
HitRARBEASEESR 22,169 25,951
Total
axt 293,922 264,215

BaWang International (Group) Holding Limited Annual Report 2018



= T I

Financial Highlights (Continued)
BRBE (&)

Revenue by Brand Category
WAZRBBER D

92.3%

86.8%

RMB’OOO_ 2018 2017

AR®T —B-N\E| =F—+tF§
Bawang A

W

BT 271,200 229,364
Royal Wind
BE 8,529 14,748
Herborn
rEE 4,202 5,192
Litao
EE 8,983 12,334
Little King

. NEE 1,008 2,572
Others
ity 0 5
o 293,922 264,215

. mE J

FIER(RE)ERARLIE ZSB—I\FEH
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Corporate Information (Continued)

AEEH(E)
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Corporate Information (Continued)

AEEH(E)
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Chairman’s Statement
FERETE

Dear shareholders of the Company,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors of BaWang
International (Group) Holding Limited (the “Company”), | present the
audited annual results of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively,
the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2018.

The Board is pleased to report that the total revenue of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2018 was approximately RMB293.9
million, representing an increase of approximately 11.2% from
approximately RMB264.2 million for 2017. Revenue from the online
sales channel was approximately RMB160.4 million, representing a
notable increase of 54.2% from approximately RMB104.0 million for
2017. The operating loss of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2018 was approximately RMBO0.8 million as compared
with an operating profit of approximately RMB19.7 million in 2017.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the net loss of the Group
was approximately RMB1.2 million, as compared with a net profit of
approximately RMB19.2 million in 2017.

For further information on the operating performance of the Group,
please refer to the “Financial Review” section of this annual report.

ENEHHNERTZRR

AANERXRBIER(EE)ZERERA
Alxaa2m)zese((EE8]) @
EREREMARANLEWE AR (5
(EEEDHE T N\F+_A=+—
BIEFENKECFRERE -

EEeMAREAEEHEZE_T—N\F
+ A=+ BLEFENBREXTENA
ARBIGBIEE L R_ZFT—tFHH
HWARBE2642E B LEMN T £911.2% °
EHREMEXEENHARBI6048 8
T RZIFE—EFREBMHARK104.0
BB TTHEEERTH542% AEEEHZ
—E-NE+_A=+-BLLFEHS
REEBEERHOARBOSEE T M_T—
+tFRPEEFHHOARKIQOTEETT -

rEEBHE-_ZT—NF+_A=+—H
FTFEHBSFBEBEBOAARBI2ESE
LM E—EFRBHESFFAELHA
R¥E192BE T °

ARAEBEREXREFANEN 25
AEREHRENMEEEIE D -

FIER(RE)ERERAE ZE—I\FFH
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)

IEREE (R)

During the year under review, the Group continued to operate under
the value-chain-oriented business model, which enabled the Group
to control the cost of sales and operating costs at a sustainable level
for the year ended 31 December 2018.

Looking forward, we plan to focus on two areas to drive the strategic
directions to sustain and develop our business in the midst of a
volatile business environment. In the short run, the Group intends to
continue building up a management team with strong experience in
both domestic and global HPC sectors, to regain the sales growth
momentum and profitability, and to improve investors’ confidence on
the Group. In the long run, the Group will continue to focus on
strengthening the business model and positioning to acquire market
shares from domestic and international competitors, maintaining a
multi-brand and multi-product strategy in HPC sectors, and
becoming a leader in the branded Chinese herbal HPC products.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity to
express our gratitude to all shareholders, customers, suppliers,
banks, professional parties, and employees of the Group for their
continuous patronage and support.

CHEN Qiyuan
Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 March 2019

BaWang International (Group) Holding Limited Annual Report 2018
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWE D

Business Review

During the year under review, to enhance the sales of various
branded products, the Group carried out over 30 sales promotional
activities in the first half of 2018 known as “Nuclear Explosion”
specifically for the points of sales in 31 cities. During these sales
activities, extensive in-store promotional and publicity banners and
posters were hoisted to attract the customers’ attention. Additional
sales promoters were deployed to explain to the customers on the
benefits of doing hair care through traditional Chinese medicine.

In April 2018, the Group selected a popular creative singer, Mr Mao
Buyi, as our image and brand ambassador for Bawang branded
shampoo and hair care products. We made full use of the image of
the new brand ambassador to attract consumers attention via
television advertisements, and advertisements posted at public
transports, bus stops, residential lifts and the points of sales. During
the year under review, we were ranked one of the top 10 hair care
brands in China with a leading position in the anti-hair fall product
category in the online sales channel. We believe that the marketing
strategy for appointment of brand ambassador to act as key opinion
leader on internet has made an impact in the development of our
online sales channel.

v PR - ? s /B ; .
PP T
o 1 Al B TS

&

E3 Y EI L

REEFERN ATRESREEMN
HWE AEER _T—-N\FL¥FHE3N
BERTOHERESASERF T 25 &
BIHH[ZBRIRHES - EELIHE
BB AEEMRET KEHENRH
B WBHTRENEANES EEREM
B ARSIEERERE < s B
CHELHMHEARE MBETERTE
BEENTRE -

RZZE-NFHA AEEEFTEL
E'H/Eﬂ%/\zﬁ%z_%ﬁéﬁfﬂﬁuxéuuE’]l:u:l
MERKE A BT F AN @E
KEAEKKRSIBENIE D B8
EER WA AR - BFEHA
MBESANRNES b8 6 M) FOK B
BEBPRXRRUEXZFELHEESTImE -

REFEFERN RFRHERAT THESE
mEz— EOBREERBANEEHR

BRERREMA - HFIEE BFEmE
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al‘élv "“',_i-‘

FIER(RE)ERERAE ZE—I\FFH

09



Vo 2 #

Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
EEENWRD W (E)
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To further motivate the Group’s distributors and sales team, incentive
leisure travel scheme for the participating distributors and internal
staff members was offered for free to those who completed the
predetermined sales target for a specified period. During the year
under review, eligible staff members and distributors who participated
in the scheme travelled to five selected destinations.

During the year under review, we reviewed and re-structured the
Little King product series, which were mainly sold through the mother
and child channel alongside with Bawang ladies’ anti-hair fall hair
care products.

As at 31 December 2018, the Bawang brand distribution network
comprised approximately 753 distributors and 9 KA retailers, covering
27 provinces and four municipalities in China. Furthermore, the
Bawang branded products were also sold in Hong Kong, Singapore,
Thailand and Malaysia.

BaWang International (Group) Holding Limited Annual Report 2018
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
EEENWR DN (E)
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During the year under review, the Group continued to adopt the
marketing theme “Let’s chase for the wind rather than wait for the
wind” to promote new Royal Wind branded shampoo products
primarily for the online sales channel. As at 31 December 2018, the
Royal Wind brand distribution network comprised approximately 209
distributors and 9 KA retailers, covering 27 provinces and four
municipalities in China.

The Litao products mainly comprise shower gels and laundry
detergents, which target consumers living in the second-tier or third-
tier cities in China. The Group’s goal is to maintain the market
coverage in the traditional channel. As at 31 December 2018, the
Litao products distribution network comprised approximately 94
distributors and two KA retailers, covering 27 provinces and four
municipalities in China.

The Herborn Chinese herbal skincare product series targets white-
collar ladies in the age range from 25 to 45 who have relatively high
net incomes and who are dedicated to pursue a healthy and natural
lifestyle. We sold the products through our online sales channel and
staff or group purchase.

The Group has established 16 online retailing platforms in China for
our Bawang, Royal Wind and Herborn branded products, of which
two were established during the year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
BEEEFNRED (&)

For the year under review, we obtained and/or renewed and/or REIEFERXN  HMESSHTEENIFAE
possessed the certificates and/or recognitions as follows: N TEBEERARE

J 3R E S AN T o

o

HE (M) ARAI:

ZRY, RARAM T HBRR TR L 201%E¢EHQHFM

F PR 2018 EWINEA FRBHER R0 ﬁu?ﬁ%iﬁﬁﬂ%
HEXT: BHEH (2018) 195, '\\ «m» HIRAS
BEHW: =ZF,

— a patent of an ingredient mixture for an anti-hair fall Chinese — RZ_ZZT—N\FA EZMEEST —
herbal shampoo and its manufacturing know-how, which was EHEXANBEERBREN -2
issued by the State Intellectual Property Office of China in June REmEBAEY HEKEKERE
2018; FEINBERENES

—  three Bawang branded series shampoos were again recognised — BTF R -AZIEREHFHER
as “The 2018 New High-Tech Products in Guangdong” by the EREREMEREARI201IBFERE
Guangdong Provincial Science and Technology Bureau in SHMRMER] AR R=FNH
December 2018 for a period of three years until the end of E-E-—FK:

2021;

— our Chinese herbal skincare series shampoo and hair care — RN PEEZEZEZ XA EZER
products and shower gel products have been recognised as “New ERMEERINAABELHERERSE
Hi-tech Products of Guangdong Province” (& & & & i E @) BBt ERETAIERESH
by the Guangdong Provincial New Hi-tech Enterprise BiMER] AR A=FE_2_
Association for a period of three years until the end of 2020; TFEK

— the permit for production of cosmetic products, which was — EXREBEHEREBEERBEEN
issued by Guangdong Provincial Food and Drug Administration, b GEEFITES  AUHER
is valid until May 2021; —E-—FHA:

—  our production process for haircare and skincare products has — HfiEEZEEERNEERE RS
been certified by SGS with a validity period until July 2019 as to TSCSHEMIM ESEXHR M
meet the requirements of US FDA CFSAN by reference to ZrEEPOLOBBEEEmRITEE
Cosmetic Good Manufacturing Practices (GMP) Guidelines 35 #(GMP)2008 H R 78 » A E =
2008; “E-NAFtAH:

12 BaWang International (Group) Holding Limited Annual Report 2018



Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
BEEEFNRED (&)

— our production process for haircare and skincare products has — R fiEZEEEZEEEMNEELRIER
been certified by SGS with a validity period until July 2019 as to B TSGSH R B S EEE
meet the requirements of 1S022716 by reference to Cosmetic EEBEAB LR EEREESD
Good Manufacturing Practices (GMP) Guidelines 2007; 1ISO22716 : 2007 & B 1t A & B 4F &

ERBGCMPRE ARHEHZ_F
—nEFELA:

—  Bawang online flagship store was awarded “The 2018 Store — F K% T HEE /EE R BB m A%
Growth Prize (2018/% & $#X & #%)” by JD.com (REET); B20184F & JE 4 Ak & 5%

— the Group was awarded the “The 2018 Innovative Marketing —— 7N B (= & 3 48 2 092018 F &
Enterprise of China’s Trendy Industry Award” by Xinxi News ({5 RS EEAFESEOEE M
B FF#R); and

— our marketing and publicity animation series “Herbal Fairytale” — F A ZHEEE 2 R EE S
was awarded “The 2018 Entertainable IP Marketing 5S Golden HIBCBEE X)MER TI2018F E
Prize” by the Advertiser Magazine. IREE|P A S KN BEE6S & £ ] -

T A YR
R 7/\?5? 5y L e
n ‘3&4 DY /1)

A I

FIER(RE)ERERAE ZE—I\FFH 13
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
BEEEFNRED (&)

14

Key Risks and Uncertainties

Apart from those stated in the Chairman’s Statement and
Management Discussion and Analysis sections, the Company is
exposed to the following key risks and uncertainties which are
required to be disclosed pursuant to the Companies Ordinance (Cap.
622 of the Laws of Hong Kong).

1.

Risks Relating to Our Industry

In recent years, it is common for the Mainland manufacturing
enterprises to face continuous rising labour costs and difficulties
in employing skilled labour. Our Group’s responding strategy is
to reduce the production costs.

Credit Risks Relating to Customers

Exposure to bad debts attributable to customers usually
intensifies following a weak economic performance. To minimize
credit risks, the management of the Group has appointed
dedicated staff members to handle procedures for determining
credit limits, credit approval and other monitoring procedures,
to ensure that follow-up actions with all receivables are taken in
a timely manner. In addition, the Group reviews the collectibility
of receivables at the end of a reporting period, to ensure that
sufficient impairment losses are provided for in respect of
uncollectible monies. For the year ended 31 December 2018,
no bad debts were recorded by the Group.

Liquidity Risks

In managing liquidity risks, the Group monitors and maintains
cash and cash equivalents at a level which is considered by the
management as sufficient, to satisfy the needs arising from the
Group’s operations and to mitigate the effect of fluctuations of
cash flow. The Group’s management will continue to closely
monitor the use of cash.

BaWang International (Group) Holding Limited Annual Report 2018
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

BEENWR DM (&)

4. Currency Risks

Sales to overseas countries denominated in foreign currencies
expose the Group to foreign exchange risks. The Group closely
manages and monitors foreign exchange risks to ensure that
appropriate measures are taken in a timely manner. The Group
will consider using hedging in respect of foreign currencies to
mitigate relevant risks as and when appropriate.

Environmental Protection

The Group is responsible for its impact to the environment arising
from its business operations. During the year under review, the Group
strictly complied with the local environmental regulations of the PRC.
The production of household and personal care products belongs to
the light industry, thus no pollutants are involved during the
manufacturing process and adverse impact to the surrounding
environment is minimal. The Group has been investing and
implementing various energy conservation projects in recent years, in
which overall power consumption has drastically reduced.

Business Compliance

During the year under review, the Group has complied with the
relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the
Group.

Relationship with Employees, Customers and
Suppliers

The Group adopts an employee-oriented approach, which ensures
that all staff members are reasonably remunerated. To retain a quality
workforce, we strive to regularly improve, review and update our
human resources policy and our compensation and benefits. We also
provide training opportunities to upgrade the skills of our staff
members. We also care for the occupational health and safety of our
workers.

4. RWRRE
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

BEEERN W R DN (&)

The Group’s major customers are categorised into four channels,
namely traditional distributors, B2B corporate clients, key account
hypermarkets and supermarkets, and online sales (including online
official flagship stores and distributors). The credit terms granted to
major customers are 30 to 90 days, which are in line with those of
the credit terms granted to other customers.

The Group maintains a good relationship with its customers. We have
put in place procedures for handling customer complaints to receive
and analyse the customers’ complaints and make recommendations
on remedial actions with a view to improving service quality.

The Group is in good relationship with its suppliers and conducts a
fair and strict appraisal of its suppliers on an annual basis.

Financial Review

Revenue

During the year under review, the Group’s revenue from operations
amounted to approximately RMB293.9 million, representing an
increase of approximately 11.2% from approximately RMB264.2
million for 2017. The revenue through the online sales channel had a
notable increase of approximately 54.2% as compared with 2017,
but such increase was partially offset by the decrease in the
aggregate revenue generated from the traditional sales channels.

The Group’s core brand, Bawang, generated approximately
RMB271.2 million in revenue, which accounted for approximately
92.3% of the Group’s total revenue by product category in 2018, and
represented an increase of approximately 18.2% as compared with
2017.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

BEENWR DM (&)

The branded Chinese herbal anti-dandruff hair-care series, Royal
Wind, generated approximately RMB8.5 million in revenue, which
accounted for approximately 2.9% of the Group’s total revenue by
product category in 2018, and represented a decrease of approximately
42.2% as compared with 2017.

The natural-based branded shampoo, shower gel and laundry
detergent products series, Litao, generated approximately RMB9.0
million in revenue, which accounted for approximately 3.1% of the
Group’s total revenue by product category in 2018, and represented
a decrease of approximately 26.8% as compared with 2017.

The branded Chinese herbal skincare series, Herborn, generated
approximately RMB4.2 million in revenue, which accounted for
approximately 1.4% of the Group’s total revenue by product category
in 2018, and represented a decrease of approximately 19.2% as
compared with 2017.

We also sold our products through extensive distribution and retail
networks. During the year under review, sales to our distributors and
retailers represented approximately 54.4% and approximately 45.6%
of the Group’s total revenue from operations respectively.

In 2018, our products were also sold in Hong Kong, Singapore,
Thailand and Malaysia. The sales to these overseas markets
accounted for approximately 2.4% of our total revenue in 2018.

Cost of Sales

Cost of sales in 2018 amounted to approximately RMB156.4 million,
representing an increase of approximately 14.2% compared with
approximately RMB136.9 million in 2017. Such increase was mainly
due to the increase in packaging materials consumed and
manufacturing expenses, which was partially offset by a decrease in
the costs of raw materials.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

BEEERN W R DN (&)

Gross Profit

During the year under review, the Group’s gross profit increased to
approximately RMB137.5 million, representing an increase of
approximately 8.0% as compared with approximately RMB127.3
million for 2017. The gross profit margin decreased from
approximately 48.2% for 2017 to approximately 46.8% for 2018.
Such decrease was mainly attributable to the increase in cost of
sales.

Other Income

During the year under review, other income decreased to RMB3.1
million, representing a decrease of 78.2% compared with RMB14.2
million in 2017. Such decrease was mainly due to the decrease in
both government grants received and the write-back of provisions for
trade receivables and payables.

Selling and Distribution Costs

Selling and distribution costs increased to approximately RMB113.4
million for 2018, representing an increase of approximately 21.0% as
compared to that for 2017. Such increase was mainly due to the
increase in promotion expenses through online sales platforms and
the increase in logistics and delivery expenses that resulted from the
notable increase in sales volume through the online sales channel,
but such increase was partially offset by the decrease in outsourced
labour costs, salaries and travelling expenses. As a percentage of
revenue, our selling and distribution costs increased from
approximately 35.5% in 2017 to 38.6% in 2018.

Administrative Expenses

Administrative expenses for 2018 amounted to approximately
RMB25.8 million, representing a decrease of approximately 7.5% as
compared with approximately RMB27.9 million in 2017. Such
decrease was mainly due to the decreases in travelling expenses,
entertainment expenses and net foreign exchange losses. As a
percentage of revenue, our administration costs were approximately
8.8% and 10.5% in 2018 and 2017 respectively.
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Recognition of Impairment Loss

During the year under review, the Group recognised an impairment
loss of approximately RMB2.2 million in respect of trade receivables
which was mainly attributable to by long aged trade debts due from
traditional distributors and retailers.

Loss from Operations

The Group recorded an operating loss of approximately RMB1.2
million for 2018, as compared with an operating profit of
approximately RMB19.7 million for 2017, which was mainly because
of (1) increase from packaging materials consumed and
manufacturing expenses, which resulted in an increase in cost of
sales; (2) the investments into promotional activities to further develop
the Group’s online sales channel, which led to a substantial increase
in promotion expenses and logistics costs arising from sales through
this channel; (3) decrease in other income; and (4) the impairment of
trade receivables.

Finance Costs

For the year ended 31 December 2018, interest on bank borrowings
amounted to approximately RMBO0.4 million (2017: RMBO0.5 million).

Taxation

During the year ended 31 December 2018, there was no income tax
expense for the Group (2017: RMB4,000).

Loss for the Year

As a result of the combined effect of the above mentioned factors,
the Group recorded a loss of approximately RMB1.2 million for 2018,
as compared with a profit of approximately RMB19.2 million for 2017.

Loss for the Year Attributable to Owners of the
Company

As a result of the combined effect of the above factors, the Group
recorded a loss attributable to owners of the Company of
approximately RMB1.2 million for 2018, as compared with a profit
attributable to owners of the Company of approximately RMB19.2
million for 2017.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
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Purchase, Sale or Redemption of the Company’s
Listed Securities

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year
under review.

Events After the Reporting Period

The Directors are not aware of any significant event requiring
disclosure that has taken place subsequent to 31 December 2018
and up to the date of this report.

Outlook

The International Monetary Fund (“IMF”) projected China’s gross
domestic product (“GDP”) growth to stand at 6.2% for 2019.
Domestic demand was also estimated to remain robust, aided by
policies to boost consumption in 2019. However, industrial
production and new export orders have moderated, asset prices
have experienced downward pressure and sovereign bond spreads
have risen amid trade tensions. Prices of newly constructed
residential buildings have rebounded, including in first-tier cities
following a period of correction.

The actual China’s year-on-year GDP growth reached 6.6% in 2018,
which is in line with its growth target. An economist from Beijing
stated that with the magnitude and size of the GDP at present, this
kind of rate is already very impressive. So, it is extremely important
for China to maintain GDP growth to be above six percent through
continuous reform, opening-up of its market and trade with more
countries.

IMF indicated at an economic forum that the world economy is
growing more slowly than expected, risks are rising and the
expansion seen in recent years is losing momentum, which calls for
policymakers to collaborate to address global risks. To
counterbalance the loss of momentum of the world economy which
may be triggered by the trade tension between China and the US, an
economist is of the view that China should continue its reform and
opening-up and continue to support the world economy.

The Directors tend to be cautious about the future of Chinese
economy when formulating the business strategy of the Group.
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The corporate theme for 2019 is “To stress on execution of plans, the
paramount objective is to sell”.

For Bawang branded product series, the Group will strengthen its
marketing and product strategies to develop the segment of the
younger generation, particularly for anti-hair fall products. Apart from
designing trendy and colourful bundled products with lively
promotional and publicity materials to attract the young customers,
the Group will develop a new animated character series for launch
through smart phones APPs to create a younger brand image. We
will give out tailor-made freebies which appeal to young customers.
Through Internet and social media, the Group will make use of
popular webhosts as key opinion leaders to communicate the
concept of doing haircare through traditional Chinese medicine so as
to educate young customers on the importance of taking
precautionary steps for anti-hair fall while they are young. We intend
to develop the university students market segment. To communicate
the Bawang brand concepts to them, to enhance their brand
awareness and to arouse their interest in our branded products, we
plan to give out prizes in advertising arts for creative brand building
for the university students in China. We will also create key visual
graphic publicity materials which serve to positively reinforce the
customers’ memory and recognition of our brands.

For Royal Wind branded product series, the Group has always
promoted its brand image to cater for the trendy lifestyle of young
customers. The Group will re-design and re-package new hair care
products and fragrance shower gels for sales through the exclusive
zones inside the contracted supermarkets.

For conventional channels, the Group will take a cautious approach
to invest in the development and maintenance of the relationship with
channel partners. On retailer channel, the Group will concentrate its
efforts to enhance the sales through rolling out new products into the
shops by stages and we will terminate the cooperation with those
loss-making retailers. On distributor channel, the Group will reframe
the major accounts in the distribution network with a view to
minimizing the operating loss in this channel. On traditional channel,
the Group intends to roll out shower gel and laundry detergent on top
of hair care products to enhance the sales in this channel with a view
to maintaining the number of point of sales and the overall size of this
channel.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
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As to the online sales channel, the Group has achieved significant
sales growth over the past few years. The Group understands that
we may have to make substantial marketing efforts to achieve a
significant rate of growth in 2019 given the current size of this
channel. The Group intends to integrate the following three aspects
into one: online channel, brand name, and media, for creating an
impact on the enhancement of sales revenue through this channel.

For production management, having established a disciplined and an
efficient manufacturing environment, we intend to leverage on our
management skills, advanced production equipment, and spare
production facilities and capacities for developing an original
equipment manufacturer (OEM) business for other companies. We
believe that this OEM business would generate additional revenue for
the Group.

As part of the business expansion plan, the Group will continue to
explore the possibility with potential distributors for launching our
branded products to other countries. The Group is open to explore
further business opportunities with potential overseas distributors.

As of the date of this announcement, the Group does not have any
outstanding acquisition opportunity on hand, nor is actively exploring
business opportunities that may involve potential acquisition.
However, the Group is open to potential investment opportunities.

Looking forward, we plan to focus on two areas to drive the strategic
directions to sustain and develop our business in the volatile
economic environment. In the short run, the Group intends to
continue building up a management team with strong experience in
both domestic and global HPC sectors, to regain the sales growth
momentum and profitability, and to improve investors’ confidence in
the Group. In the long run, the Group will continue to focus on
strengthening the business model and positioning to acquire market
shares from domestic and international competitors, maintaining a
multi-brand and multi-product strategy in HPC sectors, and
becoming a leader in the branded Chinese herbal HPC products.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
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Liquidity, Financial Resources and Capital MEES HREREEKREE
Structure

The Group adopts conservative financial management policies and ZARNEEIK B R STHIE R I 435 B 4F
maintains a good and solid financial position. A summary of liquidity B FEK M EikN - HEE o M K E R

and financial resources is set out below: BEAFWT -
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
+=ZA=+—-HB +ZA=+—H
RMB in million RMB in million

[
ARBEER ARBBSTT

Cash and cash equivalents HeRREZEY 65.5 46.1
Total loans B 12.6 —
Total assets BEE 283.2 298.4
The gearing ratio’ BEEBEX 4.3% —
Note: i
1. Calculate as total loans divided by total assets 1. EEBBRIRERBEERINVEELBETE
Material Acquisition and Disposal ERKBEREHE

The Group did not engage in any material acquisition or disposal of AEOIEEE  NEB W EE AUWE L
any of its subsidiaries or associates during the year under review. EHMBRBESATIREE -
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24

Ve

Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

BEENWR DM (&)

Exposure to Fluctuations in Exchange Rates and
Hedging

The operations of the Group are mainly carried out in China, with
most transactions being settled in Renminbi. The reporting currency
of the Group is Renminbi. During the year under review, the Group
had exported its goods to Hong Kong and certain overseas countries.
The transactions were settled in either Hong Kong Dollars or United
States Dollars. The Group’s cash and bank deposits are mostly
denominated in Renminbi. The Company will pay dividends in Hong
Kong Dollars if dividends are declared. In addition, the Group paid
certain advertising fees in United States Dollars or Hong Kong Dollars.
The Directors are of the view that the Group conducts its business
transactions principally in Renminbi and thus the exchange risk at the
Group’s operational level is not significant. As at 31 December 2018,
the Group had not issued any material financial instruments or
entered into any material contracts for foreign currency hedging
purposes. However, the Directors will continue to monitor the foreign
exchange exposure and are prepared to take prudent measures such
as hedging when required.

Contingent Liabilities

The Group had no material contingent liabilities as at 31 December
2018.

Capital Commitment

As at 31 December 2018, the capital commitment of the Group
amounted to approximately RMBO0.3 million.

Charge of Assets

As at 31 December 2018, buildings with carrying values of
approximately RMB3.4 million (2017: nil) were pledged to secure
banking facilities granted to the Group. As at 31 December 2018,
banking facilities of approximately RMB12.6 million were utilised and

approximately RMB67.4 million were unutilised and available for the
Group’s future financing.
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Distributable Reserves

Pursuant to applicable statutory provisions of the Cayman Islands,
the Company had no reserves available for distribution to the
shareholders as at 31 December 2018 (2017: Nil).

Inventories

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had inventories of approximately
RMB39.6 million, representing a decrease of approximately 16.8%
compared with approximately RMB47.6 million for 2017. Such
decrease was primarily due to the decrease of sales return from KA
channel and the decrease of inventories from Herborn and Little King
Products.

The Group adopts a prudent approach in valuing its inventory. The
Group continuously monitors the inventory levels of its different raw
materials, packaging materials and finished goods, and based on
feedback from the sales force on the various product lines and sales
figures, the management regularly identifies the inventory levels of
individual inventory items to determine whether there is any slow
moving or obsolete items or finished goods. On this basis, the
management will devise actions to be taken in relation to such
inventory prior to their obsolescence, and/or whether provision
should be made.

Trade Receivables

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had trade receivables of
approximately RMB30.7 million, representing a decrease of
approximately 26.0% compared with approximately RMB41.5 million
for 2017. Such decrease was primarily due to the decrease in sales
through KA channel, but such decrease was partially offset by the
increase of trade receivables from online channel.

Some of the Group’s sales are made on credit, trade receivables are
resulted when the goods and titles have been delivered and passed,
respectively. The management regularly reviews the credit quality of
the Group’s customers and their partners to evaluate whether
provision should be made.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
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Trade and Other Payables

As at 31 December 2018, the trade and other payables of the Group
was approximately RMB81.4 million (2017: RMB117.4 million). The
decrease was primarily due to reclassification of certain payables to
refund liabilities and contract liabilities once adopted IFRS 15. For the
two years ended 31 December 2018, trade and other payables did
not include any balances due to related parties.

Human Resources

To provide incentive to the employees of the Group, the Group is
committed to staff training and development under any economic
circumstances. The Group maintains a good relationship with its
employees. The Group will continue to invest in our human capital so
as to retain a quality workforce to achieve our organisational goal.

In 2018, the Group organised various in-house training classes to
strengthen the soft skills of our staff members such as time
management, stress management, and leadership development.
Apart from these in-house courses, the Group also required our
department managers to attend external courses on reward and
compensation, and motivation, we required our senior sales and
marketing staff to attend brand positioning strategy course, and we
required our finance and accounting staff members to attend
seminars about the latest legislative/regulatory compliance,
accounting standards, taxation practices and budgetary control.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group employed approximately 626
employees (31 December 2017: 1,127), consisting of full-time
employees and contract personnel in the PRC and Hong Kong. The
total personnel expenses, comprising wages, salaries and benefits,
amounted to RMB47.7 million for 2018 (31 December 2017:
RMB53.0 million).
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

BEENWR DM (&)

The following table sets forth a breakdown of the total headcount of
our employees and outsourcing personnel as at 31 December 2018
and 2017:

TREIWR=ZFE-N\F+=ZA=+—H

NZZE—+F+_A=+—BHMDNE

EERINBEABERRAM :

31 December 31 December

2018
—E-N\F —%

+t=ZA=+—-8B +ZHA=+—H

Full-time employees 2RES 191 185
Contract personnel AHEE
— Sales persons —{28H B 108 547
— Others — Hh 327 395
Total employees HWEBS AH 626 1,127

The employees’ remuneration, promotion and salary review are
based on individual job responsibilities, work performances,
professional experiences and the prevailing industry practices.

Our employees in the PRC and Hong Kong join social insurance
contribution plans and mandatory provident fund scheme
respectively. Other benefits include performance-based incentive
bonus scheme and share options granted or to be granted under the
share option schemes.

The Directors believe that the Group’s human resources policies play
a crucial part in the further development of the Group. Promising
career prospects, good staff remuneration and benefits as well as
pleasant working environment are essential factors for maintenance
of a stable workforce for the Group.
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Corporate Governance Report
TEERBRS

The Corporate Governance Code and the
Corporate Governance Report

The Company is committed to enhancing the corporate governance
of the Group, and the Board reviews and updates all such necessary
measures in order to promote good corporate governance.

The Board is of the view that the Company has complied with the
applicable code provisions of the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG
Code”) as contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Listing Rules”) for the year ended 31 December 2018, except for
the deviations as stated below.

On 22 November 2017, Mr. LI Bida (“Mr. Li”), a former independent
non-executive director of the Company (“INED”), the former chairman
of the remuneration committee, a former member of the nomination
committee and the audit and risk management committee of the
Company, passed away due to ill health. Following this event, the
Board comprised five directors, including three executive directors
and two INEDs.

Pursuant to Rule 3.10(1) of the Listing Rules, the number of INEDs
should not fall below the minimum number of three and therefore, the
Company was not in compliance with Rule 3.10(1) of the Listing
Rules. Furthermore, the vacancy for chairman of the remuneration
committee does not fulfil the requirement that the chairman of the
remuneration committee is to be chaired by an INED under Rule 3.25
of the Listing Rules, and the requirement that the majority of the
nomination committee members must be INEDs pursuant to A.5.1 of
the CG Code. Moreover, the number of audit and risk management
committee members decreased from three to two, falling below the
minimum number required under Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules.
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With effect from 14 February 2018, Mr. CHEUNG Kin Wing, an INED,
was appointed as the chairman of the remuneration committee and a
member of the nomination committee of the Company. Following the
above committee appointments, the Company re-complied with Rule
3.25 of the Listing Rules and A.5.1 of the CG Code. With effect from
17 April 2018, Dr. WANG Qi was appointed as an INED and a
member of the audit and risk management committee of the
Company. Following the appointment of Dr. Wang, the Company re-
complied with Rule 3.10(1) and Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules.

Further details in respect of the past non-compliances and current
composition of the Board may be found in the announcements of the
Company dated 30 November 2017, 14 February 2018, 22 February
2018, 13 March 2018 and 17 April 2018.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct
regarding securities transactions by the Directors. Having made
specific enquiry with the Directors, all Directors have confirmed that
they have complied with the required standard set out in the Model
Code throughout the year under review.

Board of Directors

As at 31 December 2018, the Board comprised six members,
including the Chairman, Mr. CHEN Qiyuan, the Chief Executive
Officer, Mr. CHEN Zheng He (the “CEQ”), the Chief Financial Officer
and three independent non-executive Directors. Biographical details
of the Directors are set out in the section headed Directors and
Senior Management on pages 60 to 64 of this annual report.

The Board is responsible for approving and monitoring the Group’s
strategies and policies, approving annual budgets and business
plans, evaluating the performance of the Group and supervising the
work of management. The management is responsible for the daily
operations of the Group under the leadership of the CEO.
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The Board has delegated a schedule of responsibilities to the
executive Directors and senior management of the Company. These
responsibilities include implementing decisions of the Board and
directing and co-ordinating day-to-day operation and management of
the Group. The Board reviews these arrangements periodically to
ensure such arrangements remain appropriate to the Group’s needs.

On 22 November 2017, Mr. LI Bida, an independent non-executive
Director, passed away and ceased to be an independent non-
executive Director, the chairman of the Remuneration Committee and
a member of the Nomination Committee and the Audit and Risk
Management Committee. As a result, the Company only had two
independent non-executive Directors, and the compositions of its
Board, the Audit and Risk Management Committee, the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee fell below
the applicable requirements under the Listing Rules and/or the
applicable code provisions of the Corporate Governance Code.

On 14 February 2018, Mr. CHEUNG Kin Wing, INED of the Company,
was appointed as the chairman of the Remuneration Committee and
a member of the Nomination Committee of the Company.
Notwithstanding such appointment, the Company only had two
independent non-executive Directors and the Audit and Risk
Management Committee only has two members, which did not
comply with the applicable requirements under Rules 3.10(1) and 3.21
of the Listing Rules.

The Company had applied to The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) for, and the Stock Exchange had
granted to the Company, a waiver from strict compliance with Rules
3.10(1) and 3.21 of the Listing Rules during the period from 22
February 2018 to 22 May 2018.

On 17 April 2018, the Company appointed Dr. WANG Qi as INED of
the Company and a member of the Audit and Risk Management
Committee. The Company has re-complied with Rules 3.10(1) and 3.21
of the Listing Rules on the same date.

To satisfy the independence requirement of the INEDs, the Board
must determine that the independent non-executive Director does
not have any direct or indirect material relationship with the Group.
The Board follows the requirements set out in the Listing Rules to
determine the independence of Directors. Independent non-executive
Directors are appointed for a term of 3 years.
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The roles of the Chairman and the CEO are separated in order to
reinforce their independence and accountability. Except that the
CEO, Mr. CHEN Zheng He, is the son of Mr. CHEN Qiyuan, the
Directors are not otherwise related to each other.

The Board held seven meetings in 2018. Each of Mr. CHEN Qiyuan,
Mr. CHEN Zheng He, Mr. WONG Sin Yung, Dr. NGAI Wai Fung, and
Mr. CHEUNG Kin Wing attended all meetings. Dr. WANG Qi attended
five meetings which were held after his appointment on 17 April
2018.

The Company has adopted the nomination policy (the “Nomination
Policy”) and the board diversity policy (the “Diversity Policy”) as
required by the Corporate Governance Code and the Listing Rules,
respectively, and has taken into account the diversity of the Board
when selecting the candidates from a number of perspectives as
stated in the Diversity Policy as published on the Company’s
webpage.

Nomination Policy

Either the secretary or the chairman of the Nomination Committee
shall call a meeting of the Nomination Committee, and may invite
nominations of candidates from the Board members, if any, for the
Nomination Committee to consider prior to its meeting. The
Nomination Committee may also nominate candidate(s) who are not
nominated by any member of the Board. For filling a casual vacancy,
the Nomination Committee shall make recommendation(s) for the
consideration and approval of the Board. For proposing candidate(s)
to stand for election at a general meeting, the Nomination Committee
shall make nominations to the Board for its consideration and
recommendation to the shareholders of the Company for approval.

In order to provide information on the candidate(s) nominated by the
Board for election at a shareholders’ general meeting, and to invite
nominations from the shareholders, a circular will be sent to the
shareholders in accordance with the requirements under the Listing
Rules. The relevant circular will at a minimum set out such information
about each proposed candidate, as required under the applicable
laws, rules and regulations, the Company’s constitutional documents
and the Listing Rules. A shareholder may serve a notice to the
Company Secretary within the lodgment period of its intention to
propose a resolution to elect a certain person as a director without
the Board’s recommendation or the Nomination Committee’s
nomination. The particulars of the proposed candidates will be sent
to all shareholders for information by a supplementary circular.
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In assessing the suitability of a potential candidate, the Nomination
Committee would consider factors, including but not limited to,
candidate’s personal integrity and character, accomplishment and
experience that are relevant to the Group’s business, diversity of the
Board in accordance with the Diversity Policy.

Diversity Policy

In achieving diversity of the Board, a number of aspects of each
director candidate will be considered, including but not limited to
gender, cultural and educational background, ethnicity, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of services. All Board
appointment will be based on meritocracy, and the candidates will be
considered based on the objective criteria as set out in this policy
having due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board. The
Nomination Committee will monitor the implementation of the
Diversity Policy and has followed the Nomination Policy and the
Diversity Policy in the nomination of the new Director(s), including the
appointment of new independent non-executive Director(s).

Dividend Policy

The Company has adopted a dividend policy (the “Dividend Policy”),
pursuant to which, the decision to declare a dividend or a distribution
will be at the discretion of the Board. The Company intends to
declare dividends to shareholders semi-annually in an aggregate
amount per year not exceeding 30% of the anticipated consolidated
net annual profits and may declare special dividends from time to
time in addition to interim or final dividends. In deciding whether to
propose a dividend and in determining the dividend amount, the
Board shall take into account (including but not limited to) the
Group’s operations and earnings, development needs, cash flow,
financial condition, capital and other reserve requirements and
surplus, contractual and financial restrictions and any other conditions
or factors which the Board considers relevant and having regard to
the directors’ fiduciary duties. While sharing the profit with
shareholders, the Company shall also maintain sufficient reserves to
ensure the implementation of the Group’s strategy for development.

The payment of dividend is also subject to any restrictions under the
laws of Cayman Islands, the Listing Rules, the laws of Hong Kong,
the memorandum and articles of association of the Company and
those laws, regulations and memorandum and articles of association
to which the subsidiaries of the Group are subject.
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The Divided Policy will continue to be reviewed from time to time and
there can be no assurance that a dividend will be proposed or
declared in any specific periods.

Update on Directors’ Information

Dr. NGAI Wai Fung, an independent non-executive Director of the
Company, ceased to be a member of the Qualification and
Examination Board of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and an independent non-executive director of HKBridge
Financial Holdings Limited (02323).

Remuneration of Directors and Chief Executive

Details of the remuneration of each Director and the Chief Executive
for the year ended 31 December 2018 are set out in note 15 to the
consolidated financial statements. Other than the Directors and the
Chief Executive, there is no other member of senior management.

Directors’ Training

Under Code Provision A.6.5 of the Corporate Governance Code,
directors should participate in appropriate continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to
ensure that their contribution to the Board remains informed and
relevant. Internally facilitated briefings for directors are arranged and
reading materials on relevant topics are issued to Directors where
appropriate. All Directors are encouraged to attend relevant training
courses at the Company’s expenses.

As of 31 December 2018, all Directors (being Mr. CHEN Qiyuan, Mr.
CHEN Zheng He, Mr. WONG Sin Yung, Dr. NGAI Wai Fung, Mr.
CHEUNG Kin Wing and Dr. WANG Qi (from 17 April 2018)) received
regular updates on the Group’s business, operations, risk
management and corporate governance matters, and participated in
the directors’ training offered by professional bodies and/or arranged
by the Company. Materials on new or changes to salient laws and
regulations applicable to the Group were provided to the Directors.
Directors are requested to provide their records of training they
received to the Company Secretary for record and annual review by
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Nomination Committee. During the year under review, the Directors
received an aggregate of approximately 221 hours of training in
various fields with a breakdown as follows:

2018 Directors’ Training by Topic
2018 F EEFIEE

XBIONEEAEFEARERZES
MEERHN ROBFERN EFEEX
HEtwe21/ ) r)F @R F - A
SI7RE0N

Hong Kong Financial Economy/ Business

Legislative/  Director’s Reporting/  Financial Management/
Average per person: Regulatory Duties/ESG Taxation/Risk Markets Investor
approximately 37 hours Compliance Practices Management Updates Relationship Others®

BREN, EBBE
EEREN BRR HF

BB ®mE BB

B S®WMWE 2 EBEERS

AT Q87T By REREIR B R B REEBRE Ha?
Executive Director HITES

Mr. CHEN Qiyuan FoR BAR o A v v v v v v
Mr. CHEN Zheng He [ IE %8 56 4 v v v v v v
Mr. WONG SinYung EER &4 v v v v v v
INEDs BIUKHITES

Dr. NGAI Wai Fung MEEE AL v v v v v v
Mr. CHEUNG Kin Wing 3R & 28 5t 4 v v v v v

Dr. WANG Qi FHiE L v v v v

1. Dr. WANG Qi was appointed as Independent Non-executive Director on 17 April 2018.

2. Include topics such as scientific research and development, social development and
education, and information technology.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprises our executive Director, Mr.
CHEN Zheng He, and our two INEDs, Mr. CHEUNG Kin Wing and Dr.
NGAI Wai Fung. Mr. CHEUNG Kin Wing is the chairperson of the
Remuneration Committee since 14 February 2018. The primary
duties of the Remuneration Committee are to make recommendation
to the Board on the overall remuneration policy and structure relating
to all Directors and senior management of our Group, review
performance based remuneration and ensures that none of our
Directors determine their own remuneration. If necessary, the
Remuneration Committee will have access to independent advice.
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The Remuneration Committee held two meetings in 2018. Each of
Mr. CHEN Zheng He, Mr. CHEUNG Kin Wing and Dr. NGAI Wai Fung
attended the said meeting.

During the meeting, the Remuneration Committee discussed the
remuneration structure of the Directors.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee comprises our executive Director, Mr.
CHEN Qiyuan, and our two independent non-executive Directors, Mr.
CHEUNG Kin Wing and Dr. NGAI Wai Fung. Mr. CHEN Qiyuan is the
chairperson of the Nomination Committee. The primary duties of the
Nomination Committee are to review the structure, size and
composition of the Board and to make recommendations to the
Board regarding candidates to fill vacancies on the Board and the re-
election of Directors.

The Nomination Committee held six meetings in 2018. During the
meetings, the committee members reviewed the senior management
structure of the Group and the re-election of Directors and also
considered the candidates for filling the vacancy of an INED created
by the passing away of Mr. LI Bida. All committee members attended
the said meetings.

Audit and Risk Management Committee

As at 31 December 2018, the Audit and Risk Management
Committee comprises three independent non-executive Directors,
two of whom possess the appropriate business and financial
experience and skills to understand the accounts of the Group. The
Audit and Risk Management Committee is chaired by Dr. NGAI Wai
Fung and the other members are Mr. CHEUNG Kin Wing and Dr.
WANG Q.

The written terms of reference which describes the authority and
duties of the Audit and Risk Management Committee were prepared
and adopted in accordance with the Listing Rules. The Audit and
Risk Management Committee is required, amongst other things, to
oversee the relationship with the external auditors, to review the
Group’s interim and annual results, to review the scope, extent and
effectiveness of risk management and internal control systems of the
Group, to review accounting policies and practices adopted by the
Group, to engage independent legal or other advisers as it determines
necessary and to perform investigations.
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TRER®RE (B)

During the year, the Audit and Risk Management Committee has
performed the following:

— met with the external auditor to discuss the general scope and
findings of their annual audit and interim review work;

— reviewed and recommended to the Board for approval of the
external auditor’s remuneration;

— made recommendations to the Board on the reappointment of
the external auditor;

— reviewed the external auditor’'s independence, objectivity and
the effectiveness of the auditing process;

— reviewed the annual and interim reports and annual and interim
results announcements of the Company;

— reviewed the effectiveness and the implementation of the
Group’s internal audit and risk management function;

— discussed auditing, internal control, risk management and
financial reporting matters of the Company before
recommending them to the Board for approval; and

— reviewed the connected transactions entered into by the Group.

The Audit and Risk Management Committee has reviewed the annual
report with the management and the external auditors and
recommended its adoption by the Board.

All issues raised by the external auditor and the Audit and Risk
Management Committee have been addressed by the senior
management of the Company. The work and findings of the Audit
and Risk Management Committee have been reported to the Board.
During the year, no issues were brought to the attention of the senior
management of the Company and the Board of sufficient significance
for disclosure in this annual report.

The Audit and Risk Management Committee held four meetings in
2018. Each of Dr. NGAI Wai Fung and Mr. CHEUNG Kin Wing had
attended all four meetings and Dr. WANG Qi attended two meetings
which were held after his appointment on 17 April 2018.

BaWang International (Group) Holding Limited Annual Report 2018

EXAFERN ExhkRAREEZE
T7T FHIBEITE:

il

"
— BN ERZEE A R FEREAS
HEMTIEN —REBBMNER

- RIANEERBOHEVTZEZEEES
%um&,

- BENZTINEZBRMER ME
EERLER

— RAIIEZBEIANELM FEM
MAZ B FF oA M IE

— FBHARAFERSE M HRE A
NREEMPBMEERSE

- ﬁﬁ$%§ﬁ%%?&ﬂﬁ"ﬁm
DRERN B IE A BT

- BMARFAEZR AMEE AR
B EMPEREEIEA K m+

e T AR EREIT R

— FHAKEHITINBEERS -

ERLRABREEZESD kﬁﬁﬂ%
BZEMERNFERS VEFESFE
BRAN o

=AREIEED NS AZ EED A2 A KR

SERZRBEEREMNMARBEELE
B-ERLRERE? %%ﬁmlﬁﬂ
RERAEZGER - AFERN FE
ﬁ%ﬁ@ﬂ%%@&%%%%Zﬁ%ﬁ
TRNEAFERENIELBRAME -

m

RZF-N\FHHE EEREREES
EgdROXREH REEBFLRERE
REEBAHELRATNRAEH - TR
THETMREER-_Z—-N\FEA+
TtHREZERMEAFANER



Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

TRER®RE (B)

Corporate Governance Functions

The Audit and Risk Management Committee is responsible for
performing the functions set out in the Code Provision D.3.1 of the
Corporate Governance Code.

During the year under review, the Audit and Risk Management
Committee met four times to review the Company’s corporate
governance policies and practices, training and continuous
professional development of directors and senior management, the
Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements and the compliance of the Company with the
Corporate Governance Code and disclosure in this Corporate
Governance Report.

Directors’ responsibilities for financial statements

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements of the Company, and for ensuring that the
financial statements are prepared in accordance with applicable
statutory requirements and accounting standards.

A statement from the auditor of the Company about their reporting
responsibilities on the financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2018, is set out on pages 65 to 71 of the annual
report.

There are no material uncertainties relating to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue
as a going concern.

Internal control and risk management

The Board is responsible for making appropriate assertions on the
adequacy and the effectiveness of the risk management and internal
control systems and procedures and to resolve material internal
control defects. The Board together with the senior management of
the Group are jointly responsible for maintaining a sound and effective
system of internal control of the Group so as to ensure the
effectiveness and efficiency of operations of the Group in achieving
the established corporate objectives, safeguarding assets of the
Group, rendering reliable financial reporting and complying with the
applicable laws and regulations.
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During the year under review, the management of the Group, through
its daily management activities, gathers information on the Group’s
business, receives reports from the internal control function of the
Group, and analyses feedback from frontline and back office staff to
identify risks in the Group’s business, operation, financial conditions
and future expansion plans. Significant risks that are identified are
presented to the Audit and Risk Management Committee of the
Board on an ongoing basis.

The Audit and Risk Management Committee of the Board is
responsible for reviewing reports and proposals submitted. The Audit
and Risk Management Committee will consider such risks and
recommend to the Board measures that should to be taken to
address them. Where appropriate, management of the Group will
assist the Audit and Risk Management Committee in submitting
proposals to the Board to address risks faced by the Group.

Based on the risks identified by the Group’s management and the
Group’s internal control function, the Audit and Risk Management
Committee will also regularly review and report to the Board as to
whether the risk management and internal control systems of the
Group are effective, whether there are adequate resources (including
budgetary support for the Group’s accounting, internal audit and
financial reporting functions, staff with adequate qualification and
experience) for the implementation of the Group’s risk management
and internal control systems, and whether measures are in place to
ensure that the staff are suitably trained for this purpose. The
Directors will then collectively decide on what actions should be
taken.

During the year under review, the Board has reviewed the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems of
the Group covering all material controls such as financial, operational
and compliance controls. The Board considers that these systems
and controls are well established to suit the Group’s needs and are
effective and adequate.

The Directors recognise that the Group’s risk management and
control systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate the
risk of failure to achieve the Group’s business objectives, and can
only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

TRER®RE (B)

Handling and disclosure of inside information

With respect to procedures and internal controls for the handling and
dissemination of inside information (as defined under the Listing
Rules), the Company is fully aware of its obligations under Chapter 13
of the Listing Rules and the Securities and Futures Ordinance. The
Board reviews from time to time its internal guidelines on inside
information with reference to its own and industry circumstances and
also makes reference the “Guide on Disclosure of Inside Information”
issued by the Securities and Futures Commission in considering its
obligations to make a disclosure. The Company’s policy strictly
prohibits unauthorised use or dissemination of confidential or inside
information and has established and implemented procedures for
responding to external enquiries about the Group’s affairs, including
the provision of an email address for external enquiries. The Company
Secretary also regularly sends out reminders to the directors, senior
management and employees reminding them of their obligations with
respect to inside information under the relevant statutory provisions
and Listing Rules.

All media communication activities are restricted to persons
appointed by the Board for the role in order to protect the interests of
the Company and keep inside information strictly confidential prior to
its disclosure.

Investor Relations and Communication with
Shareholders

The Company establishes different communication channels with
shareholders and investors: (i) dispatching printed copies of corporate
communication documents to shareholders; (i) the annual general
meeting provides a forum for shareholders to raise comments and
exchange views with the Board; (iii) latest and key information of the
Group are available on the website of the Company; (iv) press
conferences and briefing meetings with investors, shareholders and
analysts are set up from time to time to provide updated information
about the Group, and; (v) the Company’s registrars serve the
shareholders in respect of all share registration matters. The Board
welcomes views of shareholders and encourages them to attend
general meetings to raise any concerns they might have with the
Board or the management directly. The Chairman of the Board as
well as the Chairmen and/or other members of the Audit and Risk
Management Committee and the Remuneration Committee will
normally attend the annual general meetings and other shareholders’
meetings of the Company to answer questions raised.
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The Company convened one shareholders’ general meeting in 2018,
being the Annual General Meeting (the “AGM”) for the year 2017. The
AGM held on 1 June 2018 reviewed and approved a number of
resolutions such as the financial statements for the year 2017, Report
of Directors and appointment and remuneration of auditors of the
Company. All the Directors, namely Mr. CHEN Qiyuan, Mr. CHEN
Zheng He, Mr. WONG Sin Yung, Dr. NGAI Wai Fung and Mr.
CHEUNG Kin Wing and Dr. WANG Qi have attended the AGM of the
Company.

Company Secretary

The company secretary is Mr. WONG Sin Yung, an associate
member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr.
WONG is also our executive Director and Chief Financial Officer. He
assists the Board by ensuring good information flow within the Board
and that the policy and procedures of the Board are followed.

In compliance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, Mr. WONG has
undertaken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training
during the year ended 31 December 2018.

Shareholders’ Rights

Pursuant to the articles of association of the Company (the “Articles”),
shareholder(s) holding not less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital
of the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings may
request the Company to convene an extraordinary general meeting
by sending a written requisition to the Board or the Company
Secretary.
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Shareholders may send written enquiries to the Company for putting
forward any enquiries or proposals to the Board.

Contact details are as follows:
Address: Suite B, 16/F Ritz Plaza,

122 Austin Road,

Tsimshatsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong

(For the attention of Mr. WONG Sin Yung,
Company Secretary)

Fax: +8562 3114 8819
Email: IR@1338.hk

Constitutional Documents

During the year under review, the Company has not made any
changes to its Articles. An up-to-date Articles is available on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange. Shareholders
may refer to the Articles for further details of their rights.

Auditors’ Remuneration

The remuneration paid (payable) to the Company’s independent
external auditor, SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited, for the year ended
31 December 2018 in relation to audit services and non-audit
services (including the review of the Company’s interim results
announcement and interim report for the year 2018) are
approximately RMB1,097,000 and RMB208,000 respectively.
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Report of the Directors

EEEHE

The Directors submit this Report of Directors together with the
audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2018.

Principal Activities

The principal activities of the Group are the designing, manufacturing,
trading and distribution of Chinese herbal products, including
shampoo products, hair-care products, skin-care products, and
household cleaning products. The principal activities and other
particulars of the subsidiaries are set out on pages 178 to 179 of this
annual report.

Business Review

A fair review of the business of the Group, together with a description
of the principal risks and uncertainties facing the Company,
particulars of important events affecting the Group that had occurred
since the end of the financial year 2018, as well as indication of likely
future developments in the business of the Group are set out in the
sections “Business Review” on pages 9 to 13, “Key Risks and
Uncertainties facing the Company” on pages 14 to 15, “Environmental
Protection” on page 15, “Business compliance” on page 15,
“Relationship with Employees, Customers and Suppliers” on page 15
to 16, and “Outlook” on pages 20 to 22 of this report respectively. An
analysis using financial key performance indicators is set out in the
sections “Revenue and Segment Information” on pages 135 to 139
and “Five Year Financial Summary” on page 180 in this report.

Dividends

Following a review of the operating results of the Group, the Board
does not recommend the payment of any final dividends in respect of
the year ended 31 December 2018.

Results and Appropriations

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2018 are

set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss on page 72 of
this annual report.
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Report of the Directors (Continued)

EEEHS (A

Reserves

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group and the
Company during the financial year 2018 are set out on pages 75 and
167 of this annual report respectively.

Major Customers and Suppliers

During the year ended 31 December 2018, sales made to the
Group’s five largest customers and the largest customer accounted
for approximately 20.8% and 9.9%, respectively of the total sales of
the Group. The Group purchased approximately 34.2% and 12.2%,
respectively of its goods and services purchased from its five largest
suppliers and the largest supplier.

None of the Directors, their close associates or any shareholders (which
to the knowledge of the Directors own more than 5% of the
Company’s share capital) had an interest in any of the Group’s five
largest customers and suppliers.

Financial Summary

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years is set out on page 180 of this annual
report.

Bank Borrowings

Please refer to note 26 of the audited consolidated financial
statements for details of bank loans and other borrowings of the
Group.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group
are set out in note 17 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Report of the Directors (Continued)

EEEHS (A

Share Capital and Share Options

Details of the movements in the share capital of and the share
options granted by the Company are set forth in notes 28 to 29 to
the consolidated financial statements.

Changes in Equity

Please refer to the consolidated statement of changes in equity as
contained in the audited consolidated financial statements of the year
(page 75 of this annual report).

Pre-emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles or
the laws of Cayman Islands which oblige the Company to offer new
shares on a pro rata basis to the existing Shareholders.

Principal Subsidiaries

Please refer to note 37 of the audited consolidated financial

statements for details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31
December 2018.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of the Company’s
Listed Securities

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or

redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year
under review.
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Report of the Directors (Continued)

EEEHS (A

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors as at the latest practicable
date prior to issue of this annual report, the Company has maintained
the prescribed public float with at least 25% of the Shares held by the
public as required under the Listing Rules during the year ended 31
December 2018 and up to the date of this annual report.

Permitted Indemnity

For the year under review and as at the date of this report, the
Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in respect of
legal actions against the directors of the Company.

Management Contracts

No contract concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company was
entered into or existed during the year.

Directors
The Directors during the year were:

Executive Directors

CHEN Qiyuan (Chairman)
CHEN Zheng He (Chief Executive Officer)
WONG Sin Yung cra

Independent non-executive Directors

Dr. NGAI Wai Fung prp, cPA, FCCA, FCIS, FCS (P.E))
CHEUNG Kin Wing Fca, cra
Dr. WANG Qi

(Appointed on 17 April 2018)
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Directors’ Biographies and re-election of Directors

Details of the Directors’ (for the year ended 31 December 2018)
biographies have been set out on pages 60 to 64 of the annual
report.

Directors’ Service Contracts

Each of our executive Directors (other than Mr. CHEN Zheng He) has
entered into a director’s service agreement with the Company for a
term of three years from 4 July 2015. Mr. CHEN Zheng He has
entered into a director’s service agreement with the Company for a
term of three years from 20 October 2014. All these service
agreements are automatically renewable upon expiration, unless
terminated by not less than six months’ written notice served by
either party to the service agreement on the other or in accordance
with the provisions set out in the relevant service agreement.

For the INEDs, Dr. Ngai Wai Fung has entered into a letter of
appointment with the Company for a term of three years from 4 July
2018. Mr. CHEUNG Kin Wing has entered into a letter of appointment
with the Company for a term of three years from 13 November 2017.
Dr. WANG Qi has entered into a letter of appointment with the
Company for a term of three years from 17 April 2018.

None of the Directors of the Company has entered into any service
contract with the Company which cannot be terminated by the
Company within one year without payment of compensation, other
than statutory compensation.

Directors’ Emoluments

The emoluments for the Directors are determined with reference to
salaries paid by comparable companies, experience, responsibilities
and performance of the Group. In addition to the fees, salaries,
housing allowances, other allowances, benefits in kind or bonuses,
the Company has conditionally adopted a share option scheme
pursuant to which the participants, including the Directors, may be
granted options to subscribe for the Shares.
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Confirmation of Independence

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation of independence pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers all the independent
non-executive Directors to be independent.

Appointment of new independent non-executive
Director

On 17 April 2018, Dr. WANG Qi was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director and a member of the Audit and Risk
Management Committee. Dr. WANG Qi entered into a letter of
appointment with the Company for a term of three years from 17 April
2018.

Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and
Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares
and Debentures of the Company and its
Associated Corporations

As of 31 December 2018, the Directors and chief executive of the
Company had the following interests and short positions in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap. 571 of the Laws of Hong
Kong) (the “SFO”)), which were required (a) to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of
Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which they
had taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO); or (b)
to be and were entered into the register that was required to be kept
by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO; or (c) as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code:
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Directors’ and chief executive’s interests and short

EFEREBITRAARTLFRMG

positions in shares, underlying shares and HBERBRKRBEEBDREEHEESRR
debentures of the Company =}
Number of
ordinary  Approximate
shares/ percentage of
underlying issued share
ordinary capital of the
shares of the Company
Company held NG|
Name of director/ BELQHE 2817
chief executive Long/short position in V5B R R BA Rz
EE/BESTHAER ordinary shares Nature of interest HEZER EzBEOH
£ EZERPZTF/RE EaME RG&AE (K &)
CHEN Qiyuan (Note 1) Long Interest in controlled 1,900,840,000 60.12%
corporation
PR BOR (B FE1) S} #5861 % B 1 2
CHEN Zheng He (Note 2)  Long Interest in controlled 1,900,840,000 60.12%
corporation
BR IE 88 (FI7E2) IS P 1% 1A B # 25
WONG Sin Yung (Note 3) Long Beneficial owner 2,100,000 0.07%
H5EB(MEES) S ExnlE A

Notes: B -

1. CHEN Qiyuan was deemed to be interested in the 1,900,840,000 shares of the 1. /B #& BR BUR %5 A Fortune Station 2 50.43% 2 2 %
Company held by Fortune Station Ltd. (‘Fortune Station”) by virtue of CHEN Qiyuan 17 B 7+ BR BUR # 4% 7 # A Fortune Station Ltd.
holding 50.43% of the issued share capital of Fortune Station. The remaining 49.57% [Fortune Station | Ff7 5 A #Y1,900,840,000 % A 7]
of the issued share capital of Fortune Station was held by Heroic Hour Limited (“Heroic [ £ &) # 25 © Fortune Station #) 5 #£49.57% &, %
Hour”). Heroic Hour’s entire issued share capital is held by CHEN Zheng He as trustee 77 B 7 f Heroic Hour Limited ([ Heroic Hour |) %5
for himself and on behalf of his six brothers and sisters. The beneficial interests of B MREGBERZFEARBREANUSKESF
CHEN Qiyuan’s six children under the age of 18, namely CHEN Cynthia Yuping, CHEN Heroic Hour ) % & £ 817 B AS = i BRBUR 18 /& 5%
Li Zi, CHEN Zheng Sheng, CHEN Zheng Yan, CHEN Ya Shan and CHEN Bo Ling in PATR B9 7S B F 22 - BIBR 45 3F - CHEN Li Zi © CHEN
Heroic Hour, representing 78.00% of the issued share capital of Heroic Hour, were Zheng Sheng * BR IE 52 * R J & K Chen Bo Ling fit
also attributable to CHEN Qiyuan. T 255 A 89 78.00% Heroic Hour 2 % 17 B 7 77 47 47

R BN REUR

2. CHEN Zheng He was deemed to be interested in the shares of Fortune Station held by 2. BERESBERIEFARBREAN LSRR
Heroic Hour by virtue of him holding the entire issued share capital of Heroic Hour (as Heroic Hour#) 2= &8 & 3 17 i 7% M 4% 42 /3 74 Heroic
trustee for himself and his six brothers and sisters). Therefore CHEN Zheng He was Hour #£ Fortune Station #) ## 25 & # & # 2 °
deemed to be interested in the 1,900,840,000 shares of the Company held by Fortune It BR IE #5 1% 15 /& % A Fortune Station T 5 A &)
Station. 1,900,840,000 i 22 7] B 17 H9 4 &% ©

3. Including 630,000 shares, which would be allotted and issued to WONG Sin Yung 3. 2 $5630,000/% » 1R & A48 A & & X A B 3 & Al i

upon the exercise in full of the share options granted to WONG Sin Yung under the
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme of the Company. Subsequently on 29 March 2019,
WONG Sin Yung exercised his options to subscribe for 630,000 shares. For details,
please refer to section headed “Share Option Scheme and Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme” below.
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Directors’ and chief executive’s interests and short
positions in shares, underlying shares and
debentures of associated corporations

ESREETHA R R HEBERK
fr-HREMRAEERZED R
-

Approximate
Number of percentage of
ordinary interest in
Name of director/ Name of shares held associated
chief executive associated Long/short BEH corporation
EE/BRETHRAE corporation Nature of interest position ZEKR RAERZESD
2 BB LB AR EatE HIXE BROBE ZEZESL
CHEN Qiyuan (Note 1) Fortune Station Beneficial owner Long 20,000 50.43%
BR RUR (M 3E1) ERHEAA )
Interest of children under 18 Long 15,330 38.66%
RM1BE TR 2= HE
Other Long 4,327 10.91%
HAh 59}
CHEN Zheng He (Note 2)  Fortune Station Interest in controlled corporation  Long 19,657 49.57%
bR I 5 (MY 32 2) P #E A B 2 A
Notes: B3 -
1. CHEN Qiyuan was the beneficial owner of approximately 50.43% of the issued share 1. P& BXR /A& Fortune Station 2 22 17 I& 72K #9 #950.43% &

capital of Fortune Station. The beneficial interests of CHEN Qiyuan’s six children under
the age of 18 in Heroic Hour, representing 78.00% of the issued share capital of
Heroic Hour, were also attributable to CHEN Qiyuan. Heroic Hour held approximately
49.57% of the issued share capital of Fortune Station.

2. CHEN Zheng He was deemed to be interested in the interests of Fortune Station held
by Heroic Hour by virtue of him holding the entire issued share capital of Heroic Hour (as
trustee for himself and his six brothers and sisters).

Other than as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2018, so far as
known to any Director or chief executive of the Company, neither the
Directors nor the chief executive of the Company had any interests or
short positions in any shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of SFO) which were required (a) to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of
Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which they
had taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO); or (b)
to be and were entered into in the register that was required to be
kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO; or (c) as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code.

mEEA A AREURISERA TR AN TFXE
75 45 5 §)78.00% Heroic Hour B 3% 17 AR 28 IR 45 18 &
5% B A PR BXR © Heroic Hour#3 7 Fortune Station & 2%
FTIR A B K949.57% °

2. BREREBEAIEARBREASNUBHKER
Heroic Hour z & &0 2 % 17 i% 78 1 4% 4% /& 7 Heroic
Hour £ Fortune Station #) # 5 1 # 5 # 2% °

RERBBEOABZN RZF—N\F
T-A=+—8B HEAARANEM
EENERSTHRAEMA BEmfAR
AEFHERRRITBRAER  #HREHE
BEARRARERBEE(RES LB K
51 55 XV &R &9 % 2 ) @9 B 40 - AR R AR f K&
BESD  @IREES &HE KRG EXVEL
FTRFED MR EAME AR A K E
RAHMEEIAR(BREREEA L E
7 MEIE G0 7% F R XK E MR R
EMERLAR) HOREZFLHE
GFPIEIRGERERECNRTFENERL
A KCORBEFEETAREAMEAR
A M Bt S P o

FIER(RE)ERERAT ZS—I\FEFHK

49



Report of the Directors (Continued)

EEEHS (A

Interests and Short Positions of Substantial
Shareholders of the Company

As of 31 December 2018, so far as known to any Director or chief
executive of the Company, shareholders (other than a Director or
chief executive of the Company) who had an interest or short position
in the shares or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the
register that was required to be kept pursuant to Section 336 of the

SFO were as follows:

-

AR ESSORB T

Number of ordinary

N

M & K

EARARBMEMNEESEZEITHRAEMN
—E-N\F+ZA=+—H B=HE
(BRARBIESKZSITHRAEBIN R
M BEAROTHEEREESRBEY
Bl IRATEELNETFTENE LM

Approximate
percentage of
issued share

shares of the capital of the
Name of shareholder Nature of interest Company held Company
RAFE
BITRAFZ
BFEHLQA EREDL
R BB ERME ZERKRMEAE (R &)
Fortune Station Beneficial owner 1,900,840,000 (L) 60.12%
ER#EAA
Heroic Hour Interest in controlled corporation (Note 1) 942,199,659 (L) 29.80%
PreEdlEBE R (k1)
WAN Yuhua (Note 2) Interest of children under the age of 18 734,797,818 (L) 23.25%
B EE(ME2) RNm18ERH F 2w
CHEN Cynthia Yuping (Note 3) Beneficiary of a trust (other than a 122,466,303 (L) 3.87%
Bk &% 5F (Bt 5£3) discretionary trust)
EEX A A GERIEE5T)
Other 1,778,373,697 (L) 56.25%
H ot
CHEN Li Zi (Note 3) Beneficiary of a trust (other than a 122,466,303 (L) 3.87%
CHENLi Zi (B 5£3) discretionary trust)
ErEX@m A GERBER)
Other 1,778,373,697 (L) 56.25%
H Ay
CHEN Zheng Sheng (Note 3) Beneficiary of a trust (other than a 122,466,303 (L) 3.87%
CHEN Zheng Sheng (Fff 5£3) discretionary trust)
it @m A GEREE)
Other 1,778,373,697 (L) 56.25%
EHAh
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Approximate
percentage of

Number of ordinary issued share
shares of the capital of the
Name of shareholder Nature of interest Company held Company
RAFE
BARAKRFZ
BEWAQE EREDL
R BB EEME ZERKROEE (HE)
CHEN Zheng Yan (Note 3) Beneficiary of a trust (other than a 122,466,303 (L) 3.87%
PR 1E 52 (P 523) discretionary trust)
st m A GERIBEERT)
Other 1,778,373,697 (L) 56.25%
H At
CHEN Ya Shan (Note 3) Beneficiary of a trust (other than a 122,466,303 (L) 3.87%
Bk 7 = (B EE3) discretionary trust)
X H A GEMIEET)
Other 1,778,373,697 (L) 56.25%
HAtb
CHEN Bo Ling (Note 3) Beneficiary of a trust (other than a 122,466,303 (L) 3.87%
CHEN Bo Ling (Ff 5£3) discretionary trust)
it @m A GEBIEEF)
Other 1,778,373,697 (L) 56.25%
Eftb
(L)—Long Position
L—FE
Notes: B2 -
1. Heroic Hour was the beneficial owner of approximately 49.57% of the issued share 1. & #& Heroic Hour & Fortune Station 2 & 17 i 78 9 %)

capital of Fortune Station and was deemed to be interested in the shares of the
Company held by Fortune Station.

2. The beneficial interests of WAN Yuhua's six children under the age of 18, namely
CHEN Cynthia Yuping, CHEN Li Zi, CHEN Zheng Sheng, CHEN Zheng Yan, CHEN Ya
Shan and CHEN Bo Ling in Heroic Hour, representing 78.00% of the issued share
capital of Heroic Hour, were also attributable to WAN Yuhua.

3. The interests of CHEN Cynthia Yuping, CHEN Li Zi, CHEN Zheng Sheng, CHEN Zheng
Yan, CHEN Ya Shan and CHEN Bo Ling were held as beneficiaries under a trust,
which held 100% of the issued share capital of Heroic Hour.

Other than as disclosed above, as of 31 December 2018, the
Company has not notified by any person (other than a Director or
chief executive of the Company) who had interests or short positions
in the shares or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the
register required to be kept pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

49.57% B 2% B A » Heroic Hour # 1% 7 72 Fortune
Station# A 8 2 AR 15 R #E S R = o

2. HEEE1BARINA TH N F BIRE T

CHEN Li Zi * CHEN Zheng Sheng * FRIE 2 * BRjfE =
J% CHEN Bo Ling FT & % 5 A #78.00% Heroic Hour
ERITRATKEAZERERE -

3. JRFEBREELF - CHEN Li Zi ~ CHEN Zheng Sheng ~ BR
F# BRH#EEZMCHENBo LingBR — {55 TR %
25 A 12 5555 B Heroic Hour & S8 B 2 1T R A -

R-ZE—NF+_A=+—H KBLEX
FIEEALTZIN RABAEZERBANE
EMALT(BRARFEERRSITHAE
SRR S EEIROFHEEREES K
HEEA E36 R EREELRBTEN
ErftAmERIOXE o
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Share Option Scheme and Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme

The Company has adopted two share option schemes, a share
option scheme dated on 20 May 2009 (the “Share Option Scheme”)
and a pre-IPO share option scheme dated on 10 December 2008 (the
“Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme”), the purpose of which is to give
the Directors, senior management and employees of the Group an
opportunity to have a personal stake in the Company and help
motivate its employees to optimise their performance and efficiency,
and also to retain employees whose contributions are important to
the long-term growth and profitability of the Group.

Share Option Scheme

The Share Option Scheme became effective on 20 May 2009 and,
unless otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain in force for 10
years from the date becoming effective.

The maximum number of Shares which may be issued upon the
exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised
under the Share Option Scheme and any other schemes of the
Company, must not, in aggregate, exceed 30.0% (or such other
percentage as may be allowed under the Listing Rules) of the total
number of Shares in issue from time to time. The maximum number
of Shares issuable to each eligible participant in the Share Option
Scheme within any 12-month period is limited to 1.0% of the Shares
of the Company in issue at any time. Any further grant of share
options in excess of this limit is subject to shareholders’ approval at a
general meeting.

Share options granted to a connected person (or its associates) of
the Company, or to any of their associates, are subject to approval in
advance by the independent non-executive Directors. In addition, any
share options granted to a substantial shareholder or an independent
non-executive Director of the Company, or to any of their associates,
in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any time
and with an aggregate value (based on the price of the Company’s
shares at the date of grant) in excess of HK$5 million, within any
12-month period, are subject to shareholders’ approval in advance at
a general meeting.
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The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted, upon payment
of an option price to be determined by the Board from time to time.
The exercise period of the share options granted is determinable by
the Board, and commences after a certain vesting period and ends
on a date which is not later than 10 years from the date of grant of
the share options.

The exercise price of share options is determinable by the Board, but
shall be at least the highest of (i) the closing price of the Shares as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the offer
date, which must be a business day; (i) the average of the closing
price of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation
sheets for the five business days immediately preceding the Offer
Date; and (iii) the nominal value of a Share.

As of 1 January and 31 December 2018, no shares option was
outstanding under the Share Option Scheme, and there was no share
option granted, exercised, cancelled or lapsed under the Share
Option Scheme during the year ended 31 December 2018.

Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

The Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme became effective on 10
December 2008. As of 31 December 2018, options to subscribe for
an aggregate of 14,532,000 Shares were granted, representing
approximately 0.5% of the issued share capital of the Company as at
the latest practicable date. No further options will be granted under
the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme.

The above options have been conditionally granted to 42 participants
by the Company at a consideration of HK$1.0 each. The subscription
price of the pre-IPO share options would be at par value or at
HK$1.19. The pre-IPO share options may be exercised up to 8 June
2019.
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A total of 4,200,000 pre-IPO share options were granted to two
executive Directors on 8 June 2009. Of which, options to subscribe
for a total of 840,000 shares held by a director resigned on 28 May
2013 were forfeited on the same date, which was partially exercised
up to 31 December 2018. Movement of these share options during
the year ended 31 December 2018 were as follows:

Number of share options
RPBREHE

RZZFEZEAFASAANB: RRAETRA
#H1TE F 4 $£4,200,0000% B9 & X A 5
BERERE -EP —REFTHR_Z
—:ﬁﬁﬂ +NHBEEMEFAES L
840,000 M B EERBE AXK  HZE
—iﬁ—/\¢+ A=+—8 ' ZERK#E

DWITE - BEEHIXAREESHE
Hﬂéé@if;—J\ﬁJr A=+—81
FEBMOT

Approximate
percentage of

Outstanding Granted Exercise Forfeited Outstanding issued share
Exercise price as at during during during as at capital of the
Name of director Date of grant (HKD) 1 January 2018 the year the year the year 31 December 2018 Company (%) Exercise Period
BE-E-N\F BE-E-N\F hHARE
=JE= RER RER REARA +=ZA=+t-B EBRTRENE
EEER Ri#ER TREG(ER) HATHE BRTFHE  TEHEA £ i RAT R HEDL(%) TEAE
WONG Sin Yung 8 June 2009 Par Value 630,000 - — — 630,000 0.01 4 July 2014 to 8 June 2019
B5ER “TTAERANE EfE —T-MELANBE
—Z-NERANE
Total 630,000 - - - 630,000 0.01

Az
=a

Apart from the above, options to subscribe for a total of 10,332,000
Shares under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme were granted to 40
employees of the Group on 8 June 2009. During the year under
review, 67,200 share options were forfeited.

As at 1 January and 31 December 2018, there was a balance of
unexpired and unexercised options to subscribe for 1,586,760
Shares (which was inclusive of Mr. WONG Sin Yung’s share options).
Except for the options which had been granted as disclosed above,
no further pre-IPO share options were granted, exercised, cancelled
or lapsed for the year ended 31 December 2018. Details of Pre-IPO
Share Option Scheme are set out in Note 29 on pages 163 to 165
under the section headed “Notes to the Consolidated Financial
Statements” in this annual report.
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Continuing connected transactions

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group had the following
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules:

1. Lease Agreement for the Group's production facilities,
office premises and staff dormitory
On 1 December 2017, Bawang Guangzhou and Guangzhou
Bawang entered into a lease agreement (the “New Lease
Agreement”) for the Group’s production facilities, office
premises and staff dormitory, which is located at Bawang
Industrial Complex, 468 Guanghua 3rd Road, Baiyun District,
Guangzhou, the PRC, and terminated the 2016 Production
Plant Lease Agreement and the 2016 Office Premises Lease
Agreement both dated 9 August 2016 with immediate effect.
The New Lease Agreement is for a lease term of three years
commencing on 1 December 2017 which is renewable at the
option of Bawang Guangzhou by giving one month’s notice
prior to the expiry of the lease. The monthly rent (exclusive of
management fee and other outgoings, which are payable to an
independent third party management company) in aggregate is
RMB719,857.56 and is fixed throughout the term of the lease.
Bawang Guangzhou has been granted a right of first refusal to
purchase the aforesaid premises under the New Lease
Agreement. Bawang Guangzhou has a right to terminate the
New Lease Agreement by giving three months’ prior notice to
Guangzhou Bawang. Details of the New Lease Agreement were
disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 1 December
2017.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, pursuant to the New
Lease Agreement, the rent paid by Bawang Guangzhou to
Guangzhou Bawang was approximately RMB8.6 million.

As of 31 December 2017, Guangzhou Bawang was beneficially
owned as to 20% by Mr. CHEN Zheng He, the CEO and an
executive Director of the Company, and 80% by Mr. CHEN
Zheng He’s six brothers and sisters. The transactions
contemplated under the New Lease Agreement therefore
constituted continuing connected transactions for the
Company.
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2. Packaging Material Supply Agreement

The Company and Chenming Paper entered into a packaging
material supply agreement on 1 June 2018, pursuant to which
Chenming Paper agreed to supply packaging material to
Bawang Guangzhou from time to time at prices that are
reviewed regularly based on arm’s length negotiations between
the Group and Chenming Paper for a term of three years
commencing from 1 June 2018 (the “Packaging Material
Supply Agreement”). In determining the prevailing market
rates, and to ensure that the terms of purchase of packaging
materials under the Packaging Material Supply Master
Agreement are no less favourable than those offered by
independent third parties, the Company will obtain quotations
from two or more suppliers that are independent from the
Group on a regular basis (but no less frequently than once every
three months to determine the prevalent market prices and
terms of the supply of packaging materials in similar quantities.
For details of the terms of the Packaging Material Supply
Agreement, please refer to the Company’s announcement

dated 1 June 2018.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, pursuant to the
Packaging Material Supply Agreement, the annual transaction
amount for the supply of packaging material by Chenming
Paper to Bawang Guangzhou was approximately RMB4.2

million.

Mr. CHEN Qiyuan is a Director. Chenming Paper is wholly
owned by Mr. CHEN Qiwen, who is Mr. CHEN Qiyuan’s
brother. The transactions contemplated under the Packaging
Material Supply Agreement therefore constitute continuing

connected transactions for the Company.
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The internal control and risk management functions of the Group
together with the senior management of the Group had reviewed the
continuing connected transactions of the Company for the year under
review, the scope of review included whether the premises lease
agreements were implemented in accordance with their terms,
whether the packaging materials purchased from the Company’s
connected person were purchased in accordance with the provisions
and the pricing as stipulated in the Packaging Material Supply
Agreement, and whether the transaction amount of each continuing
connected transaction had exceeded its respective annual cap.
During the year under review, the Company and Chenming Paper
had completed a review of the prices offered by Chenming Paper.
The results of the review had been provided to the Board.

The Company confirms that it has complied with the disclosure
requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules in
respect of the above connected transactions. The Company also
confirms that during the year under review it has followed the policies
and guidelines as described above in determining the pricing and the
terms of the continuing connected transactions.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed and
confirmed that the above continuing connected transactions were
entered into the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Company, on normal commercial terms, fair and reasonable and in
the interests of the Shareholders as a whole; and the respective
annual caps are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
Shareholders as a whole and the transaction amounts of such
continuing connected transactions did not exceed their respective
annual caps for the year ended 31 December 2018.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter
on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing
Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. The auditor has issued his unqualified letter containing
his findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing connected
transactions disclosed by the Group above in accordance with Rule
14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the auditor’s letter has been
provided by the Company to the Stock Exchange.
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Directors’ interests in contracts of significance

Other than as disclosed under the heading “Continuing connected
transactions” in this annual report, no Director or an entity connected
with a Director has or had a material interest, either directly or
indirectly, in any transaction, arrangement or contract of significance
to the business of the Group to which the Company, its holding
company or any of its subsidiaries was a party which was subsisting
during or at the end of the 2018 financial year.

Directors’ and Controlling Shareholders’ interest in
competing business

As at 31 December 2018, none of the Directors and their respective
associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) or the controlling
shareholders (as defined in the Listing Rules) of the Company had
any interest in a business, which competes or may compete with the
business of the Group.

Retirement schemes

The Group participates in several defined contribution retirement
plans which cover the Group’s eligible employees in the PRC, and a
Mandatory Provident Fund scheme for the employees in Hong Kong.
Particulars of these retirement plans are set out in note 33 to the
consolidated financial statements of this annual report.

Corporate governance

Save as disclosed in this annual report, for the year ended 31
December 2018, all the code provisions set out in the CG Code
contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules were met by the
Company.

Audit and Risk Management Committee

The Audit and Risk Management Committee has reviewed the annual
results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2018 with the
management of the Company and the Company’s independent
auditors and recommended its adoption by the Board.
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Auditors % By b

SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited will retire and, being eligible, offer 1= 3k th 1 (& &) & =+ 6F = 7% B 5 (R 2 7
themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment of & FEimEE - (EBEERET - £ 4 H
SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited as auditors of the Company will be ZREEFAE LiSIREEE ZAE

proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting. BEXPM(BD MEBLMAERA
Al AR R A 2 % EEAD -

On behalf of the Board ExgaAK

CHEN Qiyuan FER RSIR

Chairman TE

Hong Kong, 28 March 2019 BEE —_E—NAF=ZA=-+N\H
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Directors

During the year under review and since the appointment of Dr. Wang
Qi on 17 April 2018 following the passing away of a then-independent
non-executive Director, the Board consisted of six Directors, including
three executive Directors and three independent non-executive
Directors. The following table sets forth certain information in respect
of our Directors:

==

REBEFERN BZZ-/\FOA++
FREEETRBELIER U HFHRZE
VHEATEFTE EFSR REFH
K BR=Z2UTEEFR=2BILIFEH
TEF - TRIBIBAREZTNETER:

Name Age Position/Title

®A FEe B/

Mr. CHEN Qiyuan 57 Chairman and Executive Director

PR RUR 78 &£ TERMTES

Mr. CHEN Zheng He 30 CEO and Executive Director

PR IE#5 5% & BEFERITERNTES

Mr. WONG Sin Yung 64 Chief Financial Officer and Executive Director

BEERELE BEEMBERNTES

Dr. NGAI Wai Fung 57 Independent non-executive Director

RFEIEL BYERITES

Mr. CHEUNG Kin Wing 64 Independent non-executive Director

RIEREE BYIFRITES

Dr. WANG Qi 39 Independent non-executive Director
(Appointed on 17 April 2018)

TEEL BYFRITES
(RZZE-N\FOA++-BEZT)

Executive Directors BITEE

Mr. CHEN Qiyuan, aged 57, is the co-founder of our Group, our
chairman and has been our executive Director since 12 November
2007. Mr. CHEN is responsible for the overall strategic planning and
management of our Group. Mr. CHEN has extensive experience in
the Chinese herbal HPC product industry, having been engaged in
the consumer chemical product business for over 20 years. Mr.
CHEN entered into the HPC product business by establishing
Guangzhou Bawang Cosmetics Co., Ltd. (the predecessor entity of
the Company) in 1994. Mr. CHEN was engaged in the trading of
pesticides in the PRC before the establishment of Guangzhou
Bawang Cosmetics Co., Ltd.. In November of 2010, Mr. CHEN
Qiyuan was recognised as the “Representative Successor of Chinese
Herbal Tea Culture” by the Guangdong Provincial Bureau of Culture.
In December 2013, Mr. CHEN Qiyuan had been honoured as the
“Distinguished People of Yunfu City” for recognition of his contribution
to the development of the city. Mr. CHEN is the father of Mr. CHEN
Zheng He, an executive Director and the CEO of the Company.
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Mr. CHEN Zheng He, aged 30, was appointed as our executive
Director on 20 October 2014. Mr. CHEN joined the Group in March
2007 and has been officially appointed as a director of Bawang
Guangzhou since then and started to involve in the planning of sales,
marketing, advertising and promotion campaigns of Bawang
Guangzhou. Mr. CHEN was appointed as the personal assistant to
the chief executive officer of the Company since March 2012, mainly
responsible for the daily administration and management of Bawang
Guangzhou. Since mid-2013, Mr. CHEN has also been responsible
for the supervision and execution of sales, marketing, advertising and
promotion campaigns of Bawang Guangzhou. Mr. CHEN works
closely with the chairman and the chief executive officer of the
Company on formulating overall strategic plan and management of
the Group, and executing strategic plans in marketing, and sales and
distribution. Mr. CHEN has been appointed as the CEO and
Remuneration Committee Member with effect from 9 December
2015. Mr. CHEN obtained the degree of bachelor of commerce from
the University of Toronto in 2012. Mr. CHEN is the son of Mr. CHEN
Qiyuan, the chairman and an executive Director of the Company.

Mr. WONG Sin Yung, aged 64, is our Chief Financial Officer and
executive Director. Mr. WONG joined our Group in April 2008 and
was appointed as our executive Director on 10 December 2008. Mr.
WONG was also appointed as our Chief Financial Officer and our
Company Secretary since December 2008. He is responsible for the
finance management and control, accounting, auditing, company
secretarial and investor relations of our Group. Prior to joining our
Group, Mr. WONG was an executive director of China Ting Group
Holdings Limited (03398), from 2005 to 2008, the shares of which
are listed on the Stock Exchange. Mr. WONG was the chief
accountant and finance manager of Mark Wong & Associates (Industrial
Consultants) Limited from 1988 to 1992 and from 1994 to 2003
respectively. He also worked for a certified public accountant firm
from 1992 to 1994. Mr. WONG has over 30 years experience in
corporate finance, accounting, auditing, corporation administration,
and project consulting. He is an associate member of Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. WONG obtained a
master’'s degree in human resource management from Macquarie
University in 1996 and a master’s degree in business administration
from The University of Hong Kong in 1999.
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Dr. NGAI Wai Fung, aged 57, was appointed as our independent
non-executive Director on 10 December 2008. He is currently the
Chief Executive Officer of SW Corporate Services Group Limited, a
specialty company and secretarial, corporate governance and
compliance services provider to companies in pre-IPO and post-IPO
stages. Prior to that, he was the director and head of listing services
of an independent integrated corporate services provider. He has
over 20 years of senior management experience including acting as
the executive director, chief financial officer and company secretary,
most of which are in the areas of finance, accounting, internal control
and regulatory compliance, corporate governance and secretarial
work for listed issuers including major red chip companies. He has
led or participated in a number of significant corporate finance
projects including listings, mergers and acquisitions as well as
issuance of debt securities. Dr. NGAI was a member of the Working
Group on Professional Services under the Economic Development
Commission of The Hong Kong Special Administrative Region from
January 2013 to March 2018 and a member of the Qualification and
Examination Board of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants from January 2013 to December 2018. He is the past
president of the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries, a
fellow of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants in the
United Kingdom, a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants, a fellow of the Institute of Chartered Secretaries
and Administrators, a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered
Secretaries, a fellow of Hong Kong Institute of Directors, a member of
Hong Kong Securities and Investment Institute, a member of the
General Committee of the Chamber of Hong Kong Listed Companies
and Finance Expert Consultant of the Ministry of Finance of the
People’s Republic of China. He obtained a doctoral degree in Finance
from Shanghai University of Finance and Economics, a master’s
degree in corporate finance from Hong Kong Polytechnic University,
a master’s degree in business administration from Andrews University
of Michigan and a degree of Bachelor of Laws (Honours) at University
of Wolverhampton. Dr. NGAI was an independent non-executive
director of Sany Heavy Equipment International Holdings Company
Ltd (00631) from 2009 to 2015, China Coal Energy Company Limited
(01898) from 2010 to 2017, China Railway Group Limited (00390)
from 2014 to 2017 and HKBridge Financial Holdings Limited (02323)
from 2016 to 2018, and is currently an independent non-executive
director of SITC International Holdings Company Limited (01308),
Bosideng International Holdings Limited (03998), Powerlong Real
Estate Holdings Limited (01238), Beijing Capital Grand Limited (formerly
known as Beijing Capital Juda Limited) (01329), Health and
Happiness (H&H) International Holding Limited (formerly known as
Biostime International Holdings Limited) (01112), Yangtze Optical
Fibre and Cable Joint Stock Limited Company (06869), BBMG
Corporation (02009), TravelSky Technology Limited (00696), and
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China Communications Construction Company Limited (01800), the
shares of which are listed on the Stock Exchange and/or the
Shanghai Stock Exchange. Dr. NGAl is also an independent director
of LDK Solar Co. Ltd (LDKYQ), which was previously listed on the
New York Stock Exchange, and is currently listed on the OTC Pink
Limited Information and SPI Energy Co., Limited (SPI), the shares of
which are listed on NASDAQ.

Mr. CHEUNG Kin Wing (3R 58 /£ 4), aged 64, was appointed as
our independent non-executive Director on 13 November 2014. Mr.
CHEUNG has over 30 years of experience in information technology,
financial accounting, auditing and management. Mr. CHEUNG is a
member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a
fellow of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and
Wales. Since February 1999, Mr. CHEUNG has been a director and
lead consultant of Sunplex Consultants Limited, a company providing
human resources management and information technology
consultancy services to its clients (including government organisations
and private companies). Mr. CHEUNG had been an independent
director of Principal Trust Company (Hong Kong) Limited (formerly
known as AXA China Region Trustees Limited) from August 1999 to
August 2015 and an independent non-executive director of Bank of
Communications Trustee Limited from November 2003 to January
2018. Mr. CHEUNG has been an independent non-executive director
of ENM Holdings Limited (00128) since June 2016, Trio Industrial
Electronics Group Limited (01710) since February 2017, and Kin
Pang Holdings Limited (01722) since November 2017, companies
whose shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited. Mr. CHEUNG had held several positions, including Assistant
Manager, Manager and Senior Manager between September 1980
and July 1991 in Coopers & Lybrand. Mr. CHEUNG had been a
partner of Coopers & Lybrand since March 1995, and had been a
partner of PricewaterhouseCoopers since Coopers & Lybrand was
merged with Price Waterhouse into PricewaterhouseCoopers in
October 1998 until his resignation in May 1999. Mr. CHEUNG was
Director of Operations and Finance of Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants between July 2004 and April 2008 and a
consultant of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
between April 2008 and August 2008. Mr. CHEUNG obtained a
Bachelor of Commerce from The University of Calgary in Canada in
June 1979.
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Dr. WANG Qi (E3&i8=), aged 39, is currently the vice director of
the Dongguan Institute of Opto-electronics, Peking University. Prior to
that, from 2010 to 2012, he was a research associate in the
Department of Electronic and Electrical Engineering of the University
of Sheffield in the United Kingdom, and also worked at Seren
Photonics Ltd, a company in the United Kingdom which focuses on
the development and manufacturing of semi-polar and non-polar
Gallium Nitride templates. From 2012 to 2014, he was a postdoctoral
research fellow in the Department of Electrical and Computer
Engineering of McGill University in Canada.

Dr. WANG is a member of the Dongguan committee of the Jiusan
Society, the chairman of the Songshan Lake branch of the Dongguan
committee of the Jiusan Society, a vice chairman of the technological
innovation promotion committee of the Dongguan Committee of the
Jiusan Society, an entrepreneurship mentor of the Dongguan
Business Incubation Association and a member of the Dongguan
Songshan Lake High-tech Industry Development Zone Science and
Technology Association. He is also the legal representative and an
executive director of the Dongguan Yanyuan Technological Assets
Management Company Limited. He was recognised as a special
professional of Dongguan City (3rd Class Distinctive Talent) by the
Office for the Administration of Talent Affairs of Dongguan City in
2017.

Dr. WANG obtained a bachelor’s degree in physics (magnetism) from
Lanzhou University in 2001. He studied at the Department of Physics
of Peking University from 2002 to 2008. He obtained a Doctor of
Philosophy in the Faculty of Engineering Department of Electronic
and Electrical Engineering from the University of Sheffield in the
United Kingdom in 2010.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B M % B 3RS

fekge

Shine‘ZOinﬁ

SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited
43/F., Lee Garden One

33 Hysan Avenue

Causeway Bay, Hong Kong

TO THE MEMBERS OF
BAWANG INTERNATIONAL (GROUP) HOLDING LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of BaWang
International (Group) Holding Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (hereinafter collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out
on pages 72 to 179, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2018, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2018, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) issued by
the International Accounting Standards Board (the “IASB”) and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSASs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”). Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”)
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
B ZBEHRE (&)

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Valuation of trade receivables

Refer to note 21 to the consolidated financial statements and the
accounting policies on pages 102 to 115.

FREZEE

RERMANEXHE BREZFZEAR
AITERAPGEEVBRRPIREEN
EH - ATEEBERRAMBHRRM
RUPAREEREENLESTR NAE
R EFREFHRER -

FE Uy R 5% B9 F 1

2HEEM B HRENE21 R FE102E115
BREETHEUR -

The key audit matter
BREREER

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EERTFNEERLE

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had trade
receivables of approximately RMB30,653,000,
representing 18% of the Group’s total current assets.

R-ZZE-NFT_A=1T—"H E£EEKRER
EHANRM30,653000 hHEEEAREEEDN
18% °

Allowance for impairment of trade receivables is based
on lifetime expected credit losses, which is estimated
by taking into account the credit loss experience,
ageing of trade receivables, customers’ repayment
history and customers’ financial position and an
assessment of both current and forecast general
economic conditions, all of which involve significant
degree of management judgement.

FBEEFRENBEERENREBEERABELRANL
B Rk BEPFNERELMEFPOMBARR
PA K2 1 B A A0 F8R) A AR B A R AR 00 D B A 2R A AT
MIEMERRERBER HEELHE S NEEE
BB K H o

We have identified valuation of trade receivables as a
key audit matter because the impairment assessment
of trade receivables involved a significant degree of
management judgement and may be subject to
management bias.

BPEREERNBEFGEEE SERES=
B -ASEREEFREFGELREEENEX
H ERA e FERRREMNER -

Our audit procedures were designed to challenge the
assumptions and judgements of the Group’s expected
credit loss model on impairment assessment of trade
receivables.

B EIZF 5 A E 2 E s B RIORER A
EHERBRAERNRR LA EH R DGR -

We have assessed the reasonableness of
management’s estimates for impairment allowance by
examining the information used by management to form
such judgements, including testing accuracy of the
historical default data, evaluating whether the historical
loss rates are appropriately adjusted based on current
economic conditions and forward-looking information.

BP0 4025 T2 B DA MR L S BT 0 -
BRI SUE B3 O BURE) R IR - S E S RKEA
4R SR IS B0 40RO R AT B I R M R
AT (B I B SR E R M 2 R -

We have also inspected cash received from debtors
after year end relating to trade receivable balance as at
31 December 2018 on a sample basis.

HMEWMERE TFEFRUNEREZ AW G ER
2018F 12 ABIBEE ZEWERSBEANIRS -
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

BYZHBERS (H)

Valuation of inventories

Refer to note 19 to the consolidated financial statements and the

accounting policies on page 101.

The key audit matter
HARELER

FRE R EFE

TR -

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EERTFNEERLE

2EGEEP B RN FIORFEI01ENE

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had inventories
of approximately RMB39,610,000, which were
significant to the Group’s total current assets.

R-ZZE-—NFF+_A=1T—"H E5EFEEY
AR®39,610000 EEEERRPHEEERS

,f/'\ °

Taking into account of the variety of products and
relatively short life cycles of the Group’s products,
there are risks on obsolescence of long aged
inventories which may affect the valuation of
inventories held as at year end.

EZRINESE l?%ﬁﬁ%yﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁ
HERBRNFEEARNARIZEF KT
gHfhE-

We have identified valuation of inventories as a key
audit matter because the estimates on the net
realisable values of inventories entail a significant
degree of management judgement and may be
subject to management bias.

BHEFENREFGEE s EREFEE B
REBEFENAZ ﬁ@@ﬁ&%ﬁﬁmiﬁﬂ
B 2R EFEERRBENS

Our audit procedures were designed to assess the
methodology and assumptions used by management in
calculating the inventory provisions. We have reviewed
management’s identification of slow moving and
obsolete inventories, and critically assessed whether
appropriate provisions had been established for slow
moving and obsolete items. When considering
management’s assessment, we have also taken into
account the most recent prices achieved on sales
across different products.

BN EARFECETEEEBETEFERE
REMBOTEAMBRR BABFETEEBHHER
BMBRFENEN UBRIHTRER/EE

1B MBR IR B HE T EE AR E%ﬁ%ﬁ%
MFEE  RMAEEE T ATREMNRIHNEER
1% e

We have also assessed the reliability of management’s
assessment by considering the utilisation or release of
previously recorded provisions.

BMEABERATHEBNEANEE  FHEE
EFEFERBOREMNL -
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
B ZBEHRE (&)

Other Information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the information
included in the annual report other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors of the Company and
Audit and Risk Management Committee for the
Consolidated Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with IFRSs issued by the IASB and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors of the Company determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of
the Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors of the Company either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Audit and Risk Management Committee is responsible for overseeing
the Group’s financial reporting process.

BaWang International (Group) Holding Limited Annual Report 2018
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
BYBREERE (&)

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion, solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors of the Company.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
BYBREERE (&)

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the Company’s directors’
use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit and Risk Management Committee
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit and Risk Management Committee with a
statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to
bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

BaWang International (Group) Holding Limited Annual Report 2018
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
BYBREERE (&)

From the matters communicated with the Audit and Risk
Management Committee, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Mr. Wong Hon Kei, Anthony.

SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Wong Hon Kei, Anthony

Practising Certificate Number: P05591

Hong Kong
28 March 2019
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and
Other Comprehensive Income

GERERAMZEKRER

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ=-F—/\F+=-A=+—HILFE

2017
—T—tF
Notes RMB’000
Bt 5 AR T T
Revenue EER 7 264,215
Cost of sales 5 & B AR (136,902)
Gross profit EH 127,313
Other income E Al A 8 14,162
Selling and distribution costs HE R KR (93,726)
Administrative expenses THR X (27,866)
Impairment loss recognised in B S REWRNR 2 BIE
respect of trade receivables BERER 21 -
Other expenses H A X2 (157)
Finance costs B%ER 9 (495)
(Loss)/profit before taxation FriS Al (B 18) /) 19,231
Taxation Frig i 10 (4)
(Loss)/profit for the year attributable KNB B AEMNL
to owners of the Company ZFEAREE) /N HE 11 19,227
Other comprehensive (expense)/income £ fi 2 (£ H) /4 A
Item that may be reclassified HEEHSEE
subsequently to profit or loss: Bz IAE:
Exchange differences arising on BINETBERE 2
translation of foreign operations MR =% 4r7
Total comprehensive (expense)/income 7K A &G A FE(L
for the year attributable to owners of € N (X 1) /WA
the Company FEEE] 19,704
(Loss)/earnings per share ER(EER)/ER 14
Basic H K RMBO0.6081
cents
AR #0.60811l
Diluted Ha RMB0.6080
cents
A R ¥ 0.60801LL
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

& a BRI R

As at 31 December 2018 R=Z—\F+=-A=+—H

2017
—E—+F
RMB’000
ARBET T

132,403

47,581

45,458

6,947
20,000
46,050

166,036

117,439
1,346

9,070
338

128,193

Notes
B 3E
Non-current asset ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment WE  WEE&E 17
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 19
Right to returned goods asset BREFEZER 20
Trade and other receivables B 5 N H b g U BR 5K 21
Amounts due from related parties FE Uk BB B 75 3R OR 34(a)
Deposit with bank RITFE K 22
Bank balances and cash RITEHRRE R 22
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and other payables B 5 N H M EAER 23
Amounts due to related parties FE A BB B 75 3R IR 34(a)
Contract liabilities AHAaE 24
Refund liabilities EEBE 25
Bank borrowing RITE 26
Income tax payables JE P45 350
Provision PR E R 27
Net current assets REBEEFE
Net assets EEFE

37,843

BIER(RE)ERARLIE ZSB—I\FFEH

170,246
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (Continued)

meBRRE (R

As at 31 December 2018 R=ZZ— \F+=_A=+—H

2017
—ZE—tF
Notes RMB’000
B 5 ARBT T
Capital and reserves AR
Share capital [N 28(a) 277,878
Reserves 1 28(b) (107,632)
Total equity B 170,246

The consolidated financial statements on pages 72 to 179 were
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 28
March 2019 and are signed on its behalf by:

Mr. CHEN Qiyuan
FR RSIR
Director

EE

BaWang International (Group) Holding Limited Annual Report 2018
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Mr. CHEN Zheng He
FRIEES

Director
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
REEREHK

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ=-F—/\F+=-A=+—HILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

KAREBREABNL
Share Share PRC statutory Capital Merger Translation Other Accumulated
capital  premium reserves reserve reserve reserve reserve losses Total
HEEE
BRA  RAEE e EXRE AURE EXHE HtHE 2itEE RREE
RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000O RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTT ARETT ARETT ARBTT ARETT ARETI ARETR ARBTT AR%TR
(note 28(b)) (note 28(b))  (note 28(b))  (note 28(b))  (note 28(b))  (note 28(b))
(Hizros)  (Fst2sf) (P=t2s() (FizE2s() (F=E28() (i =28(0)
At 1 January 2017 R-F—+F—-A—H 277,878 1,400,650 49,887 2,814 8,468 (30,925) 9,421 (1,567,651) 150,542
Profit for the year EREF - - - - - - - 19,227 19,227
Other comprehensive income  E 2 @A
for the year
Exchange differences arising BN EHHREZERZE
on translation of foreign
operations - - - - - 477 - - 477
Total comprehensiveincome ~~ FRZEUWA L5
for the year = = = = = 477 = 19,227 19,704
At 31 December 2017 R=E—tF+=-A=1+—H 277,878 1,400,650 49,887 2814 8,468 (30,448) 9,421 (1,548,424) 170,246

At 1 January 2018 R=ZE-\F—-A—-H
Adjustment on adoption of KR BR B SR A R £05
IFRS 9 (note 2) R E (Msx2)

At 1 January 2018, as restated

RZZ-\F—A—H MEF

Loss for the year FRER

Other comprehensive expense L2 E X H
for the year

Exchange differences arising N EBHEVEREER
on translation of foreign
operations

Total comprehensive expense  FA 2 X 1B E

for the year

At 31 December 2018

RZE-NE+-A=t-H

BIEB(EEERERAT

ZE-N\FFER
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

GEBRERE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ=-F—/\F+=-A=+—HILFE

2017
—E—+F
RMB’000
ARBT T
OPERATING ACTIVITIES ReESE
(Loss)/profit before taxation A (EE)/FE 19,231
Adjustments for: BT AIEE A% -
Bank interest income |7 A B U A (379
Government grants received I T 76 B (2,741)
Allowance for inventories FEMKE 112
Depreciation of property, plant and M- -HERIEINE
equipment 17,159
Finance costs A& R AN 495
Impairment loss/(reversal of EHRKHKIEZ
impairment loss) recognised in WEEBKRER(FE)
respect of trade receivables (5,136)
Loss on disposals of property, plant BEEWE BEMKE
and equipment |k 34
Obsolete inventories written-off B HA T B R R 3,370
Reversal of over provision of other VAR5 JE B Ath FE 1 3R
payable in prior year MEEETIR 2 M —
Write-back of trade and other B REMENRED
payables (4,947)
Operating cash flows before working LEESFEAZ
capital changes KEBEEmE 27,198
Increase in inventories 17 & 3 hn (8,779)
Decrease in right to returned goods REFEZEFRLD
asset —
Decrease in trade and other receivables B 5 & H b JiE Ui I8 g 25,262
Decrease in amounts due from related FE Uk B8 Bt 7 ZRIE R
parties 1,128
Decrease in trade and other payables B 5 K H At & A ZRIE R (2,250)
Increase in amounts due to related JE 1 B8 38 7 ZOIA N
parties 686
Decrease in contract liabilities aREERD -
Decrease in refund liabilities EEaERY -
Decrease in provision FHREBRR S (2,165)
NET CASH FROM OPERATING RETHEENRSEEHE
ACTIVITIES 41,080
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (Continued)
REeEBRERER (B)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ=-F—/\F+=-A=+—HILFE

2017
—E—tF
RMB’000
AREEF T
INVESTING ACTIVITIES BETE
Purchase of property, plant and BEWE BELERE
equipment (14,952)
Repayment from related companies KB ER -
Bank interest received 2 HERITFIE 379
Proceeds from disposals of property, BEYHE WERX
plant and equipment BABER TS RIE 4
Withdrawal of pledged bank deposits R EFRITIHER 10
NET CASH FROM/(USED IN) BEEBHEEX/(FFA®
INVESTING ACTIVITIES BeFHE (14,559)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES MEEE
New bank borrowing raised T RITE N 3,825
Government grants received BB & 2,741
Interest paid =ENEAES) (4995)
Repayments of bank borrowing EERITENR (9,435)
NET CASH FROM/(USED IN) BMEESHELE/(FFA®
FINANCING ACTIVITIES ReFH (3,364)
NET INCREASEINCASHANDCASH BEeRRLEEBYEMZFBE
EQUIVALENTS 23,157
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT REJFZHEEREALSZEY
BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 22,312
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE Exgage
RATE CHANGES 581
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT REKZHELBES
END OF THE YEAR, representing bank  Z &%) » B35 R 17
balances and cash “EHEERR® 46,050

BIER(RE)ERARLIE ZSB—I\FFEH 77
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B R R

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ=-F—/\F+=-A=+—HILFE

General and Basis of Preparation of
Consolidated Financial Statements

BaWang International (Group) Holding Limited (the “Company”)
was incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempted
company with limited liability and its shares are listed on the
Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”). Its immediate holding company is Fortune
Station Limited (“Fortune Station”), which is incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands (the “BVI”) and is owned as to: (1) 49.57%
by Heroic Hour Limited, a company that is beneficially owned
as to 22.00% by Mr. CHEN Zheng He, the chief executive
officer and an executive director of the Company, and 78.00%
by Mr. CHEN Zheng He’s six brothers and sisters; (2) 25.72%
by Mr. CHEN Qiyuan, the chairman of the board of directors of
the Company (the “Directors”); and (8) 24.71% by Ms. WAN
Yuhua, a former director and the former chief executive officer
of the Company (collectively referred to as the “Controlling
Shareholders”). On 16 July 2018, Ms. WAN Yuhua had
transferred her 24.71% equity interest in Fortune Station to Mr.
CHEN Qiyuan.

The address of the registered office is at Cricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111,
Cayman Islands and the principal place of business is at
Bawang Industrial Park, 468 Guanghua 3rd Road, Baiyun
District, Guangzhou, 510450, the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC”).

The principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries
(hereinafter collectively referred to as the “Group”) are
manufacturing and sales of the household and personal care
products.

The functional currency of the Company is Hong Kong dollars
(“HK$"). The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Renminbi (“BMB”), which is the functional currency of the
primary economic environment in which the principal
subsidiaries of the Group operate in the PRC.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A B R A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ=-F—/\F+=-A=+—HILFE

2. Application of New and Amendments to
International Financial Reporting Standards
(“IFRS(s)”)

In the current year, the Group has applied, for its first time, the
following new and amendments to IFRSs, which include IFRSs,
International Accounting Standards (“IAS(s)”), amendments and
interpretations (“Int(s)”) issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (the “IASB”) and the IFRS Interpretations
Committee (“IFRIC”) of the IASB.

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers and related
Amendments

IFRIC 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and

Advance Consideration

Amendments to IFRS 2  Classification and Measurement of
Share-based Payment
Transactions

Amendments to IFRS 4  Applying IFRS 9 Financial Instruments
with IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts

Amendments to IAS 28 As part of Annual Improvements to
IFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle

Amendments to IAS 40 Transfers of Investment Property

The impact of the adoption of IFRS 9 Financial Instruments and
IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers have been
summarised below. The application of other new and
amendments to IFRSs in the current year has had no material
effect on the Group’s financial performance and position for the
current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in
these consolidated financial statements.

FE 35 5T % S 45 5T E PR B
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A B R A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ=-F—/\F+=-A=+—HILFE

2. Application of New and Amendments to

International Financial Reporting Standards

(“|FRS(S)”) (Continued)

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

IFRS 15 superseded IAS 11 Construction Contracts, IAS 18
Revenue and related interpretations and it applies to all revenue
arising from contracts with customers, unless those contracts
are in the scope of other standards. The new standard
established a five-step model for determining whether, how
much and when revenue is recognised. The Group has elected
to adopt the modified retrospective approach for contracts with
customers that are not completed as at the date of initial
application (i.e. 1 January 2018) with the cumulative effect of
initially applying IFRS 15 as an adjustment to the opening
balance of accumulated losses and comparative information is
not restated. Accordingly, certain comparative information may
not be comparable as comparative information was prepared

under IAS 18 Revenue. Details are described below.

The Group’s accounting policies for its revenue streams are

disclosed in detail in note 3 below.

The transition to IFRS 15 had no significant impact on the

accumulated losses at 1 January 2018.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A B R A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z =T — \F+_A=+—HLEFE

2. Application of New and Amendments to 2.
International Financial Reporting Standards

(“|FRS(S)”) (Continued)

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

(Continued)

@Eﬁﬂﬁéﬁﬂﬁmy
7% ;& 2 A ([ Bl BR 81 %% 3R
S48 ) @)
BEMEREEENEI5KER
Sk A (&)

The amount of adjustment for each financial statement line item
of the consolidated statement of financial position at 1 January

2018 affected by the application of IFRS 15 is illustrated below.

Line items that were not affected by the changes have not been

HZE2018F1 A1H LT BEHRREE
WEPZREB I B RELERE159E
EBRTENSVMBHRRITEENS
BoHNT TXERFENTHE

included. BREBEEN -
Carrying
amounts Carrying
previously Impact on amounts as
reported as at adoption of restated as at
31 December IFRS 15 — 1 January
2017 Reclassification 2018
FE P B B
BE2017F HHEHREEDN HBE2018F
12H31H 1 EASEEH 18181
REEH# TENTE RESHE
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
iik=3 AREF T AREFTTT AR®T
Current assets RBEE
Inventories FE (@) 47,581 (9,306) 38,275
Right to returned goods iR [B1 17 & 2~ # F|
asset () — 9,306 9,306
Current liabilities REEE
Trade and other B 5 K& H M pE
payables A (@)&(o) 117,439 (32,982) 84,457
Refund liabilities BEAE (@) — 16,746 16,746
Contract liabilities GHAaE (b) - 16,236 16,236
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A B R A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 &%= —

Z-\F+A=+—RIFE

2. Application of New and Amendments to
International Financial Reporting Standards
(“|FRS(S)”) (Continued)

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
(Continued)

(@)

The Group provides customers with a right to return the
goods within a specified period, the Group previously
estimated expected returns using a probability-weighted
average amount approach similar to the expected value
method under IFRS 15. Prior to adoption of IFRS 15, the
amount of revenue related to the expected returns was
deferred and recognised in the consolidated statement of
financial position within trade and other payables with a
corresponding adjustment to cost of sales. The initial
carrying amount of goods expected to be returned was
included within inventories.

Under IFRS 15, the consideration received from the
customer is variable because the contract allows the
customer to return the goods. The Group uses the
expected value method to estimate the goods that will be
returned because this method best predicts the amount of
variable consideration to which the Group will be entitled.
The Group applies the requirements in IFRS 15 on
constraining estimates of variable consideration to
determine the amount of variable consideration that can
be included in the transaction price. The Group presents a
refund liability and a right to returned goods asset
separately in the consolidated statement of financial
position.

Upon adoption of IFRS 15, the Group reclassified the
provision for the right of return from trade and other
payables to refund liabilities and the related return asset
from inventories to right to returned goods asset.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

%J:'FAEM%&%EW?I(,%)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #ZE—

—NF+-A=t—HLFE

Application of New and Amendments to 2. ERAMNGR&IEE]ER
International Financial Reporting Standards F& 3R 4 AE B ([ BR PR BF 78 3R
(“IFRS(s)”) (Continued) =28 ]) @)

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers EEMERSENE1SRER

(Continued) eﬁl&l (#&)

(b) At the date of initial application, an amount of b) EERRFZA BFHMEM
RMB16,236,000 related to advance consideration ENRPRBREERTERIEHE
received from customers in accordance with sales ARIKENEBMNRAEBH AR
contracts was included in trade and other payables. The Vﬂ% 16,236,0007T ° 18 # B BX Bf
balance was reclassified to contract liabilities upon IS ERE155E N HEE EZ
application of IFRS 15 as it represented the Group’s BEBERESEAARARG
performance obligation to transfer goods in the future. AERRTEBRERKRER E?

MFFERITHERT -

Disclosure of the estimated impact on the amounts I EE2018F1A1HERE BB

reported in respect of the year ended 31 December KBRS ENE155E M H2018FE 12

2018 as a result of the adoption of IFRS 15 on 1 B31HEEHRSEEENMEIE

January 2018

The following tables summarise the impacts of applying IFRS 15 X Bt T FE R BB B RS R A A

on the consolidated statement of profit or loss for the current FISHUBREAEBERREELAFEE 2

year and the consolidated statement of financial position at 31 22 BB ERBEE e TR E18

December 2018, by comparing the amounts reported under ECRENEBENARNNESTE B2

IAS 18 that were in effect before the change. Line items that 2018F 12 A1 A IE Wi & B AR

were not affected by the adjustments have not been included. ﬁ?z REBEELEEARTE - NS AE

The adoption of IFRS 15 did not have material impact on the T ENIERSA @#—EE A o fE B

Group’s operating, investing and financing cash flows. f?’% B 765 3 45 % Bl S5 15 5% ¥ AN F B &

2 - RENMMEBEGERLEELE
7%,\ Zo
Impact on the consolidated statement of profit or loss for the HEE2018F12H31HIF FRHFA
year ended 31 December 2018 B ka2
Amounts
excluding
Impact of impact of
adopting adopting
As reported IFRS 15 IFRS 15
T EIEER
FE A B FR BREF SR &
MEREER ERE155KH
WEH F15HNE FENSEH
Note RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
e AR®TT ARBT T AR T T
Revenue X (@) 293,922 723 294,645
Selling and distribution  $8 & & 5 8 Ak A~ 8 A
costs (@) (113,360) (723) (114,083)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A B R A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 &%= —

2. Application of New and Amendments to 2.
International Financial Reporting Standards

(“|FRS( ) ) (Continued)

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

(Continued)

Disclosure of the estimated impact on the amounts
reported in respect of the year ended 31 December
2018 as a result of the adoption of IFRS 15 on 1

January 2018 (Continued)

T N\Ft-AS+-ALEE

Eﬁﬁﬂﬁéﬁﬂﬁmy
7% =) & 2& Al ([ B bR B 7% R
EFZA ) @)
BEMEREEENEI5KER
Sl A (&)

HEE2018F1A1HERAERM
S ENE155% M #H20185F 12
R31BEFERELTHMHEF
(#)

Impact on the consolidated statement of financial position at 31 BB Z2018F 12 531 H IF 454 B 7
December 2018 MK
Amounts
excluding
Impact of impact of
adopting adopting
As reported IFRS 15 IFRS 15
FTEREER
ERBEKR BEMRIHBERE
HMB|EER ERIE155KH
MES F15HKME FENESE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR Tt AR+t AR%T=x
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 39,610 2,392 42,002
Right to returned goods asset 3R 6117 & 2~ 1 7 2,392 (2,392) —
Current liabilities REAEE
Trade and other payables EH5REMEMNERR 81,368 11,751 93,119
Contract liabilities BREE 7,587 (7,587) -
Refund liabilities BEEAE 4,164 (4,164) —
(@ The application of IFRS 15 resulted in the consideration @ ERABEESRESEREI55E

payable to a customer recorded as a reduction of the
arrangement’s transaction price, thereby reducing the
amount of revenue recognised, unless the payment is for
distinct good or service received from the customer. As a
result, revenue and selling and distribution costs for the
year ended 31 December 2018 reduced by RMB723,000.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A B R A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ=-F—/\F+=-A=+—HILFE

Application of New and Amendments to 2. ERAMNGR&IEE]ER

International Financial Reporting Standards 75 3R &5 2 Bl ([ 3 PR B 7% 3R

(“IFRS(s)”) (Continued) HEEA ) @)

IFRS 9 Financial instruments FHMEEEEAFEORER
IR

IFRS 9 replaces the provisions of IAS 39 that relate to the B R B 7% 2R &5 E Bl S 05k B X B PR =

recognition, classification and measurement of financial assets
and financial liabilities, derecognition of financial instruments,
impairment of financial assets and hedge accounting. The
Group has applied IFRS 9 retrospectively to financial
instruments that have not been derecognised at the date of
initial application (i.e. 1 January 2018) in accordance with the
transition provisions under IFRS 9, and chosen not to restate
comparative information. Differences in the carrying amounts of
financial assets and financial liabilities on initial application are
recognised in accumulated losses as at 1 January 2018.

The Group’s accounting policies for the classification and
measurement of financial instruments and the impairment of
financial assets are disclosed in detail in note 3 below.

Classification and measurement of financial
instruments

The Directors reviewed and assessed the Group’s existing
financial assets as at 1 January 2018 based on the facts and
circumstances that existed at that date and concluded that all
recognised financial assets and financial liabilities that are within
the scope of IFRS 9 are continued to measure at amortised
cost as were previously measured under IAS 39.

Loss allowance for expected credit losses (“ECL”)

The adoption of IFRS 9 has changed the Group’s accounting
for impairment losses for financial assets by replacing IAS 39’s
incurred loss model with a forward-looking ECL approach. As
at 1 January 2018, the Directors reviewed and assessed the
Group’s existing financial assets for impairment using
reasonable and supportable information that is available without
undue cost or effort in accordance with the requirement of IFRS 9.

As at 1 January 2018, an additional allowance on the Group’s
trade receivables of approximately RMB1,584,000 has been
recognised, thereby increasing the opening accumulated losses
of approximately RMB1,584,000.

FTEREFEHEHMEENS /@
BEENER 2HENGE &8I
ENBHERER cREEREBENY
HMEERRTE BEEBEVBRE
ZRFIFRTHBREKRR  AEEE
15 B B B 75 R 45 ZE BI S8 955 1B W3 i R
REBEXH B ZH(BI20184F1 A1
H)MAEHERNSHIE Wi
BAEINLEBEE -BARERS
BMEENCHREEFEAEENER
B st A20184F1 A1 H 2:tEEH -

AEEEEARERMI A EMTE
UEEREERENSTH XD
R T XM EES e

EMIANSENHE

EEEETMTHAEBER2018F1
A1/ <& EE N 7E B BR 5 7% 3R
CRAFFHEANNEFTENSE
BEENMESREE BEEBRIE T
AT B B & &t %€ BI) 55 305k # $5 Ak AN 51

=
= °

AREREXEM(TECL])

FE P BB B 7 ¥R & 42 R 505k BA RN
BE 1% MECL A & BUAR B B & 51 % Al
FRHFHEBHENBARER Q&
TERHeMEEREBEBAIANG
ZE - HE2018F1A1HLIE E=F
948 3% B BR B 75 ) & 2 B 5595k Y
ER - FHABAUXENES
HEERENEREEET TRE
BB -

BHZE2018F1A1RH I NEEC #
REZFRUKBBRIINBEBEOARS
1,584,0007C - M EFRFALLE
BB INA) A R #1,584,0007T °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

%F?AEM%E%EW?I(%)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z =T — \F+_A=+—HLEFE

(Continued)

2. Application of New and Amendments to 2. ERAMNGR&IEE]ERE
International Financial Reporting Standards F& 3R 4 A B ([ R PR B 78 3R
(“IFRS(s)”) (Continued) =R ]) @)

IFRS 9 Financial instruments (Continued) F M ERSERNEORER
IR (&)
Loss allowance for expected credit losses (“ECL”) FHIEIELE M (TECL]) (1)
(Continued)
The following table shows the adjustment recognised for each TXBRTEREEBTEAE®NHA
individual line item. Line items that were not affected by the B, KT ENTTEE KA
changes have not been included. Further details are disclosed
in note 21 to the consolidated financial statements.
Carrying
amount
previously Carrying
reported as at Adoption of amount as at
31 December IFRS 9 — 1 January
2017 Remeasurement 2018
BZ2017F
128318 1t RABBRMYE BE2018F
RAIEHRE BMEEAEIR 18181k
W AR E B 7 BB 2 E REE
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AR®ET T AR®ETT
Trade and other receivables & 5 [z H ) i€ 4 f% 5% 45,458 (1,584) 43,874
Impact on accumulated losses HEGGRHEE
The impact of transition to IFRS 9 on accumulated losses is as M B R B S SR & R 958 B E H &2
follows: AEEATENT
Accumulated
losses
AitEE
RMB’000
ARBFT
Balance as at 31 December 2017 1R 1% B BR & 5 2 Bl 55 39 5%
under IAS 39 HZE2017F12A31 B LA #45E 1,548,424
Recognition of expected credit losses 8 15 B FX B #4 3 & % B 955 -
for trade receivables under IFRS 9 HRESEWEZINEHEHEX 1,584
Balance as at 1 January 2018 under 1B 5 B R B 75 R 5 22 RSB O 5% -
IFRS 9 B ZE20185F1 A1 8 LA 4R 1,550,008
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A B R A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ=-F—/\F+=-A=+—HILFE

2. Application of New and Amendments to 2.

International Financial Reporting Standards

(“|FRS(S)”) (Continued)

New and revised
effective

IFRSs

issued but not yet

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to IFRSs and interpretation that have been issued

but are not yet effective:

IFRS 16

IFRS 17

Amendments to IFRS 3

Amendments to IFRS 9

Amendments to IFRS 10
and IAS 28

Amendments to IAS 1 and
IAS 8

Amendments to IAS 19

Amendments to IAS 28

Amendments to IFRSs

IFRIC 23

o & © N o=

Leases'
Insurance Contracts®
Definition of a Business®

Prepayment Features with Negative
Compensation’

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture*

Definition of Material®

Plan Amendment, Curtailment or
Settlement’

Long-term Interests in Associates
and Joint Ventures'

Annual Improvements to IFRSs
2015-2017 Cycle'

Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments'

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be determined
Effective for business combination and asset acquisition for which the

acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the first annual period beginning

on or after 1 January 2020

The Directors anticipate that, except as described below, the
application of other new and amendments to IFRSs will have no

Afi
7% ;& 2 A ([ Bl BR 81 %% 3R
£ 28 ]) @)
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STEIP R RS 3Rk e A
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material impact on the results and the financial position of the
Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A B R A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ=-F—/\F+=-A=+—HILFE

2. Application of New and Amendments to

International Financial Reporting Standards

(“|FRS(S)”) (Continued)

New and revised IFRSs issued but not yet

effective (Continued)

IFRS 16 Leases

IFRS 16 provides a comprehensive model for the identification
of lease arrangements and their treatment in the financial

statements of both lessors and lessees.

In respect of the lessee accounting, the standard introduces a
single lessee accounting model, requiring lessees to recognise
assets and liabilities for all leases with the lease term of more
than 12 months, unless the underlying asset has a low value.

At the commencement date of the lease, the lessee is required
to recognise a right-of-use asset at cost, which consists of the
amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability, plus any
lease payments made to the lessor at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives received, the
initial estimate of restoration costs and any initial direct costs
incurred by the lessee. A lease liability is initially recognised at
the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at that

date.

Subsequently, the right-of-use asset is measured at cost less
any accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment
losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease
liability. Lease liability is subsequently measured by increasing
the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability,
reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease payment
made, and remeasuring the carrying amount to reflect any
reassessment or lease modifications or to reflect revised in-
substance fixed lease payments. Depreciation and impairment
expenses, if any, on the right-of-use asset will be charged to
profit or loss following the requirements of IAS 16 Property,
Plant and Equipment, while interest accrual on lease liability will

be charged to profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A B R A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ=-F—/\F+=-A=+—HILFE

Application of New and Amendments to 2. BRI REKIEST B
International Financial Reporting Standards 75 3R &5 2 Bl ([ 3 PR B 7% 3R
(“IFRS(s)”) (Continued) =28 ]) @)
New and revised IFRSs issued but not yet CHEGERKRENPFITREE
effective (Continued) FTEIBR B 35 4R &5 S A (48)
IFRS 16 Leases (Continued) BEHMEREERE 165 HE ()
In respect of the lessor accounting, IFRS 16 substantially carries HmHEBEASTHEREEMS  BERY%
forward the lessor accounting requirements in IAS 17 Leases. HMELEHFEI6HEELE L AR =
Accordingly, a lessor continues to classify its leases as FTERFI7THRAOEEASEHBE -
operating leases or finance leases, and to account for those - HEANEEBSERESER
two types of leases differently. KEHESMEHRE WATRF
A5t mMEEHEE AR -
IFRS 16 wil supersede the current lease standards including B B 75 R 25 % Bl 551657 A4 %1%
IAS 17 Leases and the related interpretations when it becomes EHRRIEAHEEER  aEEERS
effective. FFERE1I7TREAERARARE -
As at 31 December 2018, the Group has non-cancellable HZE2018F12A31HIE KEEEP
operating lease commitments of RMB17,156,000 as disclosed METAIRENELEHERTL €
in note 31. A preliminary assessment indicates that these %A A R #17,156,000 7t @0 KT 5% 3|
arrangements will mest the definition of a lease under IFRS 16, TR H T EHBER BTGB
and hence the Group will recognise right-of-use assets and AR RS ERFE165 T
corresponding liabilities in respect of all these leases unless they ENTEE ERAEEEeEAFE
are exempt from the reporting obligations under IFRS 16. The AHREERMAERERE  BIER
Directors expect that, apart from the changes in the EEERB SRS ERFE165 A B HE
measurement, presentation and disclosure as indicated above, EERCEREMTBERR - AQ
the adoption of IFRS 16 will not have other material impact on RIEEHE B LU ERTE 2
amounts reported in the Group’s consolidated financial y 2 iR R 2 B E) N o B 4R B PR B S
statements. HELEAFE16HR G T EHAEBER
ENBHRERMER S BEKEM
BEAEE-
Significant Accounting Policies 3. FEESFTHXE

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with IFRSs issued by the IASB. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

KRB BHRRDRIEER @5 £
AIZESRMNBRMERSE
AlfmEL- o NEEHBHRRE
BRTBMXAEFLTARNT LEWR
A1) A FEE R BRI E R E B ®
B
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e B R R M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ=-F—/\F+=-A=+—HILFE

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants in the principal (or most advantageous)
market at the measurement date under current market
conditions (i.e. an exit price) regardless of whether that price is
directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. Details of fair value measurement are explained in
the accounting policies set out below.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company and its subsidiaries.

Control is achieved where the Group has: (i) the power over the
investee; (i) exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and (iii) the ability to use its power
over the investee to affect the amount of the Group’s returns.

The Group reassess whether it controls an investee if facts and
circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more
of these elements of control stated above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control of the subsidiary and cease when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary.

BaWang International (Group) Holding Limited Annual Report 2018
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A B R A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ=-F—/\F+=-A=+—HILFE

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 2ETBE @
Basis of consolidation (Continued) FERBZEEE)

Income and expenses of subsidiaries are included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group gains control
until the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income of subsidiaries are attributed to the owners of the
Company. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries is
attributed to the owners of the Company.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between entities of the
Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Revenue recognition

Policy applicable to the year ended 31 December 2018
(with application of IFRS 15)

Revenue is recognised to depict the transfer of promised goods
to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to
which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those
goods. Specifically, the Group uses a 5-step approach to
revenue recognition:

° Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer
o Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the contract
o Step 3: Determine the transaction price

o Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance
obligations in the contract

° Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies
a performance obligation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A B R A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ=-F—/\F+=-A=+—HILFE

3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Policy applicable to the year ended 31 December 2018

(with application of IFRS 15) (Continued)

The Group recognised revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods
underlying the particular performance obligation is transferred to

customers.

A performance obligation represents a good (or a bundle of
goods) that is distinct or a series of distinct goods that are

substantially same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised over
time by reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction
of the relevant performance obligation if one of the following

criteria is met:

o The customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group’s performance as the

Group performs;

O The Group’s performance creates and enhances an asset
that the customer controls as the asset is created and

enhanced; or

° The Group’s performance does not create an asset with
an alternative use to the Group and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for performance completed

to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the

customer obtains control of the distinct goods.

Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified in a
contract with a customer, excludes amounts collected on behalf

of third parties, discounts and sales related taxes.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A B R A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ=-F—/\F+=-A=+—HILFE

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Policy applicable to the year ended 31 December 2018
(with application of IFRS 15) (Continued)

Contract assets and contract liabilities

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to consideration
in exchange for goods that the Group has transferred to a
customer that is not yet unconditional. It is assessed for
impairment in accordance with IFRS 9. In contrast, a receivable
represents the Group’s unconditional right to consideration, i.e.
only the passage of time is required before payment of that
consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to transfer
goods to a customer for which the Group has received
consideration from the customer.

For a single contract with the customer, either a net contract
asset or a net contract liability is presented.

The Group recognised revenue from the sales of goods
including (i) hair-care products; (i) skin-care products; and (iii)
other household and personal care products.

Sales of goods

Revenue from sales of goods is recognised when control of the
products has transferred, being when the products are
delivered to the customer, the customer has full discretion over
the channel and price to sell the products, and there is no
unfulfilled obligation that could affect the customer’s acceptance
of the products.

Right of return

When a contract provides a customer with a right to return the
goods within a specified period, the consideration received from
the customer is variable because the contract allows the
customer to return the products. The Group uses the expected
value method to estimate the goods that will be returned. For
goods expected to be returned, the Group presents a refund
liability as “Refund liabilities” and an asset for the right to recover
products from a customer as “Right to returned goods asset”.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A B R A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ=-F—/\F+=-A=+—HILFE

3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Policy applicable to the year ended 31 December 2017

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable for goods sold in the normal course of
business, net of discounts allowed, estimated customer returns,

rebates and other similar allowances.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the goods
are delivered and titles have passed, at which time all the

following conditions are satisfied:

o the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant risks

and rewards of ownership of the goods;

° the Group retains neither continuing managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with

ownership nor effective control over the goods sold;

o the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

o it is probable that the economic benefits associated with

the transaction will flow to the Group; and

o the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the

transaction can be measured reliably.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and
the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest
income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal
outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which
is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that

asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of
the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as

operating leases.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ=-F—/\F+=-A=+—HILFE

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)
Leasing (Continued)
The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term. In the event that lease
incentives are received to enter into operating leases, such
incentives are recognised as a liability. The aggregate benefit of
incentives is recognised as a reduction of rental expense on a
straight-line basis.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in the
respective functional currency (i.e. the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates) at the rates
of exchange prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At the
end of each reporting period, monetary items denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that
date. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise,
except for exchange differences arising on a monetary item that
forms part of the Company’s net investment in a foreign
operation, in which case, such exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
equity and will be reclassified from equity to profit or loss on
disposal of the foreign operation.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of the
Group (i.e. RMB) using exchange rates prevailing at the end of
each reporting period. Income and expenses items are
translated at the average exchange rates for the year. Exchange
differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under the
heading of translation reserve.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A B R A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ=-F—/\F+=-A=+—HILFE

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of
those assets until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale.

Borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they are incurred.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions
attaching to them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation for
expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving
immediate financial support to the Group with no future related
costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
become receivable.

Retirement benefit costs and termination
benefits

Payments to state-managed retirement benefit schemes and
the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) are
recognised as an expense when employees have rendered
service entitling them to the contributions, except to the extent
that they are included in the cost of inventories not yet
recognised as an expense.

Short-term and other long-term employee
benefits

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees in
respect of wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave in
the period the related service is rendered at the undiscounted
amount of the benefits expected to be paid in exchange for that
service.

BaWang International (Group) Holding Limited Annual Report 2018

FTEESTHE @)

EREE

NEERBERNBEAELENA K
THEENBRXNE EFELB
HE & B HIRGE B e 78
ERERRERERHENENE
o B EE2 b FIe T8 E A £ AR
e E A E R (R B E IR 0
BB BEENKASR -

/|

ERRARELHEEeN BaP i

I T ¥ Bh

EABMIREANEEE ST I
B & Y 25 (6 5 LA 2 45 & 5.5 4 B
% BIFHBE Y& T IAHER -

AEREASBECEELERAXRERE
KEERSANEEREGEINFEHFEED
(7 4 2R 2 48 A A AN) 2 J& W DR I 8
By TR EMK AR WA 2 BE R 18

O
AR o

BHEFREMREER

X EBEREEARKENE R
BHEELAEEAERRAREREER
RUEEBEEESABERXNRSE
RERDZTERS/MAX  HDFTA
) AN FE R A B S B 77 B R AR I AR
B o

HEHMAEMRBERER

BERTIE HE2 FREBRE
st @A R AR 75 HI R R TR A
LIRS A SRR R ITREHEM
ERRARE-



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—_Z— \F+_A=+—HILFE

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Short-term and other long-term employee
benefits (Continued)

Liabilities recognised in respect of short-term employee benefits
are measured at the undiscounted amount of the benefits
expected to be paid in exchange for the related service.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from (loss) profit before taxation as
reported in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income because it excludes items of
income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years
and it further excludes items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in
the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary difference to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profits will be available against which those deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from the initial recognition of assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ=-F—/\F+=-A=+—HILFE

3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising
from deductible temporary differences associated with such
investments are only recognised to the extent that it is probable
that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise
the benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected

to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available

to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of

the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to
recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except
when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the
current and deferred tax are also recognised in other

comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—_Z— \F+_A=+—HILFE

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings held for use
in the production or supply of goods, or for administrative
purposes and bearer plants, are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost, less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to allocate the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment other than construction in
progress and immature bearer plants less their residual values
over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method.
The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with
the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a
prospective basis.

Properties in the course of construction for production, supply
or administrative purposes are carried at cost, less any
recognised impairment loss. Costs include professional fees
and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised in
accordance with the Group’s accounting policy. Such
properties are classified to the appropriate categories of
property, plant and equipment when completed and ready for
intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis
as other property assets, commences when the assets are
ready for their intended use.

Bearer plants are classified as immature until the produce can
be commercially harvested. At that point, immature bearer
plants are reclassified to bearer plants and depreciation
commences. Immature bearer plants are measured at
accumulated costs.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to
arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant
and equipment is determined as the difference between the
sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ=-F—/\F+=-A=+—HILFE

3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Biological assets

Biological assets are living plants involved in the agricultural
activities of the transformation of biological assets into
agricultural produce for sale or into additional biological assets.
Biological assets are measured at fair value less costs to sell at
initial recognition and at the end of each reporting period while
agricultural produce harvested from the biological assets are
measured at fair value less costs to sell at the point of harvest,
which is deemed as the cost at that date when the agricultural

produce becomes inventory or additional biological assets.

A gain or loss arising on the initial recognition of a biological
asset at fair value less costs to sell and from a change in fair
value less costs to sell of a biological asset is included in profit
or loss for the period in which it arises. A gain or loss arising on
the initial recognition of agricultural produce at fair value less
costs to sell is included in profit or loss for the period in which it

arises.

If an active market exists for a biological asset or agricultural
produce with reference to comparable species, growing
condition and expected yield of the crops, the quoted price in
that market is adopted for determining the fair value of that
asset. If an active market does not exist, the Group uses the
most recent market transaction price, provided that there has
not been a significant change in economic circumstances
between the transaction date and the end of reporting period,
or the market prices for similar assets adjusted to reflect
differences to determine fair values or as determined by

independent professional valuers.

Subsequent expenditure relating to producing and harvesting
biological assets are charged to expense when incurred and
costs that increase the number of units of biological assets
owned or controlled by the Group are capitalised in the carrying

amount of the biological assets.

BaWang International (Group) Holding Limited Annual Report 2018

FES R @)

EMRE

EMEETDREw2EY  F R
EYMEEBLLRTEREMAE(L
REZEMEE-EVMEERVY
BRLEEZ2RMBRIZ LA EERE
ERAHAE MREMEAAEE
WU IEHE R AT E  ERR
REEMBEFELRELZEYEE
LRI

NPHEABERAABEEZHEL
ZBEBREMEEZHERANTIRN
ELHRARNERRER 1 THER
HERAABEEIELZAER
BEEMZHEKRARRELHH
RE R MR o

MEVMEEXRRERK2EA LR
BEYMzmE - A=K EBEHK
BRrEEABRTS  AIRATS L
B ERETRXEEZCAABE:
W A FEERTS  AEBERR
ABROITERX5EFE XS
FREFEHRZATELRERL
EERAEHXFAAEECTEEL
HAEBEERREBUETAABENL
MBY EXMGHEMEE -

BREEMEEMBIENEEMRE
AR HEHRLERFTFAER  MB
LEMTEEREALEZGNEY
BEHBENKARRETEESE X
=



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ=-F—/\F+=-A=+—HILFE

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) FESTHRXR@
Research and development expenditure MERRAEER

Expenditure on research and development activities is
recognised as an expense in the period in which it is incurred.

Inventories

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Costs of inventories are calculated using the weighted
average method, and include expenditure incurred in acquiring
the inventories, production or conversion costs and other costs
incurred in bringing them to their existing location and condition.
In case of manufactured inventories and work in progress, cost
includes an appropriate share of the production overheads
based on normal operating capacity. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price for inventories less all
estimated costs of completion and costs necessary to make the
sale.

The amount of any write-down of inventories to net realisable
value and all losses of inventories are recognised as an expense
in the period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any
reversal of any write down of inventories is recognised as a
reduction in the amount of inventories recognised as an
expense in the period in which the reversal occurs.

Cash and cash equivalents

Bank balances and cash in the consolidated statement of
financial position comprise cash at banks and on hand and
short-term deposits with a maturity of three months or less.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents consist of bank balances and cash
and short-term deposits as defined above.

Deposits with a maturity over three months that are not readily
convertible into known amounts of cash are defined as deposit
with bank in the consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ=-F—/\F+=-A=+—HILFE

3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Investments in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries are stated on the statement of
financial position of the Company at cost less accumulated

impairment loss.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position when a group entity
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets

or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.

Under IFRS 9 (applicable on or after 1 January 2018)

Financial assets

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are
recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame

established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured in
their entirety at either amortised cost or fair value, depending on
the classification of the financial assets. The classification of
financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial
asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics and the Group’s

business model for managing them .

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

The Group measures financial assets subsequently at amortised

cost if both of the following conditions are met:

o the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is to hold financial assets in order to collect

contractual cash flows; and
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ=-F—/\F+=-A=+—HILFE

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) FEETHE@
Financial instruments (Continued) &M T R\

Under IFRS 9 (applicable on or after 1 January 2018)
(Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments) (Continued)

o the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured
using the effective interest method and are subject to
impairment.

Amortised cost and effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period.

For financial assets other than purchased or originated credit-
impaired financial assets (i.e. assets that are credit-impaired on
initial recognition), the effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all
fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of the
effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or
discounts) excluding expected credit losses, through the
expected life of the debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a
shorter period, to the gross carrying amount of the debt
instrument on initial recognition. For purchased or originated
credit-impaired financial assets, a credit adjusted effective
interest rate is calculated by discounting the estimated future
cash flows, including expected credit losses, to the amortised
cost of the debt instrument on initial recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A B R A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ=-F—/\F+=-A=+—HILFE

3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Under IFRS 9 (applicable on or after 1 January 2018)

(Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Amortised cost and effective interest method (Continued)

The amortised cost of a financial asset is the amount at which
the financial asset is measured at initial recognition minus the
principal repayments, plus the cumulative amortisation using the
effective interest method of any difference between that initial
amount and the maturity amount, adjusted for any loss
allowance. The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is the
amortised cost of a financial asset before adjusting for any loss

allowance.

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for debt instruments measured subsequently at
amortised cost. For financial assets other than purchased or
originated credit-impaired financial assets, interest income is
calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the gross
carrying amount of a financial asset, except for financial assets
that have subsequently become credit-impaired. For financial
assets that have subsequently become credit-impaired, interest
income is recognised by applying the effective interest rate to
the amortised cost of the financial asset. If, in subsequent
reporting periods, the credit risk on the credit-impaired financial
instrument improves so that the financial asset is no longer
credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of the

financial asset.

Interest income is recognised in profit or loss and is included in

the “Other income” line item (note 8).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ=-F—/\F+=-A=+—HILFE

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 2ETBE @
Financial instruments (Continued) &M T R\

Under IFRS 9 (applicable on or after 1 January 2018)
(Continued)

REERMEBREENER(ER
R-Z—N\F—RA—HBHZ&) (&)

Financial assets (Continued) THEE ()
Impairment of financial assets = & E R E
The Group recognises a loss allowance for expected credit REBRAIZHEHKARGTEDNES

losses on investments in debt instruments that are measured at
amortised cost. The amount of expected credit losses is
updated at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk
since initial recognition of the respective financial instrument.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade receivables.
The expected credit losses on these financial assets are
estimated using a provision matrix based on the Group’s
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are
specific to the debtors, general economic conditions and an
assessment of both the current as well as the forecast direction
of conditions at the reporting date, including time value of
money where appropriate.

For all other financial instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12-month ECL, unless when there has a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the
Group recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether
lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on significant
increase in the likelihood or risk of a default occurring since
initial recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A B R A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ=-F—/\F+=-A=+—HILFE

3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Under IFRS 9 (applicable on or after 1 January 2018)

(Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial instrument
has increased significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of initial
recognition. In making this assessment, the Group considers
both quantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable
and supportable, including historical experience and forward-
looking information that is available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into account
when assessing whether credit risk has increased significantly

since initial recognition:

° an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external (if available) or internal credit

rating;

° existing or forecast adverse changes in business, financial
or economic conditions that are expected to cause a
significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt

obligations;

° an actual or expected significant deterioration in the

operating results of the debtor;

o significant increases in credit risk on other financial

instruments of the same debtor;

° an actual or expected significant adverse change in the
regulatory, economic, or technological environment of the
debtor that results in a significant decrease in the debtor’s

ability to meet its debt obligations.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A B R A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ=-F—/\F+=-A=+—HILFE

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) FEETHE@
Financial instruments (Continued) &M T R\

Under IFRS 9 (applicable on or after 1 January 2018)
(Continued)

REERMEBREENER(ER
R-Z—N\F—RA—HBHZ&) (&)

Financial assets (Continued) THEE ()
Significant increase in credit risk (Continued) 15 BB [ 78 Z 12 0 (&)

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the
Group presumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has
increased significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the Group
has reasonable and supportable information that demonstrates
otherwise.

Despite the foregoing, the Group assumes that the credit risk
on a financial instrument has not increased significantly since
initial recognition if the financial instrument is determined to
have low credit risk at the reporting date. A financial instrument
is determined to have low credit risk if (i) the financial instrument
has a low risk of default, (i) the borrower has a strong capacity
to meet its contractual cash flow obligations in the near term,
and (i) adverse changes in economic and business conditions
in the longer term may, but will not necessarily, reduce the
ability of the borrower to fulfil its contractual cash flow
obligations. The Group considers a financial asset to have low
credit risk when the asset has external credit rating of ‘investment
grade’ in accordance with the globally understood definition or
if an external rating is not available, the asset has an internal
rating of ‘performing’. Performing means that the counterparty
has a strong financial position and there are no past due
amounts.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria
used to identify whether there has been a significant increase in
credit risk and revises them as appropriate to ensure that the
criteria are capable of identifying significant increase in credit
risk before the amount becomes past due.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A B R A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ=-F—/\F+=-A=+—HILFE

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Under IFRS 9 (applicable on or after 1 January 2018)
(Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
Definition of default

The Group considers the following as constituting an event of
default for internal credit risk management purposes as
historical experience indicates that receivables that meet either
of the following criteria are generally not recoverable:

o when there is a breach of financial covenants by the
debtor; or

° information developed internally or obtained from external
sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely to pay its
creditors, including the Group, in full (without taking into
account any collaterals held by the Group).

The Group considers that default has occurred when a financial
asset is more than 90 days past due unless the Group has
reasonable and supportable information to demonstrate that a
more lagging default criterion is more appropriate.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events
that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash
flows of that financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a
financial asset is credit-impaired includes observable data about
the following events:

° significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

o a breach of contract, such as a default or past due event;

BaWang International (Group) Holding Limited Annual Report 2018

= 5T BUR (@)

&M A (&)

REERMEBREENFOR(ER
R-Z—N\F—RA—HBHZ&) (&)

A E (&)
BHZEH

AEBBR/RATEEBKAINEE
RERERTENENSEH BAE
SLRBER AT EMN—IEE
Al MR — R 2T A W E A

e BEHRAERRMBROH,; =X

e ABRABENEINBRIRESH
EERH EHATKAER
BRASEEANEEAZE
XHEBFEEAEEFA
FEATHE ) o

AEERR cREEBHBBO
ARABLEEN BKIEAKBELHE
ﬂ—JSEhE’M*g TRAREMNENR
EERAE

EHEXEBEE

Bl ZEESHEZeREEN
AREEREGTEETHNEE
N ZemBEERAEREX 2
Eﬁﬁ?ﬁﬁﬁggﬁ'\]%?)fﬁ@%%?ﬂ
BRI EUE

s EBABEAMBEIEN;

o BEX - MBEHHBEFEMN,



Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Under IFRS 9 (applicable on or after 1 January 2018)
(Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
Credit-impaired financial assets (Continued)

o the lender(s) of the debtor, for economic or contractual
reasons relating to the debtor’s financial difficulty, having
granted to the debtor a concession(s) that the lender(s)
would not otherwise consider;

° it is becoming probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

o the disappearance of an active market for that financial
asset because of financial difficulties.

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is information
indicating that the debtor is in severe financial difficulty and
there is no realistic prospect of recovery, e.g. when the
counterparty has been placed under liquidation or has entered
into bankruptcy proceedings. Financial assets written off may
still be subject to enforcement activities under the Group’s
recovery procedures, taking into account legal advice where
appropriate. Any recoveries made are recognised in profit or
loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ=-F—/\F+=-A=+—HILFE

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Under IFRS 9 (applicable on or after 1 January 2018)
(Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
Measurement and recognition of expected credit losses

The measurement of expected credit losses is a function of the
probability of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of
the loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default. The
assessment of the probability of default and loss given default is
based on historical data adjusted by forward-looking
information. As for the exposure at default, for financial assets,
this is represented by the assets’ gross carrying amount at the
reporting date and other relevant forward-looking information.

For financial assets, the expected credit loss is estimated as the
difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the
Group in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive, discounted at the original
effective interest rate.

If the Group has measured the loss allowance for a financial
instrument at an amount equal to lifetime ECL in the previous
reporting period, but determines at the current reporting date
that the conditions for lifetime ECL are no longer met, the Group
measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to 12-month
ECL at the current reporting date, except for assets for which
simplified approach was used.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit or
loss for all financial instruments with a corresponding
adjustment to their carrying amount through a loss allowance
account.

BaWang International (Group) Holding Limited Annual Report 2018

FTEESTHE @)

&M A (&)

BE(BEBEMBRSEN)FEOME(E
FAR2018FE1A1HZ#) (&)

=@ EE (E)
B 5 BB XA 51 B FITERR

EHMEERRNFAERBEAREN
BME -ZOBRKE(MENRFREX
RE)MEDHRRDKE - FEED
MEREHBERENKEBERZBER
B WIHRATEMEER AR - BN
TREENENRAR AINEER
RERRNREAENREMABA
EHEEHERT -

HREMEE BHEEBRKMG
BBEAHNTERNAKEEZHAES
RESREAEERARINHME
ReRZENEZ8(BRNERMNEX
FE#) -

WAEEAE - EARESHEDFAE
—HMBTAEMNBRELRSR EE
BHEEREZHBHEERL AR
EEENRESAHSHANELRE
ERANKHETIBRE AEEGE
BREEENESBEEEREMN RS
HW12@ANEREEER ERT
Bt ETEMNEERI -

AEBEHHAERBERBERP
HEMMANE@DEENESR T AR
BERPHER - RBEAEREKIBX-



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A B R A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ=-F—/\F+=-A=+—HILFE

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Under IFRS 9 (applicable on or after 1 January 2018)
(Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of the asset to another party. If the
Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred
asset, the Group recognises its retained interest in the asset
and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the
Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group continues
to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a
collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised
cost, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the sum of the consideration received and receivable is
recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are
classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance
with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by a group entity are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A B R A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ=-F—/\F+=-A=+—HILFE

3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Under IFRS 9 (applicable on or after 1 January 2018)

(Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised

cost using the effective interest method.

Financial liabilities that arise when a transfer of a financial asset
does not qualify for derecognition or when the continuing
involvement approach applies, are measured in accordance

with the specific accounting policy set out below.

Financial liabilities subsequently measured at amortised cost

Financial liabilities that are not (i) contingent consideration of an
acquirer in a business combination, (i) held-for-trading, or (iii)
designated as at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”), are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective

interest method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial liability, or (where appropriate) a shorter period, to the

amortised cost of a financial liability.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or they
expire. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and
payable, including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities

assumed, is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A B R A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ=-F—/\F+=-A=+—HILFE

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) FEETHE@
Financial instruments (Continued) &M T R\

Under IAS 39 (applicable before 1 January 2018)

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into loans and
receivables. The classification depends on the nature and
purpose of the financial assets and is determined at the time of
initial recognition. All regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time
frame established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for
debt instruments.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables
(including trade and other receivables, amounts due from
related parties, deposit with bank and bank balances and cash)
are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less any impairment losses (see accounting policy on
impairment loss of financial assets below).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A B R A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ=-F—/\F+=-A=+—HILFE

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Under IAS 39 (applicable before 1 January 2018)
(Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment loss of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment at the
end of each reporting period. Financial assets are considered to
be impaired where there is objective evidence that, as a result
of one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition
of the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of the
financial assets have been affected.

For all financial assets, objective evidence of impairment could
include:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty;
or

o breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in
interest and principal payments; or

° it becoming probable that the borrower will enter into
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or

o disappearance of an active market for that financial asset
because of financial difficulties.

For certain categories of financial assets, such as trade and
other receivables, that are assessed not to be impaired
individually are, in addition, assessed for impairment on a
collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio
of receivables could include the Group’s past experience of
collecting payments, an increase in the number of delayed
payments in the portfolio past the average credit period of 30 to
90 days, as well as observable changes in national or local
economic conditions that correlate with default on receivables.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A B R A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ=-F—/\F+=-A=+—HILFE

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) FEETHE@
Financial instruments (Continued) &M T R\

Under IAS 39 (applicable before 1 January 2018)
(Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment loss of financial assets (Continued)

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the
impairment loss recognised is the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the estimated
future cash flows, discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the exception
of trade and other receivables, where the carrying amount is
reduced through the use of an allowance account. Changes in
the carrying amount of the allowance amount are recognised in
profit or loss. When a trade or other receivable is considered
uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are
credited to profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment losses was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through profit
or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the asset at the
date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the
amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been
recognised.

BE(EBEEE S % 8]) $E391F
(R2018FE1A1HZHIER) (&)

A E (&)
TREERERKX (B)

RABERAINEZEMEEM
FOMBRZAEEESBRAZE
EfNcRERZeREEREIR
MEFRZGEFRRRERERE
ZER e

FAeRAEZ AEEEGER
W B A 2 R S WP A
Wt E 5 R A R OR B S
HORE B E A AR AR -
BENZEESESH G R B
MR e BB 5 R fh e R AR
7T T U LB 6 18 18 B O B
o 5 3B BN 2 BB IR K A M
B 55 ASR -

BABERAGEZEMEEM
5 WMRHBRHE REBRESHE
BB RBMEREERRER
REMBELEZ2EMHEH BLRE
RZBEBEEEEBHERE - I
MERELERZ2EERESBENSE
78 38 40 4 T SRR (BB 2 B EH A AN o

FIER(RE)ERERAT ZS—I\FEFHK

115



116

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A B R A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ=-F—/\F+=-A=+—HILFE

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are
classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance
with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

The Group’s financial liabilities are classified into other financial
liabilities.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities including trade and other payables,
amounts due to related parties and bank borrowing are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial liability, or where appropriate, a shorter period, to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the group entities are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e B R R M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ=-F—/\F+=-A=+—HILFE

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) FESTBE @
Financial instruments (Continued) &M T R\
Derecognition #IEREE

A financial asset is derecognised only when the contractual
rights to the cash flows from the assets expire, or when it
transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and receivable and the cumulative gain
or loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or
loss.

A financial liability is derecognised when, and only when, the
Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or expire. The
difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is
recognised in profit or loss.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is
probable that the Group will be required to settle that obligation,
and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation.

Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the
consideration required to settle the present obligation at the end
of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and
uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a provision is
measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present
obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those
cash flows (where the effect of the time value of money is
material). When some or all of the economic benefits required to
settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a third
party, a receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually
certain that reimbursement will be received and the amount of
the receivable can be measured reliably.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A B R A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ=-F—/\F+=-A=+—HILFE

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Share-based payment transactions
Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
Share options granted to employees

The fair value of services received determined by reference to
the fair value of share options granted at the date of grant is
expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period, with a
corresponding increase in equity (capital reserve).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its
estimates of the number of options that are expected to
ultimately vest. The impact of the revision of the original
estimates during the vesting period, if any, is recognised in
profit or loss such that the cumulative expense reflects the
revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to capital
reserve.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in capital reserve will be transferred to share
premium. When the share options are forfeited after the vesting
date or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount
previously recognised in capital reserve will be transferred to
accumulated losses.

Impairment losses on tangible assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible assets to determine whether
there is any indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the
extent of the impairment loss, if any. When it is not possible to
estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the
Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit to which the asset belongs. Where a reasonable and
consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets
are also allocated to individual cash-generating unit, or
otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-
generating units for which a reasonable and consistent
allocation basis can be identified.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e B R R M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ=-F—/\F+=-A=+—HILFE

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) FESEFBEX @)
Impairment losses on tangible assets (Continued) BREEZREIEX(E)

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have
not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit)
is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is reduced to its
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment
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in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as

income immediately.

Fair value measurement LREEE

When measuring fair value except for the Group’s share-based
payment transactions, leasing transactions, net realisable value
of inventories and value in use of property, plant and equipment
for the purpose of impairment assessment, the Group takes
into account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into account when
pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset
in its highest and best use.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e B R R M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ=-F—/\F+=-A=+—HILFE

3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Fair value measurement (Continued)

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the
circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.
Specifically, the Group categorised the fair value measurements
into three levels, based on the characteristics of inputs, as

follow:

Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets

for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input
that is significant to the fair value measurement is

directly or indirectly observable.

Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input
that is significant to the fair value measurement is

unobservable.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group determines
whether transfer occur between levels of the fair value hierarchy
for assets and liabilities which are measured at fair value on
recurring basis by reviewing their respective fair value

measurement.

4. Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 3, the Directors are required to make
estimates and assumptions about the amounts of assets,
liabilities, revenue and expenses reported and disclosures made
in the consolidated financial statements. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience and
other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results

may differ from these estimates.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—_Z— \F+_A=+—HILFE

Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty (Continued)

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

The followings are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
the reporting period, that have a significant risk of resulting in a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.

Impairment of trade receivables

The impairment provisions for trade receivables are based on
assumptions about ECL. The Group uses judgement in making
these assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment
calculation, bases on the number of days that an individual
receivable is outstanding as well as the Group’s historical
experience and forward-looking information at the end of the
reporting period. Changes in these assumptions and estimates
could materially affect the result of the assessment and it may
be necessary to make additional impairment charge to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income. Impairment losses of approximately
RMB2,196,000 were recognised for the current year.

Allowance of inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Any excess of the cost over the net realisable value of
each class of inventories is recognised as a provision for
diminution in the value of inventories.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—Z— \F+_A=+—HILFE

4. Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty (Continued)

Allowance of inventories (Continued)

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the normal
course of business less the estimated costs to completion and
the estimated expenses and related taxes necessary to make
the sale. For inventories with committed sales orders or active
market, the Group estimates the net realisable value with
reference to the selling prices set out in the committed sales
orders or in the active market. For inventories without
committed sales orders or active market, the Group carefully
estimates the net realisable value based on available information
and reasonable and supportive assumptions on expected
selling prices, manufacturing costs, selling expenses, sales tax
and etc. As at 31 December 2018, the carrying amount of
inventories was approximately RMB39,610,000 (2017:
RMB47,581,000), net of accumulated allowance of

approximately RMB4,835,000 (2017: RMB2,615,000).

Estimated useful life of property, plant and

equipment

The Group depreciates the property, plant and equipment on a
straight-line basis between the rates of 4% to 50% per annum,
commencing from the date the property, plant and equipment
are available for use. The estimated useful lives that the Group
places the property, plant and equipment into productive use
reflects the Directors’ estimate of the periods that the Group
intends to derive future economic benefits from the use of the
Group’s property, plant and equipment. As at 31 December
2018, the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment
was approximately RMB115,021,000 (2017: RMB132,403,000).
Depreciation of approximately RMB19,787,000 (2017:

RMB17,159,000) has been recognised for the year.
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4. Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty Continued) 4. {43t FHRERZ 2 £ =

Impairment on property, plant and equipment

In considering the impairment losses that may be required for
certain property, plant and equipment, recoverable amount of
these assets needs to be determined. The recoverable amount
is the greater of the fair value less costs of disposal and the
value in use. It is difficult to precisely estimate fair value because
quoted market prices for these assets may not be readily
available. In determining the value in use, expected cash flows
generated by the asset are discounted to their present value,
which requires significant judgement relating to items such as
level of revenue and amount of operating costs and discount
rate. The Group uses all readily available information in
determining an amount that is reasonable approximation of
recoverable amount, including estimates based on reasonable
and supportable assumptions and projections of items such as
revenue and operating costs. As at 31 December 2018, the
carrying amount of property, plant and equipment was
approximately RMB115,021,000 (2017: RMB132,403,000), net
of accumulated impairment losses of approximately
RMB113,622,000 (2017: RMB113,622,000).

Income taxes

Determining income tax provisions involves judgement on the
future tax treatment of certain transactions. The Group carefully
evaluates tax implications of transactions and tax provisions are
set up accordingly. The tax treatment of such transactions is
reconsidered periodically to take into account all changes in tax
legislations. Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax losses
not yet used and temporary deductible differences. As those
deferred tax assets can only be recognised to the extent that it
is probable that future taxable profit will be available against
which the unused tax credits can be utilised, management
judgement is required to assess the probability of future taxable
profits. Management’s assessment is constantly reviewed and
additional deferred tax assets are recognised if it becomes
probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax
assets to be recovered.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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5. Capital Risk Management

The Group’s policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to
maintain creditor and market confidence and to sustain future
development of the business. The Group’s overall strategy

remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt, which
includes bank borrowing, net of deposit with bank and bank
balances and cash and equity attributable to owners of the

Company, comprising share capital and reserves.

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are subject to

externally imposed capital requirements.

The Directors review the capital structure on a semi-annual
basis. As part of this review, the Directors consider the cost of
capital and the risks associates with each class of capital.
Based on recommendations of the Directors, the Group will
balance its overall capital structure through new share issues as
well as the issue of new debt or the redemption of existing debt.

6. Financial Instruments

(a) Categories of financial instruments
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o VRS ERAR TS EL - MU
BREFBRNEGHE -AEHE
BEH AR TE -

AEBNERNGEREESFR(E
BRIBRTEFERRAS) RARQTA
SR ARG ED (BRERANEE
) o

/NS @S =S TN V= NG D R N
RENBRERS -

ARABEEBYFEENELRLE
B-REHEN EFEEBELK
AR EEZBBNERERZER R
BARREEZZHE ASBERKEB
BTHRD  BOUHEBIEODR
BEK NFHEBBEARRE -
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(a) ERIAEH

2017
& — 4
RMB’000
ARBT T
Financial assets EHMEE
At amortised cost/loans and T;zﬁ& A, B3R &R
receivables (including cash and ER(eRAekRe
cash equivalents) % E¥) 109,152
Financial liabilities e sE
At amortised cost 12 H S5 R R 93,533
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6. Financial Instruments (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objective and

policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include trade and
other receivables, amounts due from related parties,
deposit with bank, bank balances and cash, trade and
other payables, amounts due to related parties and bank
borrowing. Details of the financial instruments are
disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated with
these financial instruments include market risk (currency
risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The
policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below.
The management manages and monitors these exposures
to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a
timely and effective manner.

Market risk
Currency risk

Several subsidiaries of the Company have foreign currency
sales, which expose the Group to foreign currency risk.
Approximately 5% (2017: 5%) of the Group’s sales is
denominated in currencies other than the functional
currency of the group entity making the sale. The Group
currently does not have a foreign currency hedging policy.
The Group will monitor foreign exchange exposure and
consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure
should the need arise.
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6. Financial Instruments (Continued)
(b) Financial risk management objective and
policies (Continued)
Market risk (Continued)
Currency risk (Continued)

The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign currency
denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities at
the end of the reporting period are as follows:

Assets

BE

RMB

HK$

United States dollars 27t ([ZE7T])
(“USD”)
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6. Financial Instruments (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objective and
policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)
Currency risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis

The Group is mainly exposed to the currency of RMB,
HK$ and USD.

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a 5%
(2017: 5%) increase and decrease in exchange rates of
the relevant foreign currencies against the respective
entity’s functional currency. 5% (2017: 5%) is the
sensitivity rate used when reporting foreign currency risk
internally to key management personnel and represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably possible
change in foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis
includes only outstanding foreign currency denominated
monetary items, and adjusts their translation at the end of
the reporting period for a 5% (2017: 5%) change in foreign
currency rates. A negative number below indicates an
increase/decrease in post-tax loss/profit where the
respective functional currencies of the reporting entity
weaken 5% (2017: 5%) against the relevant foreign
currencies. For a 5% (2017: 5%) strengthening of the
respective functional currencies against the relevant
foreign currencies, there would be an equal and opposite
impact on the loss/profit, and the balances below would
be negative.

RMB
AR%

2017
—E—tF
RMB'000
ARBTT
(note (a))
(Fi5E (@)

(Loss)/profit (B8),/ &7

Notes:

(@) This is mainly attributable to the exposure outstanding on bank balance
and cash and trade and other receivables in RMB at the end of the
reporting period.

(b) This is mainly attributable to the exposure outstanding on bank
balances and cash denominated in HK$ at the end of the reporting
period.

6. I Bwuw)
m)ﬁﬂﬂﬁ HEEREE

'rﬁ’%ﬂl‘ﬁ(-%é)
B (&)
R T

AEBTZEHARE BT
KETEEER -

TRHFNAEBERBBEINE K
ZEREEEEEZER
FARTHSN(ZTE—EFE:
5%) Z R E o Th R W EB A ==
TEIR A B & HHNE R R EF
B I AE R E % N [E K A]
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6. Financial Instruments (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objective and

policies (Continued)
Market risk (Continued)
Interest rate risk

As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, the Group is exposed
to cash flow interest rate risk in relation to bank balances
and cash (see note 22). The management of the Group
considered that a reasonably possible change in interest
rates would not have a material impact to the Group’s
result.

As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, the Group is also
exposed to fair value interest rate risk in relation to fixed
rate deposit with bank (see note 22) and fixed-rate bank
borrowing (see note 26). No sensitivity analysis is
presented because the risk is considered insignificant.

Credit risk

As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk which will cause a financial loss to
the Group due to failure to discharge an obligation by the
counterparties is arising from the carrying amount of the
respective recognised financial assets as stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

The credit risk of the Group mainly arises from trade and
other receivables, amounts due from related parties,
deposit with bank and cash and cash equivalents. The
carrying amounts of these balances represent the Group’s
maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to financial
assets.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the
Group has delegated a team responsible for determination
of credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken to
recover overdue debts.
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6. Financial Instruments (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objective and

policies (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)

As at 31 December 2017, impairment loss was recognised
when there was objective evidence of impairment loss.

Starting from 1 January 2018, for trade receivables, the
Group has applied the simplified approach in IFRS 9 to
measure the allowance for impairment at lifetime ECL. The
Group determines the ECL on these items collectively by
using a provision matrix, estimated based on historical
credit loss experience, as well as the general economic
conditions of the industry in which the debtors operate. In
this regard, the Directors consider that the Group’s credit
risk is significantly reduced.

Management considered amounts due from related
parties to be low credit risk and thus the allowance for
impairment recognised during the year was limited to
12-month ECL.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit ratings.

The Group considers the probability of default upon initial
recognition of asset and whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk on an ongoing basis
throughout the reporting period. To assess whether there
is a significant increase in credit risk, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the asset as at the
reporting date with the risk of default as at the date of
initial recognition. It considers available reasonable and
supportive forwarding-looking information. Especially the
following indicators are incorporated:

o internal credit rating

° external credit rating
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6. Financial Instruments (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objective and

policies (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)

° actual or expected significant adverse changes in
business, financial or economic conditions that are
expected to cause a significant change to the
debtor’s ability to meet its obligations

° significant changes in the expected performance
and behavior of the debtor, including changes in the
payment status of debtors in the Group and changes
in the operating results of the debtor.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk

In order to minimise credit risk, the Group has tasked its
operation management committee to develop and
maintain the Group’s credit risk gradings to categorise
exposures according to their degree of risk of default. The
operation management committee uses other publicly
available financial information and the Group’s own trading
records to rate its major customers and other debtors.
The Group’s exposure and the credit ratings of its
counterparties are continuously monitored and the
aggregate value of transactions concluded is spread
amongst approved counterparties.
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6. Financial Instruments (Continued) 6.

(b) Financial risk management objective and

policies (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

—NF+-A=t—HLFE

(b)

The Group’s exposure to credit risk (Continued)

The Group’s current credit risk grading framework
comprises the following categories:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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£/ T B @)

EREARETEEAERR KX
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15 5 B2 (48)
EEEHERZ 25 (&)
SERENEERRFRRE
BREA TR

Category Description Basis for recognising ECL
ba | 4 ot BEECLHWEX
Performing For financial assets where there has low risk ~ 12-month ECL
of default or has not been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial
recognition and that are not credit impaired
(refer to as Stage 1)
B17 Q%%?Zt%ﬂ 2K B VIHRER 12@EAEMEREX
NREERBIABRZFEMRAREE
EERE
Doubtful For financial assets where there has beena  Lifetime ECL — not credit
significant increase in credit risk since initial impaired
recognition but that are not credit impaired
(refer to as Stage 2)
xR NEHEEEHFIINBRIRBEREERR 2HEREHABEL - REL
5@?%%%X@%%M@*%EE = ERE
ERE
Default Financial assets are assessed as credit Lifetime ECL — credit impaired
impaired when one or more events that
have a detrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of that asset have
occurred (refer to as Stage 3)
E 4 REREHWEFREER  XBEHEME 2HEHERABELX B4
BRTNEHEECEEEERE BEERE
Write-off There is evidence indicating that the debtor ~ Amount is written off
is in severe financial difficulty and the
Group has no realistic prospect of recovery
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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6. Financial Instruments (Continued) 6. €@ T E
(b) Financial risk management objective and b) EREAKEREBEERERBKK
policies (Continued) (&)
Credit risk (Continued) EE RS (&)
The Group’s exposure to credit risk (Continued) EFEHREREZEY(E)
The table below details the credit quality of the Group’s TRXFWNAEESRHREENZ
financial assets as well as the Group’s maximum exposure BEE  ARZEBRERR
to credit risk by credit risk rating grades. ERGEARAEEEERARAR A
HH &K R -
Gross Net
Internal 12-month or carrying Loss carrying
31/12/2018 Notes credit rating lifetime ECL amount allowance amount
—E-N\F ABER  12@AZ EHEE
+=ZHA=+-H s & ZHBHNERAX #E REEXE REHFE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETE AR®ETR
Trade receivables 21 Note Lifetime ECL (simplified 41,243 (10,590) 30,653
approach)
JE W IE k3 CHEHERBA(E
L7%)
Amounts due from related parties  34(a) Performing  12-month ECL 94 — 94
JE Yk A%t 7 R BT 12EABHEREX
Other receivables 21 Performing ~ 12-month ECL 712 — 712
Hib e R BT 2EAEGEREX
(10,590)

Note: For trade receivables, the Group has applied the simplified approach in
IFRS 9 to measure the loss allowance at lifetime ECL. The Group

determines the ECL on these items by using a provision matrix,
estimated based on historical credit loss experience and the past due
status of the debtors, adjusted as appropriate to reflect current
conditions and estimates of future economic conditions. Accordingly,
the credit risk profile of these assets is presented based on their past
due status in terms of the provision matrix. Note 21 includes further

details on the loss allowance for these assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A B R A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ=-F—/\F+=-A=+—HILFE

6. Financial Instruments (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objective and

policies (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)
The Group’s exposure to credit risk (Continued)

The Group’s concentration of credit risk by geographical
location is mainly in the PRC, which accounted for 96%
(2017: 98%) of the total trade receivable as at 31
December 2018.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group has no concentration
of credit risk, as 7% (2017: 26%) of the total trade
receivables, which was due from the Group’s the five
largest customers.

None of the Group’s financial assets are secured by
collateral or other credit enhancements.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able to
meet its financial obligations as they fall due. The Group’s
approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as
possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet
its liabilities when they fall due, under both normal and
stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses
or risking damage to the Group’s reputation.

The Group ensures that it maintains sufficient reserves of
cash on demand to meet its liquidity requirement in the
short and longer term; this excludes the potential impact
of extreme circumstances that cannot reasonably be
predicted, such as natural disasters.

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial
liabilities. The table has been drawn up based on the
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on
the earliest date on which the Group can be required to
pay. The maturity dates for other non-derivative financial
liabilities are based on the agreed repayment dates. The
table includes both interest and principal cash flows.

6.

FIER(RE)ZERERAT 28—

@I Ewm

b) EMEAREEHERER KX

(#%)
15 & B2 (48)
EEEARRZRS (&)

NEBIZMBUEEZ D 8
BREZEFRRPE - BHE -
Z—NFE+-_A=+—H8 E
W BR A KB 96% (T — 4
E :98%) °

#:2—A¢+—H_+—
CAEEBRARABEFEFEER
E#FR B b 2 Bﬁ%@
WHRBZT%(ZE—+FE:

26%) °

AEEzeMEEMBEERAX
HiEERT -

e B T bR

mMEERREANASEEEERET
IO EANRR A&
BEERSHESRRBRN ST A
REEBRE—REEZEBR
THEERHNRBE2ENET
HOWBE EASEHERAE

THESNEREIBEXED
J—HZm: °

AEEBEREFSERREEH
ReEE UWnEHEEHRE
HRPpEeFR ETEEE
ERBEFHNEREBER WE

AAENBERE -

TRFANAKEZHRITESR
BEZHBAOBR - &R
ERNAKREBEFLEXHZRSR
FHYRESBRABEZRTR
REREHE EMIFTER
MEEZIHBUBEEER
HAEER RPEBEMNERAK
THRERE -

INSEF ]
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FeMBRRME(R)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ=-F—/\F+=-A=+—HILFE

£/ T A um)

(b) Financial risk management objective and b) e2HARETEERERBE
policies (Continued) (#8)
e BN BB (#8)

Total
undiscounted
cash flows due

6. Financial Instruments (Continued) 6.

Liquidity risk (Continued)

on demand or Carrying
within one year amount
RFRREN
—FREER
HEREAS R E
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFTT ARETRT

At 31 December 2018 R=-B-NE+=-A=+—H

Non-derivative financial kTESRERS
liabilities

Trade and other payables B 5 NME b FRIA

Amounts due to related parties  J& 1< B i 5 3518

Bank borrowing IRITER

At 31 December 2017

R-ZF-—tH+=-A=+—H

Non-derivative financial EFTESRER
liabilities
Trade and other payables B 5 &k H Ath & 5kIR 92,187 92,187
Amounts due to related parties  J& 1< B i 5 3518 1,346 1,346
93,533 93,533
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

ﬁAM%ﬁ%W%Q@

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ=-F—/\F+=-A=+—HILFE

6. Financial Instruments (Continued)

(c) Fair value measurements of financial
instruments

The Directors consider that the carrying amounts of
current financial assets and current financial liabilities
recognised at amortised cost in the consolidated financial
statements as at 31 December 2018 and 2017
approximate their fair values due to the short maturities.

7. Revenue and Segment Information

Revenue represents revenue arising on sales of goods for the
year. An analysis of the Group’s revenue for the year is as

6. €@ T A
() UAAEEHEZSMIA

KABEERE BAREEH
BHREARB SR EE LR
cMEBBEEN T —tFR=
T-NF+ZA=+—HEH
AEH - WEERBBERURA
AEME -

7. EXBEROMBEHN

EXBREASENRAFEREYH
EWRA REERNFENRADN

follows: FIREAT
2017*
—E—+F
RMB’000
ARBT T
Revenue from contracts with BZE-ZT-—-N\E+=A
customers within the scope of =+—H8  EEKK
IFRS 15 for the year ended HREEREASFKEE R
31 December 2018 EFMNEHWA
Disaggregated by major products RXrEZEmn»
Manufacture and sale of household and K EE M B A EE B @A
personal care products SEMEE
Hair-care products EEE M 233,067
Skin-care products E B Em 5197
Other household and personal care HEMRAREAEREER
products 25,951
264,215
* The amounts for the year ended 31 December 2017 were recognised under BE017F12A3IALLNEEN S B2
IAS 18. RRE R & st R 185 HERE o

BIER(RE)ERARLIE ZSB—I\FFEH
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A B R A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ=-F—/\F+=-A=+—HILFE

7. Revenue and Segment Information (Continued) 7. =¥ ZE R 9 & E £ @)
Disaggregation of revenue by timing of BRI AR EZERESE
recognition

2018
—E-N\E
RMB’000
AR T T
Timing of revenue recognition W A 7 52 Y B
At a point in time BB, 293,922

Transaction price allocated to the remaining performance
obligation for contracts with customers

All of the Group’s remaining performance obligations for
contracts with customers are for periods of one year or less. As
permitted under IFRS 15, the transaction price allocated to
these unsatisfied contracts is not disclosed.

Information reported to the executive directors of the Company,
being the chief operating decision maker (the “CODM”), for the
purposes of resource allocation and assessment of segment
performance focuses on a mixture of product lines and
geography. The Directors have chosen to organise the Group
around differences in products. The segments are managed
separately as each operating segment offers different products
which require different production information to formulate
different strategies. No operating segments identified by the
CODM have been aggregated in arriving at the reportable
segments of the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e BmERME(E)
For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ=-F—/\F+=-A=+—HILFE

7. Revenue and Segment Information (Continued)

Disaggregation of revenue by timing of
recognition (Continued)

Specifically, the Group’s reportable segments are as follows:

o Hair-care products

° Skin-care products

° Other household and personal care products

Also, the CODM is provided with segment information

concerning segment revenue and result. Segment assets and
liabilities are not reported to the CODM regularly.

Segment revenue and results

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results
by reportable and operating segments.

Hair-care products Skin-care products

BEER ERER

2XRERTBER @

1 iy A 10 T B FE D 5 08 ()
AEEZURENSEDBA

. HEES

. HEES

o HtRAREAAERESR
TEBERREEIRME N DY
AMD BLAMEL T BEAE
MEENERATEESNREEE
REERE -

SHMERTRER

AT RN EIZAHE D IBRA K
K@M

Other household and
personal care products Total
HttRAR
BAREER Ch

2017
—T—t5

RMB'000
ARETL

Sales to external customers & FANBEE 233,067

Segment profit/(loss) AEEM/ (BE)
Bank interest income RITHBHA
Other income Hen A
Corporate and other KAEZ B

unallocated expenses BEMHZ
Finance costs B8R

(Loss)/profit before taxation 5 A (& 18) /78

2017
—T-tF

RMB'000
ARETL

2017 2017

e e
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREF7 AREF7

264,215

BIER(RE)ERARLIE ZSB—I\FFEH
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FeMBRRME(R)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ=-F—/\F+=-A=+—HILFE

7. Revenue and Segment Information (Continued)

Disaggregation of revenue by timing of
recognition (Continued)

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the
same as the Group’s accounting policies described in note 3.
Segment results represent the profit (loss) from each segment
without allocation of bank interest income, gain on sales of
scrap materials, government grants, write-back of trade and
other payables, net foreign exchange losses, central
administration cost, directors’ emoluments and finance costs.
This is the measure reported to the executive directors of the
Company for the purposes of resource allocation and
performance assessment.

7. EEHERDHER @)
U A O B A2 B R 9 38 ()

REDBO SRR EMNFEIMA 2
AEENGHTRE R -2 MEAE
EENBAESZAEN(EBR) &
R EDOBEMEEN DA EER
HEXAMEBBD  RITHNEW
A IFARARIEWE - BB R Y
BT B~ B 5 K H o 8 Y 5008 5
B X (EIR)FE FdstiRE
MR PREEKA - EE 5
ARBEKRAN - W RERDER
RRFEMAARARBAZHITEER

EZFEAR -
Other segment information Hfth o 2 =T FE
Other household and
Hair-care products Skin-care products  personal care products Unallocated Total
HRAR
EEEM EREM BAEEER RAEH Eh

Amounts included 3 &% 4 2

inthe measure B3 AHE
of segment
results

Additions to FERBEEEM
non-current
assets

Depreciation of 0% BER
property, plant RENE
and equipment

Loss on disposals of BE ¥ - K=

property, plant REENER
and equipment

Impairment loss/  JRER X/
(reversal of BRESENR
impairment loss)  FUA (& @)
recognised in
respect of trade
receivables

Allowance for FEREER

inventories

Obsolete inventories %) #3173 & R &
written-off
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

FeMBRRME(R)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ=-F—/\F+=-A=+—HILFE

Revenue and Segment Information (Continued)

Geographical information

The Group’s operations are mainly located in the PRC (country
of domicile) and Hong Kong.

The geographical location of customers is based on the location
at which the goods delivered. The geographical location of the
non-current assets is based on the physical location of the
assets, in the case of property, plant and equipment.

7.

EEBE N BER @)
ihE = H

AEERLEEBEIRERETE (A
EEZR)MERS -

EFRMMAERIIIRERXNE M
NEBE FRPEEMNMEME
TREVE BMEMREERME
fIEMERE

Revenue from external
customers

RENBEFHBA

ARET T

Non-current assets

FRBEE

2017 2017
—EF—tF —F—tF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T

PRC (country of PR (FTERER)

domicile) 255,634 131,751
Hong Kong 55 4,395 652
Singapore N 635 -
Thailand = 1,862 —
Malaysia BRE R 1,021 —
Venezuela EYNE: R 668 —
Total Bt 264,215 132,403

Information about major customers FEXZRMEAE

There was no customer that contributed to 10% or more of the
Group’s revenue for the years ended 31 December 2018 and
2017.

HE _Z—tEFM_FT—N\F+—
A=+—BLEE AX&EBLERL
BEBEEII0%ALHNERL o

BIER(RE)ERARLIE ZSB—I\FFEH
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FeMBRRME(R)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ=-F—/\F+=-A=+—HILFE

8. Other Income 8. Hg A
2017
—E—+F
RMB’000
AREFT
Bank interest income |ITH B WA 379
Gain on sales of scrap materials B EA 959
Government grants (note a) B e (Mia) 2,741
Reversal of impairment loss recognised 2 5 K EW KB A ERE
in respect of trade receivables Bk 2 B# 5,136
Reversal of over provision of other HiERBRABRETIEY
payables o] 8 -
Write-back of trade and other payables & 5 & E {th J& < Bf 7k 2 B £ 4,947
Others Hib _
14,162
Note: M5
(@) Included in the amount of government grants recognised during the year ended @ HE-Z-—\F+=ZA=+—H0 #8K
31 December 2018 of approximately RMB1,117,000 (2017: approximately NRBhEEH A ARE1117,000C (=2
RMB2,741,000) were received from the PRC government in respect of certain —tFE: HARMK2741,0007T) ' &
research projects, electronic shopping platform projects and export encourage BEPEBRMAMEANELHFATEE EEB
scheme, the relevant granting criteria for which have been fulfiled and were FAEEME QS EEED BEREZER
immediately recognised as other income for both years. B WREFERREMBA -
9. Finance Costs 9. MBKEHM
2017
—ET—+tF
RMB’000
AR®ET T
Interest on bank borrowing RITERF B 495
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A B R A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ=-F—/\F+=-A=+—HILFE

10. Taxation 10. B 18
2018 2017
—E—N\F —EF—tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® Tt AREF T
PRC Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT”) PR EMTERH
([¥mEFR])
— Current year —KEFE — 4

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “PRC
EIT Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the PRC EIT
Law, the tax rate of the subsidiaries is 25% from 1 January
2008 onwards.

The PRC EIT Law allows enterprises to apply for the
certificates of “High and New Technology Enterprise”
(“HNTE”) which entitles the qualified companies to a
preferential income tax rate of 15%. Bawang (Guangzhou)
Co., Ltd. (“Bawang Guangzhou”), a PRC subsidiary of the
Group, was qualified as a HNTE in 2009. However,
Bawang Guangzhou did not have any assessable profits
subject to EIT for the years ended 31 December 2018 and
2017.

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been provided
for the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017 as the
Group does not have any assessable profits subject to
Hong Kong Profits Tax for 2018 and 2017.

Pursuant to the laws and regulations of the Cayman
Islands and the BVI, the Group is not subject to any
income tax in the Cayman Islands and the BVI for the
current and previous years.

REFBEEEMEBHA(EE
IRBEDREEMGHREE
G NE S TRU e RN = 0 7
RR_ZFTTNE-A—HER
25% °

R ERERERTEFEA
ERCE iR S ISR iR SRS
XDBE MEBSZEERND
EUUZEI%NERHRE-
FXT(BEMNERRARTHEILE
MDRZZEZNEHERERED
FRMMEX¥-Am #HEZE
—N\NER-_ZFE—tF+=_A=
+—BLEFE - -BFBEEMILR
ERAMESBMEERSH ZE
R T g A o

BE_Z—\FE=-_F—tF
+-A=+—HBIEFEE &E&E
B 2B EMBERNEBMSE
T2 FESRB & F - BT LAY £ 5t
REBRGH -

RERASHEREBRZES
R B NGB NEEEAR
AR R A EEGARASEHE R
RERZBESNEMHE-

FIER(RE)ERERAT ZS—I\FEFHK
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FeMBRRME(R)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZE—ZF

10. Taxation (Continued)

—NFTZRA=+—RHLFE

10. I8 (@)

Taxation for the year can be reconciled to the loss before FARGBHGEERR ZHAIER
taxation per the consolidated statement of profit or loss and RN -

other comprehensive income as follows:

(Loss)/profit before taxation

Tax calculated at the domestic income
tax rate of 25% (2017: 25%)

Effect of different tax rates of entities
operating in other jurisdictions
Tax effect of expenses not deductible

for tax purpose

Tax effect of income not taxable for tax

purpose

Tax effect of tax losses not recognised

Utilisation of other deductible temporary
differences not recognised

Utilisation of tax losses previously not

recognised

Income tax expense

2017
—E—+F
RMB’000
ARBT T
AT (E1E) /& A 19,231
&$m% TR & 25%
ATE 2 TIE
—E—+FE:25%) 4,809
REMBERRLE 2T
MEZHETE (1,709)
AR BRABHEEE
1,516
BEARRMAZRIETE
(413)
RERREEB 2B 2 9
FRAEM AN RERK
EEHMEER (3,022)
@Jﬁﬁﬁjﬁﬁﬂﬂiﬁﬁwzmlﬁgﬂg
(1,186)
HiIE 4
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e B R R M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ—Z— \F+_A=+—HILFE

10. Taxation (Continued) 10. 18 (&)

As at 31 December 2018, the Group has unused estimated tax
losses of approximately RMB293,284,000 (2017:
RMB277,795,000) and RMB33,546,000 (2017:
RMB33,434,000) for certain subsidiaries in the PRC and Hong
Kong respectively. The tax losses incurred by the subsidiaries
incorporated in the PRC will expire in five years from the year in
which the loss originated, while the ones incurred by the
subsidiaries in Hong Kong will not expire under current tax
legislation in Hong Kong. Certain tax losses of approximately
RMB112,230,000 expired during the year ended 31 December
2018.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group has deductible temporary
differences of approximately RMB385,874,000 (2017:
RMB404,669,000). No deferred tax asset has been recognised
in relation to such deductible temporary differences as it is not
probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences can be utilised.

Under the PRC EIT Law, withholding tax is imposed on
dividends declared in respect of profits earned by PRC
subsidiaries from 1 January 2008 onwards. As at 31 December
2017, deferred taxation had not been provided for in the
consolidated financial statements in respect of temporary
differences attributable to accumulated profits of the PRC
subsidiaries accounting to RMB17,000 (2018: nil) as the Group
was able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences and it was probable that the temporary differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

HEz_Z2—N\NF+=-_A=+—8"
SEEFEARNBMEBONITS F2A
AIARFERAMGEEHKEBLS LD
B A R #203284,000t( =& — +
FE: ARM277,7950007T ) A A
R #33,546,00070( = & — + & :
A R #33,434,0007T) - FE P BB
EMEFRARIMBEAENBREIEL
BEEEBXLEBESFANRER: M
EEBSEMOFRARMBEENED
BX BEFEHRTHBMRBEEH -
fTeREm EHE-_ZT—N\E+=
A=+—BLFEE HBEARK
112,230,0007T &) it Y 18 2K B 48 Bl 5 o

= ET—-—NF+=-_A=+—8"
REFEANGEREEZEEOARK
385,874,000 L (ZE—LFE : A
R #404,669,0007T) ° AP K A g
BREBRAN B ARENATEKNNE
KRUE=Z2 AREEHBEEELRRE
REAREIN T HZREM o

BRIBEREAREMBCEMSH
EORZE-NE—H BB H
£ B3R A A F 2 R BT SR ER A IR
R A I B TE R FY o 3B & F U
BREARBESHTBREOGEE
EEGERBERAFEARKENME T
AalE s AE17,000T (ZF— )\ F
B EEREBR TG T RTE
ENyFENEHE ©r TR
ERAAERMNARRTSHE o
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FeMBRRME(R)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ=-F—/\F+=-A=+—HILFE

11.

(Loss)/Profit for the Year

1. FR(EER)/F B

(Loss)/profit for the year has been arrived at after charging: MAER(BR)/FMES NG T3 E
g ¢
2017
—F—tF
RMB’000
AREFT
Auditor’s remuneration % R0 B & 1,025
Allowance for inventories (included in 17 & BB £ (5t A I
cost of inventories recognised as BRERI ZEERAK)
an expense above) 112
Cost of inventories recognised as BRAEAL ZHFERAN
an expense (note (a)) (M 5% (@) 136,902
Depreciation of property, plant and ME BMENLEEITE
equipment 17,159
Impairment loss recognised in respect &R E 5 FE Uk 2 TE R (B 18 2%
of trade receivables -
Loss on disposals of property, plant REME WMEREBHEHIEX
and equipment 34
Net foreign exchange losses X ERFE 1,679
Research and development costs MR AR ZHEKRA
recognised as an expense 10,794
Staff costs (note (b)) 8 T (FF7E D) 53,013
Obsolete inventories written-off (included %8 HA 17 & R B% (5+ A LA k=
in cost of inventories recognised as BRERI ZFEKK)
an expense above) 3,370
Notes: M 5E -
(@) Cost of inventories recognised as an expense included depreciation of (a) BRAAIZEEXNABEDE  BE

property, plant and equipment and staff costs of approximately
RMB18,052,000 (2017: RMB14,898,000) and RMB13,875,000 (2017:
RMB15,637,000) respectively. The amounts were also included in the

respective amounts disclosed above.

LEBEBMEREIRAD RN ABARKE
18,052,000 (=T —tFE: H AR
14,898,0007T) & #) A R #13,875,0007T (=
T—LFE: HARKE15637,0007T) ° B
FeREUEDRBEENLKESES -

Staff costs included redundancy costs of RMB2,033,000 for the year ended 31 (b) BE-_Z- NE+-_A=+—RHILtEE"

December 2018 (2017: nil).

B I ABIEERE ALY AR2033,000
T(ZE—tFE &) -
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FeMBRRME(R)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ=-F—/\F+=-A=+—HILFE

12. Staff Costs 12. B T KA
2017
—ET—+F
RMB’000
ARET T
Staff costs (including directors’ BEIRA(BEESEMHE)
emoluments) comprise:
Salaries, allowances and benefits e ERE R AEF 50,886
Contributions to retirement benefits RKAE FI 5T 81 3%
schemes (note 33) (Fff 5£33) 2,127
Termination benefits R B A -
53,013
13. Dividends 13. RE

No dividend was paid or proposed for the year ended 31
December 2018 (2017: nil), nor has any dividend been
proposed since the end of the reporting period (2017: nil).

HE-_ZT-\F+ZA=+—8H1t
FEVERMSSKBREAEKRE (ZF
—tFEE) BEERPEAENE
BEEABRE(CE—+FE: &)

BIER(RE)ERARLIE ZSB—I\FFEH
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FeMBRRME(R)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ=-F—/\F+=-A=+—HILFE

14. (Loss)/Earnings Per Share

The calculation of the basic and diluted (loss)/earnings per share
attributable to the owners of the Company is based on the
following data:

14. BIR (B58) /&R

ARRBEEANBEZERERN &
SBRNREIATBIETE -

() /&R

(Loss)/earnings

(Loss)/earnings for the purpose of basic A & A% E AN & #58 (E518) /&
MAEBEHK (EE)/&F

and diluted (loss)/earnings per share

Number of shares %17 & B

Weighted average number of ordinary
shares for the purpose of basic (loss)/
earnings per share

Effect of dilutive potential ordinary
shares:

Share options

HEe

HitE

NERER(ER)/ZF
/5 B H ) INRE T 1 A

BEBRELTBRRNY

Weighted average number of ordinary
shares for the purpose of diluted (loss)/
earnings per share

N (B1R) /&7
/5 B R Y A4 T 15 E S AR B

2017
—B—+F
RMB’000
AR T T
19,227
2017
—E—+tF
'000
T h%
3,161,811
&
445
3,162,256

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the computation of
diluted loss per share does not assume the exercise of the
Company’s share options because their exercise would result in
a decrease in loss per share.

BaWang International (Group) Holding Limited Annual Report 2018
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

FeMBRRME(R)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ=-F—/\F+=-A=+—HILFE

15. Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Emoluments 15. EER FTETHAEM S

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the six (2017: six) BERSEMASNB(ZE—LFE : X

directors and the chief executive were as follows: HIEERFETHRAEZHMS W0
T

For the year ended 31 December 2018 gEFE_ZE—N\E+-A=+—H
ILFEE

Emoluments paidor ~ AARHEKE
receivableinrespect AFMEER
of a person’s HEREZMAR
services as a FE bk B0 B &
director, whether of
the Company or its
subsidiaries

Fees we

Emoluments paidor ~ AAFHEKE
receivable inrespect A TRNEER
of director’s other HEBHME

services in BREZMAR
connection withthe ~ EZHE S
management of the
affairs of the
Company and its
subsidiaries
Other emoluments Hiaiis
Salaries e R
Contributions to RINEFEE
retirement benefits %
scheme
Total emoluments AFHE

BIER(RE)ERARLIE ZSB—I\FFEH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A B R A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z =T — \F+_A=+—HLEFE

15. Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Emoluments
(Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2017

Executivg, directors
WiTEZ

5. EBRETETHAEME

(%)

g8EXE—_F—t¥+=-A=+—H
12 3

Independent non-executive directors

Mr. CHEN Mr. CHEN

Qiyuan ZhengHe (Chief ~ Mr. WONG
(Chairman) Executive) Sin Yung

REBLLE
PR BRI & (B

(£5) B1E) EERTL
RMB'0OO ~ RMB'O00  RMB'000
ARETL ARBTRE ARBTR

FpnES

Dr. NGAIWai Mr. CHEUNG
Fung KinWing ~ Mr. LI Bida Total
REEERLT REXREE FUERE Gl

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR ARBTT ARKTT ARBTE

(note b)
(F#5Eb)
Emoluments paid or AREHEME
receivable inrespectofa  ARMNEZH
person’s services as a HREZAR
director, whether of the FE W R BN &
Company or its
subsidiaries
Fees we - - - 260 173 148 581
Emoluments paid or ADRREME
receivable in respect of DAMNESEH
director’s other services  HEEHE
in connection with the BREZMR
management of the EgnMe
affairs of the Company
and its subsidiaries
Other emoluments s
Salaries g4 B8 - 125 1,08 - - - 1,163
Contributions to retirement & 4k 18 ¥/t 2
benefits scheme w3 - 6 16 - - - 22
Total emoluments Aitie B 131 1,054 260 173 148 1,766
Notes: Bt 5 -
(@) Appointed on 17 April 2018. (@) ZEER=_ZT— N\FHEA+tHEE-
(o) Passed away on 22 November 2017. (o) HEERN_ZE—+tFEt+—B=-+=-RB#

There was no discretionary bonus provided to the Directors for
the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017.

Mr. CHEN Zheng He is also the chief executive of the Company
and his emoluments disclosed above included those for
services rendered by him as the chief executive.

Neither the chief executive of the Company nor any of the
Directors waived or agreed to waive any emoluments in the year

ended 31 December 2018 (2017: nil).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

FeMBRRME(R)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z =T — \F+_A=+—HLEFE

16. Employees’ Emoluments

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the Group,
four (2017: four) were Directors whose emoluments are included
in the disclosures in note 15 above. The emolument of the one
(2017: one) individual was as follows:

16. & T 7

hfigk®mHFMALH O (ZF—
TtEHEE O RES REFMN
A EPRE16EE - BRAE M — K (=
T—t+HFE: —&REHEMALH
FMEBAOR

2017
—EF—tF
RMB’000
ARBEFIT

Salaries, allowances and benefits e ERENER

Retirement benefits scheme RIKE TREMEFEIHR

contributions

166

174

Their emoluments were all within nil to HK$1,000,000,
equivalent to approximately RMB882,000 (2017: equivalent to
approximately RMB865,000).

During the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017, no
emoluments were paid by the Group to the five highest paid
individuals (including Directors and employees) or other
Directors as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group, or
as compensation for loss of office.

EHFME2IN TLZ2 A RE882,000
7T MBEFB 7T 1,000,000 (Z B —+
FE: KHER ARYS65,0007T) °

RBEE-_ZT-N\FR-_FT—tF+
“A=T-HALFEHE A&HE
TEXNHE FARELARZSH
MAL(BEREERET)HHEME
E ERBEBENMAXRNMERAEE
B2 BBk F BRI (E -

BIER(RE)ERARLIE ZSB—I\FFEH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

B 3% R B 5 (R

ey

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z =T — \F+_A=+—HLEFE

17. Property, Plant and Equipment

17. Y% - BBERRE

Office Immature
Leasehold Motor equipment Display Bearer bearer Construction
Buildings Machinery improvements  vehicles and others  furniture plants plants in progress Total
RERE BAE RS
EE B BRXE BRIE REREM RBTSE £EMEEY £EMEY EEIR b
RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBFT AREFTT ARETI ARETRE ARETT ARBTT ARETT ARETT AREBTT ARBTRT
COST
At 1 January 2017 F—+%—-H—H 5,494 115,705 134,913 12,112 20,154 937 45 406 73,080 362,846
Exchange redlignment [ % {1 & - - - (519) - - - - - (515)
Additions RE - 17 68 286 230 - - 126 11,740 12,467
Disposals HE - - - 96) (282) - ©) - - (380)
Transfer from BRETRIE
construction in
progress - - 45,100 - - - - - (45,100) -
At 31 December 2017 —tF
and 1 January 2018 + A=+—
- ? NEF
—A—8 5,494 115,722 180,081 11,787 20,102 937 43 532 39,720 374,418
Exchange redignment [ 5 % - - - 354 - - - - - 354
Additions RE - 97 378 466 1,221 - - 263 — 2,420
Disposals HE - (89) - (461) (18) - - - (16) (584)
Transfer from ERAERIR
construction in
progress - 10,338 18,383 - 518 - - - (29,239) -
At31December 2018 W =Z—\E
+ZA=t+-H 5,494 126,068 198,837 12,146 21,823 937 43 795 10,465 376,608
ACCUMULATED Rt E
DEPRECIATION
AND IMPAIRMENT
At 1 January 2017 RZF—+E—-HA—H 1,567 74473 84,769 11,227 17,714 856 20 - 34,983 225,609
Exchange realignment [ & 352 - - - (@11 - - - - - (411)
Depreciation provided ~—~ FR{TE BB
for the year 247 2,567 13,749 258 336 - 2 - - 17,159
Eliminated on disposals (! & F 4 §4 - - - 87 (254) - (1) - - (342)
At31December 2017 R ZE—+ %
and 1 January 2018 +ZA=+—-HR
“E-N\F
—A—H 1,814 77,040 98,618 10,987 17,796 856 21 - 34,983 242,015
Exchange realignment  [E & J§%& - - - 294 - - - - - 294
Depreciation provided 4 W47 & & &
for the year 247 2,677 16,089 82 690 - - - 19,787
Eliminated on disposals & B ¥ 4 - (80) - (415) (14) - - - - (509)
Transfer from BREERIR
construction in
progress - 3,585 21,045 - 388 - - - (25,018) -
At31December 2018  H=-F—\&
+-A=+-H 2,061 83,222 135,652 10,948 18,860 856 23 - 9,965 261,587
CARRYING VALUES (R
At 31 December 2018 A =ZF—\fF
+-A=1+-H 3,433 42,846 63,185 1,198 2,963 81 20 795 500 115,021
At31December 2017 R-T—+F
+-A=f+-8H 3,680 38,682 81,563 800 2,306 81 22 532 4,737 132,408

BaWang International (Group) Holding Limited Annual Report 2018



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

REMBHRERME (E)
For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z =T — \F+_A=+—HLEFE
17. Property, Plant and Equipment (Continued)

18.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment, less their estimated residual
value, if any, using straight-line method over their estimated
useful lives as follows:

Buildings EE

Machinery 25

Leasehold improvements KERENRRE S H
Motor vehicles By T H

Office equipment and others WMAEREREAM
Display furniture RTEE

Bearer plants EEMEY

No depreciation is provided in respect of construction in
progress and immature bearer plants until it is substantially
completed and ready for its intended use. Upon completion and
commissioning for operation, depreciation will be provided at
the appropriate rates specified above.

Biological Assets

Biological assets represent the growing herbs in the cultivation
base located in the PRC.

17.

18.

Y5~ BB KRRt om)

FERERYE BFERREHK
REBBEEBFRBKEEERAT
SR A e A F IR EROEFTE

20 years 204F
15 years 154
10 years 104
5-8 years 5-84F
5 years 5%

2 years 2%
3-25 years 3-25%F

EFEIBRTHRANEMEET
Txi'r?ﬁ% EEEEEEE LT

Bl E AR - EERTTRE
)\@f’ﬁﬁv ik EXEEE X
FIARTIRITE -

EMEE

EMEERBEURPBRKRENESR
HEpEREnhEL-

2017

T —tF

RMB’000

ARBT T

At 1 January n—H—H 457
Herbs harvested during the year F U TE Y B (457)
At 31 December nt+=—_A=+—H —

As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, the Group did not have
any hectares of growing herbs.

R—Z—NF+-A=+—BUE
—E— i AEEEEENDE

4

}g’go
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A B R A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z =T — \F+_A=+—HLEFE

19. Inventories 19. 7 &
31/12/2018 1/1/2018 31/12/2017
—B-N\F =B-N\% —E—t&
+t=A=+—8 —A—-HB t=ZB=+-—H
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFT ARETT ARBFT
Raw materials R & 11,781 15,255 15,255
Work-in-progress £ 8 3,105 2,335 2,335
Finished goods 2R T 12,713 7,103 16,409
Packing materials and BEME KB @
consumable goods 12,011 13,582 13,582
39,610 38,275 47,581
20. Right to Returned Goods Asset 20. REIEY) 2 #ER
31/12/2018 1/1/2018
—E-\F —E-N\%
+=—A=+—8H —HA—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBF T
Right to returned goods asset ROIEY) 2 R 2,392 9,306

The right to returned goods asset represents the Group’s right
to recover products from customers where customers exercise
their right of return under the Group’s returns policy. The Group
uses its accumulated historical experience to estimate the
number of returns on a portfolio level using the expected value
method.

BaWang International (Group) Holding Limited Annual Report 2018
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A B R A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z =T — \F+_A=+—HLEFE

21. Trade and Other Receivables

=

21. EG R EfEURFRIE

31/12/2018 1/1/2018 31/12/2017
—B-N\F ZB-)N\F =Bt
B=+-B -H-B +=A=+-8

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’'000

ARBETT ARBTET ARET T

Receivables within the E BB B s s
scope of IFRS 15 at BB 1557 & B A
amortised cost comprise: &9 [ U B T £
AR B HE
Trade receivables 2 5 WA 41,243 48,321 48,321
Less: loss allowance for BB 5 R GRIE
impairment of BB ZE
trade receivables (10,590) (8,394) (6,810)
30,653 39,927 41,511
Prepayment for purchase of B B R £ #1 8 {
raw materials KIB 2,888 1,628 1,628
Short-term prepaid NEBSEESER
advertising fees 649 392 392
Other prepayments H b 78 1 5018 940 1,009 1,009
Non-income tax receivables 3F BT 15 %1 & I Fx 18 193 121 121
Other receivables H B I 5K TE 712 797 797
36,035 43,874 45,458

FIER(RE)ERERAT ZS—I\FEFHK
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A B R A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ=-F—/\F+=-A=+—HILFE

21. Trade and Other Receivables (Continued)

The Group allows an average credit period of 30 to 90 days to
its trade customers. The following is an aged analysis of trade
receivables net of allowance for impairment of trade receivables
presented based on the invoice date, which approximates the
respective revenue recognition dates, at the end of the reporting

21. B 5 & H b FE UL 78 @)

AEBAFESIRFFEFHEERR
RBIOEOXR -REBEZLZAITARNZE
WARRBAEI MR REE S E
WHIBREHRPROEBREDITUOT ¢

period:
31/12/2018 1/1/2018 31/12/2017
—E-—)N\£F —E—)N\F —E—+t5F
+=A=+—H —B—H +t=ZA=+-—H
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR FTT ARBEFTT AR FIT
Less than 3 months LHA31E A 23,614 29,655 29,920
More than 3 months but % A 31E A
less than 6 months 1B 61 A 4,073 10,041 10,438
More than 6 months but %6 & A
less than 12 months B2 1218 A 2,966 231 1,153
30,653 39,927 41,511

As at 31 December 2017, included in the Group’s trade
receivables balances were debtors with aggregate carrying
amount of RMB16,227,000 which were past due as at the end
of the reporting period for which the Group had not provided for
impairment loss because these receivables related to a number
of independent customers that had a good track settlement
record with the Group. Based on past experience, the
management believes that no impairment allowance was
necessary in respect of these balances as there had not been a
significant change in credit quality and the balances were still
considered to be fully recoverable. The Group did not hold any
collateral over these balances.

The aged analysis of trade receivables which are past due but
not impaired is set out below:

R—_FE—tF+-_A=+—H" 'K
SEMNEABEEELREREBZ
BORKABLEHEARENAR
% 16,227,000 7T ° A & 61 B9 18 & 5k (B
MEKRREBEEAETELEFEH
ZEFEFRAASEANRSHEHR

BEZEHERDEABR/A AR EW
B RENELR EEEBHREE
FHRERERELRERE - A&
B I % Bt a% S P U K E B M R IR
FrAEMEFR -

B 18 818 oK o 17 9 2 1 4 B 5 B
W E SRR AT -

2017
—E—tHF
RMB’000
ARBET T

BN 3E A
B3 61E A

Less than 3 months past due
More than 3 months but less than
6 months past due

15,323

904

16,227
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A B R A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ=-F—/\F+=-A=+—HILFE

21. Trade and Other Receivables (Continued) 21. E 5 Kk H b FE R FX3E (@)

As at 31 December 2018, the Group measures the loss
allowance for trade receivables at an amount equal to lifetime
ECL. The expected credit losses on trade receivables are
estimated using a provision matrix by reference to past default
experience of the debtor adjusted for factors that are specific to
the debtors, general economic conditions of the industry in
which the debtors operate and an assessment of both the
current as well as the forecast direction of conditions at the
reporting date.

The Group recognised lifetime ECL for trade receivables based
on the ageing of customers collectively that are not individually
significant as follows:

BE_ZT- N+ _-_A=+—H
b NEBEFENE ZRWFIAR
AEEERENREZHEREAE
Ko FHHEEBRKEHREKRIRMG
AAEREE 2RBENRBOER
ANERABNEERESANE
X OBEAaRBERENITENERA
1R VE AT 15 2 A B9 R 1 A R TRBI T

REEEEER

AEERBEPHNERKREK

o

AMIETEBNE 5B WA - ER
EHEBERBERNT

Weighted
average Gross
expected loss carrying Loss
rate amount allowance
g REEE
FEHBEAR BmE WEEE
% RMB’000 RMB’000
ERa e AR T T AR T T
Less than 3 months LR 31E A 3.13% 24,377 762
More than 3 months but less % 3@ A
than 6 months BLR6fE A 15.55% 4,822 750
More than 6 months but less % R 61E A
than 12 months B ) 12ME A 31.07% 4,303 1,337
More than 12 months Z 1218 A 100% 7,741 7,741
41,243 10,590

—REF ERERBREBAR
BRENTBEE  REERN @K
IS WAARRBFATEBDOE
ER - -EHRRRBESEH A&
BAKEEMmIESER-

Generally, trade receivables are written-off when there is
information indicating that the debtor is in severe financial
difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of recovery and are
not subject to enforcement activity. The Group does not hold
collateral as security.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A B R A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z =T — \F+_A=+—HLEFE

21. Trade and Other Receivables (Continued)

The movement in the loss allowance for impairment of trade

receivables is set out below:

1.ESKRE

ity & WL RN IR (a

ZoEBABREBREGNEF
ERUNNE

2017

—+tF

RMB’000

ARET T

At 1 January n—H—H 11,946
Effect on adoption of IFRS 9 T?K’% B % B 75 ¥ 5 ZE B

FORMTE -

At 1 January, as restated R—A—H WmE5| 11,946

Impairment loss recognised/(reversed)  FER AR E B & (B & @) (5,136)

At 31 December Rt+-—A=+—8H 6,810

As at 31 December 2017, the Group’s trade receivables of
RMB6,810,000 were individually determined to be impaired.
The individually impaired receivables related to customers that
were in financial difficulties and the management assessed that
full amount of these receivables was unlikely to be recovered.
Consequently full provision for these doubtful debts was
recognised. The Group did not hold any collateral over these

balances.

22. Deposit with Bank/Bank Balances and Cash

Deposit with bank
As at 31

fixed rate of 1.75% (2017: 1.75%) per annum.

Bank balances and cash

As at 31 December 2018, cash at bank carries interest at
floating rates based on daily bank deposits rates of 0.001% to

0.60% (2017: 0.001% to 0.60%) per annum.

BaWang International (Group) Holding Limited Annual Report 2018

December 2018, deposit with bank of
RMB20,000,000, with maturity in May 2019 (2017:
RMB20,000,000, with maturity in May 2018), carries interest at

22.

R—_E—+F+-_A=+—H" 'K
EEAHHARE,810,000TH E 5
JE U 5k TE 4SRRI B AR 1R T R B 1B
Koz EHBEERNRERNEKRRE
XEBANGKRESE mMEEREFT
HR AT a2 & E /Y eI R IE -
A AEEEHZEREHRE 2
BE AEBUVERZEEBER
EREE S -

RFRITER/RITER/
RITESRRE S

BMITER

R—E—NF+_A=+—8"4R
TFEZA R #20,000,0007T (=& —
+FE . AR #20,000,0007T £ =

E-NFREANHBER=_ZE—NF
AARE BEFHNEE175% (=

T—+FE 1.75%) °
BTEEFERAS
R-E—N\NF+-_A=+—8" 4R

THESEEEBERTEFERIHERNE
0.001% E0.60%( — T — + &F E:
0.001% ZE0.60%) st E A & o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

FeMBRRME(R)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z =T — \F+_A=+—HLEFE

23. Trade and Other Payables

23. EG R EfuET FRIE

31/12/2018 1/1/2018 31/12/2017

—E-N\#F —E-N\F —E—+t5

+=A=+—H —HA—-B t=ZH=+-—H

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T ARET T ARET T

Trade payables g 5 M~ 5RIE 29,612 30,527 30,527

Receipt in advance 78 Uk 3R I8 — — 16,236

Payable for acquisition of ~ JEN#1% - BE &

property, plant and REEEER

equipment 1,933 1,802 1,802

Promotion fee payables FEffEEER 22,236 13,838 13,838

Accrued payroll ERTITE 3,513 4,429 4,429

Provision of sales returns £ & i FI| # & — — 16,746

Non-income tax payables  FEFT15 4 & < 20 7,404 9,016 9,016
Other payables and HAi R RIE R

accruals EIREHA 16,670 24,845 24,845

81,368 84,457 117,439

BREZREHZBR2NZEHEMN
FERZ2HMPRZREINAT

The following is an aged analysis of trade payables presented
based on the invoice date at the end of the reporting period:

2017
—EF—tF
RMB’000
ARBET T

18 A AE HeamER
118 A & E R 31E A A 2 5]

23,663
6,864

Within 1 month or on demand
After 1 month but within 3 months

30,527

HHEESE THNEERNNI0ED
B e RE B A EE YRR E E
RERBABRNRBARKEE -

The average credit period on purchases is 30 to 90 days. The
Group has financial risk management policies in place to ensure
that all payables are settled within the credit timeframe.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

AE?H%&%%W?I(,%)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 &%= —

iR

24.

25.

—NF+A=t—HLFE

Contract Liabilities

24. R B &

31/12/2018 1/1/2018

=f B =f B

+=A=+-8 ~B-H

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T ARBT T

Advances received to deliver goods T8 U & ¥ iE ) 3K 7,587 16,236

The significant change in contract liabilities in 2018 was mainly
due to less sales orders were received from retailers.

Revenue recognised during the year ended 31 December 2018
that was included in the contract liabilities as at 1 January 2018
is RMB16,236,000. There was no revenue recognised in the
current year that related to performance obligations that were
satisfied in a prior year.

- N\FARAS

REE(EE

ok
ERAN U T EAEE NS
B -

HE-_Z—N\F—A—BL ' A4H
BEPIFANBE T —NF+=
A=+ " HLEFERREEBEAA
R 16,236,000 7T ° A 4F & 17 £ 7 3R
HE-FERBTHNEBETEREBAN

Refund Liabilities 25. B EZAfE

31/12/2018 1/1/2018

—E-\F —E-N\%

+=BA=+—H —HB—H

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR T T ARBT T

Refund liabilities EBEAE 4,164 16,746
The refund liabilities relate to customers’ right to return products BRREETPEREREEE =A%
after three months of purchase. At the point of sale, a refund BREEE -EHED BAite R E
liability and a corresponding adjustment to revenue is B HESFBERERIEM: WixK
recognised for those products expected to be returned. The AELHEERAE - Z2EB A ERE

Group uses its accumulated historical experience to estimate
the number of returns on a portfolio level using the expected
value method.

BaWang International (Group) Holding Limited Annual Report 2018

S G5 - R B B At
REMAKFE LHEHE-



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

FeMBRRME(R)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ=-F—/\F+=-A=+—HILFE

26. Bank Borrowing

26. SRITE X

2017
—EF—tF
RMB’000
ARET T

Fixed-rate bank borrowing 7E F) K IRFT 1A

Carrying amount repayable (based on scheduled repayment
dates set out in the loan agreement):

ANBEE(RBERBERENE
ERBH)

2017
—EF—+F
RMB’000
ARET T

Within one year —F R

Notes:

() As at 31 December 2018, bank borrowing of approximately RMB12,550,000 (2017:
nil) bore interest at fixed rate of 6.09% per annum and due within one year.

(b) As at 31 December 2018, bank borrowing was guaranteed by Mr. CHEN
Qiyuan and secured by the Group’s buildings included in property, plant and
equipment with carrying amounts of RMB3,433,000 (2017: nil) and the
properties of Mr. CHEN Qiyuan.

() At the end of the reporting period, the Group has available unutilised bank loan
facilities of approximately RMB67,450,000 (2017: RMB80,000,000).

(@ HE-_T-—_NF+ZA=+—HIt R
BRI TARK(ZE—CFE -
) FHEB6.09%  —FREH -

(b) HE-_ZT-NF+-A=+—HI " R7T
EREHRBREERR TEHEENE
E -BE [ESEEVTREURLE LD
FEER ERLEAMIIBETARE
(ZB—tFE: )

© RESZHR AEEREANRTEK

HENCTHSETARE(ZE—LFE:
8,000& ;T A R#E) ©

BIER(RE)ERARLIE ZSB—I\FFEH

159



160

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

FeMBRRME(R)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ=-F—/\F+=-A=+—HILFE

27. Provision

27. ST iR %1k

Provision for litigation

FRAGHIREA
2017
—E—tF
RMB’000
AREF T
At 1 January Y*—H—H 2,503
Payment made B XX KRIA (2,165)
At 31 December Rt+—_A=+—8H 338
Details of the litigations are set out in note 36. FAAF R HEES6 -
28. Share Capital and Reserves 28. RAK &4
(@) Share capital (a) B&&
Number of
shares
KRG EHE
‘000 RMB’000
FRrR AR®TT
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 | #& 00.1 2 L @Ak
each
Authorised: ETE
At 1 January 2017, RZE—+F—H—B ZFT—+tF
31 December 2017, +—A=+—B -—ZE—NF—A8
1 January 2018 and —AR=ZFTE-NF+=-A=+—8H
31 December 2018 10,000,000 880,500
Issued and fully paid BETREE
ordinary shares:
At 1 January 2017, RZE—+F—H—HB ZFT—+tF
31 December 2017, +=—A=+—8B -ZFE—N\H—A
1 January 2018 and —HBEZE-N\F+ZA=+—H
31 December 2018 277,878
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A B R A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ=-F—/\F+=-A=+—HILFE

28. Share Capital and Reserves (Continued)

(b) Nature and purpose of reserves

)

(ii)

(iii)

Share premium

The application of the share premium account of the
Company is governed by the Companies Law
(Revised) of the Cayman Islands. The funds in the
share premium are distributable to the shareholders
of the Company provided that immediately following
the date on which the dividend is proposed to be
distributed, the Company will be in a position to pay
off its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of
business.

Capital reserve

The capital reserve represents the portion of the
grant date fair value of unexercised share options
granted to employees of the Company that has been
recognised in accordance with the accounting policy
set out in note 3.

PRC statutory reserves

PRC statutory reserves are established in
accordance with the relevant PRC rules and
regulations and the articles of association of the PRC
subsidiary of the Group, Bawang Guangzhou.
Transfers to the reserves are approved by the
directors of Bawang Guangzhou.

Bawang Guangzhou and Bawang (China) Beverage
Co., Ltd, which are wholly foreign owned enterprises
established in the PRC, are required to transfer at
least 10% of their net profit (after offsetting prior year
losses), as determined under the PRC accounting
rules and regulations, to statutory general reserve
until the reserve balance reaches 50% of the
registered capital under the PRC Company Law and
the articles of association of the entity. The transfer
to this reserve must be made before distribution of
dividends to the equity shareholder.

28. IR AR f#4E @)
(b) BEFHRERAE

)

(ii)

(iii)

Bz &R\

ARRREA G ENRERX
MERBSEREERER)
FTRE -FRRIFEBEEZIR
RS H HHE - AR A
B NEEREXBH I
HmES  SAARFD
FEBRANEERKRDIK

AL o

BEEM

BT AR IEEB /B RE
AITROEBD  SERE
TEHNARBEZRRN
A3 XA ) & AT R
REXRfERER -

Bk E e

TEEERBIIREESH
B AR RIS AR B A B AR SR
EHhENBAREER
AN R ER S VACH: - BE
WREECEFTIEMNES
GHE

FITENEBIHRTIR
PRI B E B
¥ HEABREBERHER
Bl X 38 1 - #8882 3G A &%
2 10% B9 F & F) (8 7 DA
FFEEMNEEBE)ZE—K
ATEHE EZEELES
EHPRHRAERZER
MNARERREMNIME
RNHI50% & IE - B EZ
FEERMEZIEEAD
A% BRI HEAT ©

FIER(RE)ERERAT ZS—I\FEFHK
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A B R A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 &%= —

Z-\F+A=+—RIFE

28. Share Capital and Reserves (Continued)

(b) Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

PRC statutory reserves (Continued)

Statutory general reserve can be used to make good
prior years’ losses, if any, and may be converted into
share capital by issuing new shares to equity
shareholders proportionate to their existing
percentage of equity interests provided that the
balance after such issue is not less than 25% of the
registered capital.

Merger reserve

On 20 December 2007, Bawang International Group
Holding (HK) Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, acquired all the equity interest of
Bawang Guangzhou amounting to USD12,500,000,
which was previously held by a company owned by
the Controlling Shareholders of the Group, at a
consideration of the same amount. Accordingly, the
share capital of Bawang Guangzhou was eliminated
and a merger reserve arose due to foreign exchange
differences.

Translation reserve

Translation reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of the operations outside the PRC into
the presentation currency of the Group (i.e. RMB).

Other reserve

The other reserve represents the deemed
contribution by the Controlling Shareholders in the
form of non-interest bearing loans to a subsidiary as
detailed in note 34(c). The amounts are estimated by
discounting the nominal value of the non-interest
bearing loans to the subsidiary at an effective interest
rate.
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28. IR AR f#4E @)
(b) GEHMERAE®E

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

P Bk R o ()

—ROXRE W B A B 1E A
NEFEMNERAIE)
A EBIEBEDRTA A
MR AR R B DA R
FHTHB A HE R

HEBRAERA  HETH
FAETENEHRTIELIR
i E A 25% °
a4
_;§t¢+ A= +
A RBRIEENB A

%Eﬁﬁﬁl$hﬁﬁ>
BRAAURFERIKE
% 712,500,000 8 F &

JM 22 BB #E 25 (2 AT A 2 BX
BEREAHN KD AH

B) At BBEEMBK
A EE - HEROHER
ERELAHER-

B R & 0

EXFEERRREREE
SN 2 B # Rk (B A
RE)FMEENZAER
EH -

H fih % 0

Hth BRI EE
% 7 BT 52 34(c) Fr it = Fft B
NN BERELEZ

BEEE - &ﬁ%muﬁ
RAMEFRNES T RA
ZRBEFMEEEMEK
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A B R A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #ZE—

Z-\F+A=+—RIFE

29. Equity-Settled Share-Based Transactions

(a) Pre-IPO share option scheme

The Directors approved a Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
on 10 December 2008. On 8 June 2009, the Company
conditionally granted certain Pre-IPO share options to the
Directors, senior management and employees under this
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme. The exercise of these
share options would entitle two of the Company’s
Directors to subscribe for an aggregate of 4,200,000
shares of the Company, and forty of senior management
and employees for an aggregate of 10,332,000 shares.
According to the grant letters signed by the Company and
the beneficial individuals, the exercise price of each share
under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme is either at par
value of HK$0.1 (four people under this tranche including
two the then directors), or at HK$1.19, representing a
50% discount to the offer price of HK$2.38 under the
global offering (thirty-eight people under this tranche).
Each option granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme has a vesting period of one to five years,
commencing from the listing date and the options are
exercisable until 8 June 2019.

29. L/{H

L

REZEELURMDABE

B 5

(a)

FIER

(EE)EZERBRLA ZB—

HROMEEREARERS

BEFxefN T N\F+_-_A+
Bt E e X AHEESINER
BB -R_ZTEZAFENAN
B AXRRBKGEHLBESE X
NAEEABRETERE
%x%m*ﬁﬁﬁéﬁﬁiﬁ
FETEALAHEBEER
%oﬁ@%ﬁ%h%M%ﬁ
AMBEERBALAAH
4,200,000 % * LA &40% = %
ﬁﬁ@ﬂﬁ%*%$ EIE:Ev
4 $10,332,000 A% H #E F o 1R
BARARESEZEZARIN
RFPEMGE BXAFAEERE
RIEFEETHSRRMDITHE
BAEBMESTO1GAEI
Bl HAEBEMEBES)RET
119 AR 2 KBEE TR EE
7 JC2.389T #50% (38 A F£ It
B) - MBBE R ARBEEER
BFEIEENENERENS
B AR LtTEPEA—FE
hFE FEBREXNEAR-Z
—NEXNANBRIITHE -

INSEF ]
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A B R A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z =T — \F+_A=+—HLEFE

(Continued)

29. Equity-Settled Share-Based Transactions 0. IR ELEEINTURNDEER
B Z @)
(@) Pre-IPO share option scheme (Continued) (a) BROFRERMARERD
(#%)
Details of specific categories of Pre-IPO Share Options BRAREENBRETS
Scheme are as follows: EMT
Number of Contractual life
Date of grant instruments Vesting period of options
BT EH BRERE BEE BRESHE
Options granted to directors 8 June 2009 1,260,000 1 year from 3 July 2009 10 years
BT EENELE “EETAERANE SETAFLAZARH—F t+5
8 June 2009 735,000 2 years from 3 July 2009 10 years
—ZTAEXANA ZETNEL A=A WE T
8 June 2009 735,000 3 years from 3 July 2009 10 years
—“ETAEXANAR “ETNELRAZHEHZ=ZF +4#
8 June 2009 735,000 4 years from 3 July 2009 10 years
—ZZNEXRANR —ETNEL A=A NE +F
8 June 2009 735,000 5 years from 3 July 2009 10 years
—ZThEXANR “ETNELAZHEHEE +&
Options granted to employees 8 June 2009 1,669,920 1 year from 3 July 2009 10 years
BT E B e R IRE —ZZNERANA —ETNFLAZRERH—F T#
8 June 2009 1,868,160 2 years from 3 July 2009 10 years
—ZTAERANE —ETNELAZHRAME +&
8 June 2009 2,066,400 3 years from 3 July 2009 10 years
ZETNFANANA ZETNFLAZHRBH=F +&
8 June 2009 2,264,640 4 years from 3 July 2009 10 years
—ZZNERANA —ETNFLtAZHEHNF T#
8 June 2009 2,462,880 5 years from 3 July 2009 10 years
—ZTAERANE —ZTNELAZHRHEE T
Total share options granted 14,532,000

BTBRELH

164 BaWang International (Group) Holding Limited Annual Report 2018



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A B R A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z =T — \F+_A=+—HLEFE

29. Equity-Settled Share-Based Transactions

29. l«/{ﬂﬁf EEIUKRGOAE

As at 1 January 2017, 31 December

R-ZE—+F—H—H8"

2017, 1 January 2018 and 31 —t+tF+ZA=+

December 2018 —HB - ZF—N\F
—A—BEkZZE—N\F
+=-—A=+—H

(Continued) BHNRZ @

(b) The following table disclosed the movements of the (b) TEHEEHEZE_ZT—N\FK=
Company’s share options held by Directors and T—+tF+=- A= ‘f’ = lag3
employees for the years ended 31 December 2018 and EEENEEFAEREZE
2017: g -

Option type Number of share options
EREgR BREHE
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme % /’X ’A ﬁ?‘ﬂ B B B AR
As at 1 January 2017, 31 December —tF—H—8"
2017, 1 January 2018 and —t¢+:ﬂz+
31 December 2018 —HB -ZE—N\&F
—A—BARZZE—N\F
+-A=+—H 1,654,000
Exercisable at the end of the reporting A 2 FHEI KR AI 1T HY
period i iR i
As at 1 January 2017, 31 December EA: 3 +tF—H—A8"
2017 and 1 January 2018 —tF+ZA=+
—E&:§—A¢
—HA—H 1,654,000
Lapsed during the year KN (67,200)
As at 31 December 2018 RZZE—N\F
+-—A=+—H 1,586,800
Weighted average exercise price MEFITHEE HK$0.77
#700.77

The options outstanding at 31 December 2018 had a
weighted average remaining contractual life of 0.43 year

(2017: 1.43 years).

FIER(RE)ERERAT ZS—I\FEFHK

W=F—NF+-A=+—

H -

) R 1T 52 R A A B 0 4 7

BRI E D B04A3FE(—F —

TtEE:

1.43%) o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

FeMBRRME(R)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ=-F—/\F+=-A=+—HILFE

30. Statement of Financial Position of the

30. AN D 7] B AR R R

Company
2017
—E—tF
Notes RMB’000
=2 AR T T
Non-current assets kRBEE
Unlisted investments in subsidiaries ~ R 3E F T B A 7 &Y
"E -
Amounts due from subsidiaries A= NCIE s a 1,710
1,710
Current assets REEE
Other receivable H Ath B Y3k 298
Amounts due from subsidiaries A NGB b 13,579
Bank balances and cash RITEFRER S 2,939
16,816
Current liabilities REBEE
Other payables H b & - 518 4,085
Amount due to a subsidiary RN b -
Net current assets MEBEEFRE 12,731
Net assets EEFE 14,441
Capital and reserves EXR#E
Share capital N 277,878
Reserves B c (263,437)
Total equity SR 14,441
Notes: B & -
(@  The amounts were unsecured, non-interest bearing and not expected to be (@) ZHERBEET B AREHER

()

recoverable within the next twelve months from the end of the reporting period.

The amount is unsecured, non-interest bearing and repayable on demand.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

FeMBRRME(R)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ=-F—/\F+=-A=+—HILFE

30. Statement of Financial Position of the 30. 7 A &) Bf 7 AR R 3R (@)
Company (Continued)
Notes: (Continued) B : (48)
(c) Movements in the reserves during the years are as follows: (©) RBEERNEHBERWOT
Share Capital Translation Accumulated
premium reserve reserve losses Total
R 2 2 1 EARE ERHE E5 B

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBETT AR¥TRT ARKTRT ARKTT ARKTT
(note 28(b)) (note 28(b)) (note 28(b))
(Mi5E28(00))  (PFFrE28()) (T 7E28(0))

At 1 January 2017 R-Z—+F—H—8H 1,400,650 2,814 (110,545) (1,554,243 (261,324)

Total comprehensive FRNEEKA/(FAX) B
income/(expense) for
the year — — 48 (2,161) (2,113)

At 31 December 2017 and W=Z—+F+=-_A=+—H

1 January 2018 ER-—E—N\F—F—BH 1,400,650 2,814 (110,497)  (1,566,404)  (263,437)
Total comprehensive FANEEEREE
expense for the year - — (657) (5,124) (5,681)
At31December2018  W=Z—NF+-HA=+—H 1,400,650 2,814 (111,064)  (1561,528)  (269,118)
31. Lease Commitments 31. fHAHEE
The Group as lessee EEEESEREA
2017
—T—+tF
RMB’000
ARBTFT
Minimum lease payments paid under — RIBELHEHD 2
operating leases during the year: ®EHRERIE
Production premises HEGM 9,592
Office premises WIS P 1,004
10,596
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

FeMBRRME(R)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ=-F—/\F+=-A=+—HILFE

31. Lease Commitments (Continued) 31. A EIE @)
The Group as lessee (Continued) EEREEESEEA (1)
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments MREFREAR - NEE T A H &
for future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable SR ZAKRFER S AERHIE
operating leases which fall due as follows: AT
2017
—ET—+tF
RMB’000
AREFTT
Within one year —F RN 8,681
In the second to fifth year inclusive F_EZFERTF
(BREEMEEN) 16,677
Over five years AFU 465
25,823
Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the REFEREAEREXNEARAAE
Group for certain of its production premises and office. Leases SEBRELERABNBEEEZHA -
are negotiated for average terms ranging from 1 to 30 years HEHEE 2 BRHENFE—FE=
(2017: 1 to 30 years). Rentals are fixed over the terms of +E(E—+EE: —EFEFE =+
respective leases. F) o MEELSHLYHRNEETE -
32. Capital Commitments 32. EARKIE
2017
—E—tF
RMB’000
ARET T
Capital expenditure in respect of the R TE B 16 R R P I Bl
acquisition of property, plant and MEBBEDE BE
equipment contracted but not BB E RANE
provided in the consolidated financial
statements 2,731
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e B R R M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ=-F—/\F+=-A=+—HILFE

33. Retirement Benefit Scheme Contributions

(@) The PRC

Pursuant to the relevant labour rules and regulations in the
PRC, the PRC subsidiaries participate in a defined
contribution retirement benefit scheme (the “Scheme”)
organised by the local authority whereby the PRC
subsidiaries are required to make contributions to the
Scheme based on certain percentages of the eligible
employee’s salaries. The local government authority is
responsible for the entire pension obligations payable to

the retired employees.

(b) Hong Kong

The Group also maintains the MPF Scheme for all
qualifying employees in Hong Kong in accordance with
the requirements of the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance and related regulations. The assets
of the schemes are held separately from those of the
Group, in funds under the control of trustees. The Group
contributes 5% of relevant payroll costs to the Scheme, of
which the contribution was matched by employees and

subject to a cap of HK$1,500 per employee.

The Group has no other obligations for payment of retirement
and other post-retirement benefits of employees other than the

contribution described above.

The total expense recognised in profit or loss of approximately
RMB2,645,000 (2017: RMB2,127,000) represents contributions
payable to these plans by the Group at rates specified in the

rules of the plans.

33. B RE AT S K

(a)

(b)

o B K i 0 [

RETFPEBELEHER PE
MEBARZ2EMPEBRE
BT #1842 TE R SR K
&AM a8 ([% s &81)) - B R M
BRAAIAKERIEZ—FEAS
L 1R 5% 5t &I 5K - B 1 BT
BREREXNEKRKEENEE
BIRE -

FEHE

REBERBMERBEERE S ([RIE
&8 AR RG RARE
AEENSHBENAKRENE
BREERYBRE S -8R
RIS CEERAEHAME
ENH BAXTEAENZES
FE - AKERHEBIEZ25%
At EIHR - FH 8 THOHRK
FR&AETT1,500 °

AEEBRT LA HREE TEH
&% R B T XA RR R E AR
B@F o

EaXP2BAITHARE
2645000 ZFE—tFE: ARK
2,127,000) + BN A& E gtz F50 & %l
EHW—EBDLLERZHR -

FIER(RE)ERERAT ZS—I\FEFHK
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

FeMBRRME(R)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ=-F—/\F+=-A=+—HILFE

34. Related Party Transactions

(a) Related party balances

The following balances were outstanding at the end of the

reporting period:

M. BEBEHIRS

(@) FABEHERE
2R AR E N Z &R

R &

_|

Amounts due from/(to)
related parties

PR/ (1) BA B 75 SR IE
2017
—T—+F
RMB’000
ARBFIT
Non-trade related FEZH
Guangzhou Xiaoxiao Supply Chain B M NN B R
Management Co. Ltd (“Guangzhou BRAE(TEM NN (5D
Xiaoxiao”) (note i) -
Guangzhou Bawang International Hotel Co., &M 8 LB ABEER A A
Ltd. (“Guangzhou Bawang International”) (TEMEBEEHEE]D (i)
(note ii) 87
Guangzhou Bawang Cosmetics Co., Lid.  EINFE T LA AR A 7
(“Guangzhou Bawang”) (note iii) (TEME T ) (B sEii) 6,860
6,947
Trade related Z 5 1k
Guangzhou Chenming Paper Products EMTREAKRBER QA
Company Limited (“Guangzhou (TEMERD (M &Eiv)
Chenming”) (note iv) (1,264)
Guangzhou Qiancai Packaging Materials EMTERBEMBERAF
Co., Ltd. (“Guangzhou Qiancai”) (note iv) (TEIMNE R (V) 81
Guangzhou Xiaoxiao (note i) BN NN (B 5D (1)
(1,346)

Notes: B &

(i) Guangzhou Xiaoxiao was under the control of the Controlling 0] BMNNNHEEESIEAR QS HA
Shareholders of the Company. The balance was unsecured, interest- £ E IR IR R IEH| o B B 4S5 m K
free and repayable on demand. 1B BIWIRERKMEE -

(i) Guangzhou Bawang International was effectively 100% owned by the (i) ENBITHERAEEEBRBRE
Controlling Shareholders of the Company. The balance was unsecured, 100% B A - B B4 e | -
interest-free and repayable on demand. BB IR ERKEE -

(iii) Guangzhou Bawang was effectively 100% owned by the Controlling (ii) BN E B ARDF AR K E100%
Shareholders of the Company. As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, the BERERE R_E—NEM=_F—
balance due from Guangzhou Bawang mainly represented prepayment +E+_A=+—RB ENFEEH
of rental expenses. The balance was unsecured, interest-free and HAREHR T EAENES BHES

repayable on demand.

MBI RS WIREREE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

FeMBRRME(R)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ=-F—/\F+=-A=+—HILFE

34. Related Party Transactions (Continued)

(@) Related party balances (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(iv) Guangzhou Chenming and Guangzhou Qiancai were under the control
of the close family members of the Controlling Shareholders of the
Company. The credit term granted by Guangzhou Chenming and
Guangzhou Qiancai is 30 days and based on the invoice date. As at 31
December 2018 and 2017, the amounts due to Guangzhou Chenming
and Guangzhou Qiancai were unsecured, interest-free and repayable
within 30 days, based on the invoice date.

(b)

Related party transactions

Save as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial
statements, the Group had the following material
transactions with its related parties:

34. EEAR S @)

(a) FABETT B8R (M)
B« ()

vy BEBNEAMEMEBEXRHEARRR
122 A% % 3R B R 25 ) ) R BE R B 45
Me-mEMEBAMBEMNBRETH
BEEHANBMNBEZAR A%
R-ZFE—tFR=_F—N\F+=A
=+—8 BANEMNEHMENE
KRB - EREHEERARE SN
RBEZAI0RNKIZERKEE -

MEAXH

BRar & MR R B A B 0PI
BEN AKBEABEEAL
ETATERRS :

(b)

2017
—ET—tF
Nature of transaction RMB’000
REME ARBTF T
Guangzhou Bawang Meeting and catering service
International expenses (notes i and v) 966
BN E R IE eELERREE (MMTiMy)
Guangzhou Chenming Purchase of materials (notes i and iv) 9,875
& )M = A JRAT 4 ER B 3% (Bt 5 i A iv)
Guangzhou Qiancai Purchase of materials (notes i and v) 234
& A& R JR M KL ER B R (PR REi R V)
Guangzhou Bawang Rental and management fee of
production plant and office
premises (notes i, iii and iv) 10,437
BIMNEFEE HSEBEMPERASANES
MEEE (M i Fiv)
Utility expenses paid and received
on behalf (notes i, ii and v) 1,003
RAXNR/KEEERMKE

B KE B U A (BT 3T i Fv)

BIER(RE)ERARLIE ZSB—I\FFEH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A B R A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ=-F—/\F+=-A=+—HILFE

34. Related Party Transactions (Continued)

(b) Related party transactions (Continued)

Notes:

(i)

(i)

)

The Directors are of the opinion that the above transactions were
conducted on normal commercial terms in the ordinary course of
business and the basis of consideration for the transactions is the
prevailing market price.

The utility income was charged to Guangzhou Bawang in relation to the
utility expenses paid on behalf of Guangzhou Bawang.

On 9 August 2013, Bawang Guangzhou and Guangzhou Bawang
entered into two lease agreements, pursuant to which Bawang
Guangzhou leased from Guangzhou Bawang the production plant and
office premises at fixed monthly rental and management fee of
RMB1,120,000 and RMB92,800, respectively. The terms of the lease
under the agreements were 3 years from 9 August 2013. The lease
agreement was renewed on 9 August 2016 and the new terms of the
lease were 3 years from 9 August 2016. The renewed monthly rental
fee for production premises and office premises were approximately
RMB490,000 and RMB45,000 respectively. The renewed monthly
management fee for production premises and office premises were
approximately RMB310,000 and RMBB39,000 respectively. The
renewed contract was terminated and a new contract was signed on 1
December 2017 and the new terms of the lease were 3 years from 1
December 2017. The new monthly rental and management fee for the
production premises, office premises and a staff dormitory are
approximately RMB719,900. Details of which were set out in the
Company’s announcement dated 1 December 2017.

The related party transactions constitute connected transactions or
continuing connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules. The disclosures required by Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules are provided in the “Report of the Directors” section to the annual
report.

The related party transactions constitute connected transactions or
continuing connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules, however, they are exempt from the disclosure
requirements in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A B R A ()
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34. Related Party Transactions (Continued)

(c) The Controling Shareholders and Guangzhou Bawang

undertook to provide a loan facility to the Group in an
amount up to RMB140,000,000 for a period from 15
March 2013 to 31 December 2015 and were further
extended to 22 January 2018. The long-term loans were
unsecured, interest-free and repayable by 31 December
2017 or earlier as determined by the Group. In 2016, the
Group had drawn down HK$35,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB29,323,000) under the facility. On 3
June 2016, all the loans from the Controlling Shareholders
were fully repaid. As at 31 December 2017, there was no
loan from Controlling Shareholders (2018: nil). As at 31
December 2017, the available facilities are approximately
RMB140,000,000 (2018: nil) which expired on 22 January
2018.

(d) Compensation of key management personnel

The remuneration of key management personnel of the
Group during the year was as follows:

4. BERRF @)

(c) +ERRPE R M BN E T A& R A
SERE—Z2RPETRE -
& % = A R 140,000,000 °
B -_ZET—=F=ZA+
+—H #E—FERE_-ZFT
NEFE—A=-+=-H-lt&EH
HEERE RERBAAE
RER_ZTE—EF+ A
+—HAxgZHEE - BE_Z
—RNE+-_A=+—H8B1t#FE
ER AEBES—S28A
75 735,000,000 2 & B A B
#29,323,000) g K E=F
—RNENA=8 FTBEERR
EHNEREEBE -HE_T—
tF+_A=+—8 EBEK
REREAEEAARKS
T(ZE—NFE :£)-H=E
—FT—tF+=A=+—8H"
AHEAREEENABARE
140,000,000( = & — )\ FF & :
/) FR _E—\F— A=+
Z“BkR -

(d FEEEAREH
AEERFATEERBAEN

[1] B8 mf | ]I

Me&HmmT :
2018 2017
===\ _—_T—+tF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AESEFIS AXR®TT

Short-term benefits 5 HAfE A 2,427 1,967
Post-employment benefits BEBS 18 18 A 180 203
2,607 2,170

The remuneration of key management personnel of the
Group was determined by the board of Directors, in
consultation with the remuneration committee, having
regard to the performance of individuals and market
trends.

AEEEFTZEEABZHRMA
EEHATHE B R NEFE
ARBEMZBEETEN -
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35. Reconciliation of Liabilities Arising from B.AMEETHELENEERAD
Financing Activities
The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities arising TRFUAEERERETHNE
from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash BEEH BERESRIFRESEF-
changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for METHEANBEBERERE S RE
which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in ARBREREBESZABRERER
the consolidated statement of cash flows as cash flows from moBARMEBE LIRS RENEE -

financing activities.

Liabilities afE
Bank borrowing BITHEK
(note 26) (P 5 26)
Financing Accrued
1 January 2017 cash flows interest 31 December 2017
—E—+F A& S
—HA—H Reneg KNS +ZA=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBTT ARETT ARBTT
Liabilities =i
Bank borrowing RITE R
(note 26) (Ki=E26) 5,610 (6,105) 495 -
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36. Litigations

(@ In prior years, a lawsuit was filed by a former
subcontractor against Bawang (China) Beverage Co.,
Limited (“Bawang Beverage”) in People’s Court of
Songjiang District of Shanghai (the “Shanghai Court”) in
respect of a dispute in the material processing contract
between the former subcontractor and Bawang Beverage.
In 2013, Bawang Beverage received a civil order issued
by the Shanghai Court, which accepted the application by
the former subcontractor for property attachment prior to
lawsuit to freeze Bawang Beverage’s bank accounts in
the amount of approximately RMB873,000 or other assets
under the name of Bawang Beverage. In connection with
the lawsuit, one of Bawang Beverage’'s bank accounts
with an amount of approximately RMB309,000 was
frozen. No accrual was recorded by the Group as at 31
December 2013 based on the opinion provided by the
PRC legal counsel acting on behalf of Bawang Beverage.

On 20 June 2014, Shanghai No. 1 Intermediate People’s
Court gave its final ruling that Bawang Beverage was liable
to the former subcontractor for an amount of
approximately RMB643,000 and a legal cost of
approximately RMB19,000. Accordingly, provision for
litigation in amount of approximately RMB662,000 was
recognised as other expense in the profit or loss and an
amount of approximately RMB324,000 was settled in
2014. As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, the remaining
provision of approximately RMB338,000 has not been

settled.

(b) In prior years, a lawsuit was filed by a total of 14 former
employees against Bawang Guangzhou in the District
Court in respect of termination compensation for a total
sum of approximately RMB2,891,000 representing related
severance payments, salaries and social insurance
expenses. Provision of litigation in the amount of
RMB500,000 was recognised as administrative expenses

in the profit or loss in prior years.

36.

e

(@)

B —RAIDEEE LS
TEARZER ([ E&ERR] 5t
ZAIDHEE RE L (FPE) KR
ERAR(HBEBERE] 2HB
RENT A RBM W EE R
REFHR - N_T—=F"§
TFHEBWKET EEERANRSE
HIRE FBERTETAISD
HEMFRMERZBEGE R
HETHEIRHBITRFOAR
#873,0007T 8k B E B B T A
EMEE - EWHFRP FE
KL E P —ERITRPE W R
T4 AR 309,000 c R
—=%+-F=+—8 8B
REE AR EMBEINR RSB RE
MZEZEBERRENER A&
B 18 R E L ET IR AR A 4 o

EBE—FRFARERER-Z
—mENA-ZTHEERRE
R BIRKBERASEEX
4 A R #643,0007T B B B
£ M A K #19,0007T # 5F 24
Bo i FFRARFTIRAFTHA
R #662,0007T & # # R 1 47
AEFEEMEEKEZRT A
HEi B8R 4 AR 324,000
TEEHZ-_FT—HNF+ A
T+ HIEFERNEE -#HZE
2 NFEN T —tF+=
A=Z+—BLEFE HAR
338,000 7T H F &4 51 18 A K %

H o
Ean

RUAEFEE +0F QA
TEEEHEBRZERFAESH L
BMNEELBHREEERFEE
& ITEMERBAHARKE
2,891,0007T ° I LA F E R
T AR ¥500,000 7 ) 5112 5
AR EEREREMA2E NS
KMITHRERS -
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36. Litigations (Continued)

(b)

(Continued)

In 2016, the District Court handed down the judgement
for 12 out of 14 employees that the Group was liable to
the former employees for a sum of approximately
RMB652,000. The Group lodged an appeal against the
decision to the Intermediate Court for 9 out of 12
employees and the other 3 employees appealed by
themselves against the decision to the Intermediate Court.
For the remaining 2 employees, the court handed down
the judgment for one of them that the Group was liable to
the former employee for a sum of approximately
RMB208,000 and the appeal by the Group was rejected
by the court. For another one, the court handed down the
judgment that the Group was liable to the former
employee for a sum of approximately RMB45,000 and the
Group lodged an appeal against the decision. Accordingly,
additional provision of approximately RMB453,000 was
recognised as administrative expenses in the profit or loss
in 2016 based on the option provided by the PRC legal
counsel acting on behalf of Bawang Guangzhou.

On 8 March 2017, the appeal by the Group was rejected
by the court. During the year ended 31 December 2017,
the Group settled a sum of approximately RMB928,000.

In prior years, a lawsuit was filed by a former employee
against Bawang Guangzhou in the District Court in respect
of termination compensation. On 8 October 2015, the
District Court gave its first ruling that Bawang Guangzhou
was liable to the former employee for a sum of
approximately RMB149,000 representing related severance
payments and salaries. Both the plaintiff and Bawang
Guangzhou lodged an appeal against the decision. No
hearing has yet been fixed for the appeal. Accordingly,
provision of litigation in the amount of approximately
RMB149,000 was recognised as administrative expenses
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income in prior years.

In 2016, the Intermediate Court handed down the
judgment that the Group was liable to the former
employee for a sum of approximately RMB167,000
representing related severance payments and salaries and
the Group settled the amount during the year. Accordingly,
additional provision of approximately RMB18,000 was
recognised as administrative expenses in the profit or loss
in 2016. The whole amount was settled in 2017 and no
additional provision was made as at 31 December 2017.

BaWang International (Group) Holding Limited Annual Report 2018
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36. Litigations (Continued)

(@

In prior years, a total of 3 lawsuits were filed by the same
supplier against Bawang Guangzhou in the District Court
and Guangzhou Arbitration Commission for a total sum of
approximately RMB1,810,000 and RMB859,000
respectively, representing outstanding retention fees and
construction fees. Accordingly, provision of litigation in the
amount of approximately RMB2,669,000 was recognised
as administrative expenses in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income based
on the opinion provided by the PRC legal counsel acting
on behalf of Bawang Guangzhou.

In 2016, the District Court and Guangzhou Arbitration
Commission handed down the judgment that the Group
was liable to settle the amount of approximately
RMB1,810,000 and RMB928,000 respectively with
corresponding legal cost and arbitration fee of
approximately RMB23,000 and RMB23,000 respectively.
Therefore, the Group entered into an agreement with the
supplier that the Group will settle the above amounts by 8
times installments for the period from August 2016 to
March 2017. The monthly installment is RMB350,000 and
the remaining balance will be settled by the last time of
installment. Additional provision of RMB115,000 was
recognised as administrative expenses in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income in 2016.

The Group settled approximately RMB1,750,000 in 2016
and the remaining provision of approximately
RMB1,034,000 was settled for the year ended 31
December 2017.

In 2016, a lawsuit was filed by the Group against a former
joint venture in the District Court for the outstanding
receivable amount of rental deposit and goods sold. The
Group requested for the following claim: (i) Repayment of
the rental deposit of approximately RMB57,000; (ii)
Repayment of the goods sold of approximately
RMB232,000; and (i) Repayment of the overdue penalty
of goods sold of approximately RMB232,000. On 15
March 2017, the Group withdrew the lawsuit after
receiving the claim.

36.

ERERER ()

(@

RAFEFEE —@AEE®FS 5
EHEEXRMEMNTHHEEES
gmMBIEMRERAL =R
M BRIAEELRNEHA
R #1,810,0007T 1 49 A R #&
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37. Principal Subsidiaries 37. T EH B A A
Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31 December R-ZE—NERKR-_ZE—+FE+=-A
2018 and 2017 are as follows: =+—B AT TFENEB AT
BT :
Place of
incorporation/ Issued and paid-
establishment and up/registered Proportion ownership interest and
Name operation capital voting power held by the Company  Principal activities
BRTR ARRHENERER
=1 RIRLERE BREER BENREELH TEXK
2017
“E—tF
Direct  Indirect
BE  BEE
% %
Forever Giants Limited BVI USD1 100 — Inactive
Forever Giants Limited RBERXES EV FRNEEL
Bawang International Group Hong Kong HKS$1 - 100 Investment holding, advertising agency
Holding (HK) Limited and trading of household and
personal care products
BIRKREEER(EE) &4 HIT REER EERBREHK
BRAT KRZXAREAERER
Hong Kong Bawang Hong Kong HK$1 - 100 Advertising agency and trading of
International Trading household and personal care
Limited products
EEBIERESH AR FE T BERBREHIEBERAR
BAAEEER
Bawang Guangzhou The PRC USD67,500,000 - 100 Manufacturing and trading of
(note a) household and personal care
products
BEEM (M E@E) FE % 767,500,000 REREHMERRAR
AAERE®
Bawang Beverage The PRC HK$180,000,000 — 100 Inactive
(note a)
BERH (@) FE 7 71,180,000,000 FREER
Guangzhou Fanmei The PRC RMB1,000,000 - 100 e-Commerce and trading of household
Electronic Business and personal care products
Company Limited*
BMNRBEFHBER HH AR #1,000,000 EFHBREERERRAREA
R EEER
Guangzhou Bawang Trading The PRC RMB1,000,000 - 100 Trading of household and personal
Company Limited* care products
BNBETEZHERAR FH AR #1,000,000 HHRERRAREAEEER

BaWang International (Group) Holding Limited Annual Report 2018
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37. Principal Subsidiaries (Continued) 7. TEH B A 7 @)
Note: BEE :
(@) These entities are wholly foreign owned and limited liability companies (@) HEERBANTRKZAIIEEZERB DN

established in the PRC.

*

For identification purposes only

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group which, in the
opinion of the Directors, principally affected the results or assets
and liabilities of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries
would, in the opinion of the Directors, result in particulars of
excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the
end of both years or at any time during the years.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company has other

EREMERA -

(EXEEY]|

FRENEARFNEETRATER
EREBXEREENABE 2B
RAE - ARBEERRIREE M
BRrAzZ#BEHE<SENBRITEM
NELIIR

REFRE-—FEHAN HELCH
o8 X A AT EAAE AR A TS o

RERPR ABEEEMHLEE

wholly-owned subsidiaries that are not material to the Group. MESEERNEZEWNB AR 25
The principal activities of these subsidiaries are summarised as MBARIZ TEEKHMAT :
follows:
Number of subsidiaries
MEAREHE
Principal activities Principal place of business 2017
FEXHK FTEXEBHR —ET—+tF
Investment holding The BVI 2
KREZERK EBEXES
Investment holding Hong Kong 1
JEER B

BIER(RE)ERARLIE ZSB—I\FFEH
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Five Years Summary

LEPHERE

As at 31 December 2018 N=Z— \F+=-A=+—H

2017 2016 2015 2014
—E—t+E —ZE—RE =—ZE—RHE —E—NOF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTIT ARBTT AR®TT ARETT
(Restated)
(eE %)
Results 47
Revenue Ak g 264,215 264,229 232,181 294,649
(Loss)/profit before taxation %t A (E518) /7 ;& 19,231 41,094 (110,422) (115,541)
Taxation B8 (4) 2,610 ©) 916)
(Loss)/profit for the year NAEHEE AENL
attributable to ZFEAN(EE)/
the owners of A E
the Company 19,227 43,704 (110,425) (116,457)
Assets and liabilities EERAER
Property, plant and M - BB R
equipment 132,403 137,237 155,284 225,340
Prepaid advertising fee BNELER 392 212 44 667
Biological assets EYEE - 457 426 175
Net current assets/(liabilities) 7t &) & &/ (& &)
YEE 37,843 13,305 (56,852) (26,364)
Total assets less current B EBERTE
liabilities B&E 170,246 150,542 98,432 199,151
Loan from controlling 72 A% I R A R
shareholders — — 54,946 44,069
Deferred tax liabilities BEFIEEE - - 2,031 2,031
Net assets EEFE 170,246 150,542 41,455 153,051
Capital and reserves ERN #E
Share capital &% 7 277,878 277,878 256,705 256,639
Reserves ke (107,632) (127,336) (215,250) (103,588)
Total equity REEE 170,246 150,542 41,455 153,051
(Loss)/earning per share Bk &7/ (E8)
Basic and diluted (RMB) EXRREH
(AR®) 0.006 0.01 (0.038) (0.04)

BaWang International (Group) Holding Limited

Annual Report 2018
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